Public Document Pack

-
lfg§ Agenda

Coventry City Council

Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee

Time and Date
3.15 pm on Tuesday, 21st January, 2025

Place

Committee Room 3 - Council House

Public Business

=

Apologies and Substitutions
Declarations of Interest
Minutes (Pages 5 - 10)

(@) To agree the minutes of the previous meeting held on 18 December,
2024

(b) Matters Arising

Consideration of Stage 2 Call -in - Binley Cycleway - Section 7 (Clifford
Bridge Road)

The Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee will consider the call ins indicated
below, which were deemed appropriate by the Chair of the Committee,
Councillor G Lloyd, at Stage 1 consideration.

In accordance with the Constitution, at least one of the Members for each call
in must be in attendance at the meeting.

Page 1



Cabinet Member for City Services - 9 December, 2024

The Cabinet Member, Councillor P Hetherton, has been invited to attend this
meeting. At the meeting the Cabinet Member agreed to:-

1) Note progress in response to the recommendations made within the 15
November 2023 Binley Cycleway — Section 7 (Clifford Bridge Road)
report.

2) Consider the responses, representations and objections to the Tree
Felling Notices, Notice of Proposal and Notices of Intent.

3) Consider the petitioners concerns relating to the proposed cycleway
and tree felling.

4) Approve the construction of Section 7 — Clifford Bridge Road Cycleway.
Call ins received
1) From Councillors J Blundell, M Lapsa and T Sawdon.

Reasons for call in:-

e The report fails to take account of a key safety report which is
omitted from the report.

e The report contains misleading information regarding the health
of the trees

e The report does not give sufficient weight and fails to evaluate
and cost the alternative routes as set out in the report

2) From Councillors R Thay, F Abbott and A Hopkins.

Reasons for call in:-

e There has been no consideration of any disability reports. Sight
of these reports has not been forthcoming, and freedom of
information requests have not been fulfilled. A decision cannot be
made without a disability assessment. (It has been clarified that
this relates to “the outcome of consultation with disability groups
and their views”)

e The report does not sufficiently evidence that residents’ concerns
have been resolved, particularly considering residents at the
meeting were saying that their concerns had not been resolved
to their satisfaction and issues remain at specific properties along
the road. (It has been clarified that this relates to “the ability of
people at specific properties to have safe access to and from
their drives”

Attached are the following documents:-

(@) Process Note of the Director of Law and Governance on the call-in
procedure (Pages 11 -12)

Page 2



(b) Briefing Note of the Director of City Services and Commercial (Pages
13 - 20)

(c) Binley Cycleway — Section 7 (Clifford Bridge Road) - Report which was
considered by the Cabinet Member for City Services on 9 December,
2024 (Pages 21 - 100)

(d) Binley Cycleway - Clifford Bridge Road - Equality Impact Assessment
(Pages 101 - 108)

5. Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee Work Programme and Outstanding
Issues 2024/2025 (Pages 109 - 116)

Report of the Director of Law and Governance

6. Any Other Items of Public Business

Any other items of public business which the Chair decides to take as a matter
of urgency because of the special circumstances involved.

Private Business

Nil

Julie Newman, Director of Law and Governance, Council House, Coventry
Monday, 13 January, 2025

Note: The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is
Suzanne Bennett, Governance Services - Telephone: 024 7697 2299 E-mail:
suzanne.bennett@coventry.gov.uk

Membership: Councillors M Ali, A Jobbar, L Kelly (Deputy Chair), J Lepoidevin,
G Lloyd (Chair), C Miks, G Ridley, R Singh and CE Thomas

By invitation Councillors P Hetherton, S Nazir, EM Reeves
Councillors F Abbott, J Blundell, A Hopkins, M Lapsa, T Sawdon, R Thay

Public Access

Any member of the public who would like to attend the meeting in person is
encouraged to contact the officer below in advance of the meeting regarding
arrangements for public attendance. A guide to attending public meeting can be found
here: https://www.coventry.gov.uk/publicAttendanceMeetings

Suzanne Bennett, Governance Services - Telephone: 024 7697 2299
E-mail: suzanne.bennett@coventry.gov.uk

Page 3


https://www.coventry.gov.uk/publicAttendanceMeetings

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

Coventry City Council
Minutes of the Meeting of Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee held at 11.00 am on
Wednesday, 18 December 2024

Present:
Members: Councillor G Lloyd (Chair)

Councillor A Jobbar

Councillor Lakha (Sub for Councillor Jobbar for part of the
meeting)

Councillor J Lepoidevin

Councillor C Miks

Councillor R Singh

Councillor CE Thomas

Other Members: Councillor S Agboola (Deputy Cabinet Member for Housing
and Equalities)
Councillor N Akhtar (Cabinet Member for Housing and
Communities)
Councillor P Akhtar (Deputy Cabinet Member for Policing and
Equalities)
Councillor S Gray
Councillor J McNicholas

Other Present: Councillor A Burrow, Chair, West Midlands Combined
Authority Overview and Scrutiny Committee)
J Hughes, West Midlands Combined Authority)
L Shoaf (Chief Executive, West Midlands Combined Authority)

Chief Inspector G Hamir, West Midlands Police

Employees (by Directorate):

City Services and R Back, C Eggington and C Styles

Commercial

Law and Governance: J Adams, S Bennett, A Chowns and G Holmes
Apologies: Councillors M Ali and L Kelly, G Ridley, A Tucker

Public Business
60. Declarations of Interest

There were no disclosable pecuniary interests.

Page 5



61.

62.

Minutes

The Minutes of the meetings held on 31 October and 14 and 20 November, 2024
were agreed and signed as true records.

There were no matters arising.
West Midlands Combined Authority Update

The Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee considered a report, together with a
detailed presentation and video at the meeting, which provided a high-level
summary of the structure and corporate performance of the West Midlands
Combined Authority (WMCA) for the financial year 2023/24 and 2024/25. Laura
Shoaf (Chief Executive of the WMCA), James Hughes and Councillor Andrew
Burrow, Chair of the WMCA Overview and Scrutiny Committee attended for
consideration of this item.

The presentation covered:-

e Whatis the WMCA
e Details of the Mayor and Mayoral Office and the Executive
Leadership Team
e The key priorities of the WMCA:-
o Jobs for everyone
o Homes for everyone
o Growth for everyone
o Journeys for everyone
e How the WMCA achieves more when working in a more integrated
way which had led to the launch of #BetterConnected Strategy:-
e The People and Culture Strategy which aims to:-
o Create an agile, curious and learning organisation
o Provide the environment to help everyone bring their best
energy and thrive
o Think and act as “One team WMCA” aligned to the overall
purpose, values and strategy
e Areview of the Financial Year 2023/24 and 2024/25:-
o Annual Business Plans 2023/24 and 2024/25
o Financial Budget 2023/24 and 2024/25
e Key achievements 2023/24
e Lookahead 2024/25
e How the WMCA work with Coventry City Council

The Committee also considered the WMCA Scrutiny and Audit Annual Report
2023/24.

Members asked questions, sought assurances and information and commented
on a number of issues, including:-

e The possible future franchising of bus services, how this could lead
to improvements in service and the role of the WMCA in this

Page 6



63.

e Liaison between the WMCA and Coventry City Council on disability
and equality issues, particularly in relation to developing Disability
and Equality Charters in the West Midlands

e How free bus passes operate in the West Midlands

e The possible impact on the WMCA of the recently published White
Paper on Local Government (Its was noted that the Chief Executive
of the WMCA would shortly be circulating a summary of the White
Paper to all Councillors)

e Attendance at meetings of the WMCA

e The Governance and decision making arrangements of the WMCA

e The funding arrangements for the WMCA and how the distribution of
money to the constituent Councils is done via grants

e The continuing lobbying by the WMCA for fair and appropriate
funding

Laura Shoaf, James Hughes and Councillor Burrow were thanked for their
attendance and contributions to the meeting.

RESOLVED that the West Midlands Combined Authority corporate update
and the Scrutiny and Audit Annual Report 2024/24 be received and noted.

Regulation 19 Local Plan

The Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee considered a report of the Director of City
Services and Commercial, together with a detailed presentation at the meeting,
regarding the review of the Local Plan. The report had been considered by
Cabinet at their meeting on 14 December, 2024 (Minute 47 refers) and would be
considered by Council on 14 January, 2025 where approval would be sought to
undertake a Regulation 19 stage for a 6 week publication period as part of the
review. The report outlined the responses received from the Regulation 18
consultation which had been used to inform the development of the Regulation
Plan.

The presentation covered:-

The Local Plan Review — Progress and Next Steps
Process and practicalities

Land Banking and stalled sites

Key principles:-

Housing land supply

Employment land supply

Affordable housing delivery

New housing allocations

Purpose built student accommodation
Space standards/Design codes

Open space

Greenbelt

Tackling climate change

Development density

Parking standards for new development

O O OO OO O OO0 O0o0OOo

3T Page 7



64.

The Committee asked questions, sought assurances and information, and made
comments on a number of issues, including:-

e Clarification of the new housing allocation figures

e Projected population figures for Coventry and assurances regarding
their accuracy

e The new energy efficiency in homes standards were welcomed.

e Land banking, locally and nationally

e Ensuring that new houses are capable of being adapted in the future
and are therefore “homes for life” (It was noted that introducing
standards in relation to this were proposed in the new Plan)

¢ Clarification of the requirements in relation to affordable housing and
the inclusion of requirements for larger affordable family homes

e The links between the proposed new Plan and a number of existing
Council Policies and Strategies (including the Climate Change
Strategy and Greenspaces Strategy) were noted

e The inclusion of a requirement for electric charging points for new
homes was noted

RESOLVED that the Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee note the information
in the report and:-

1) Request that a joint meeting of the Business, Economy and
Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3) and the Communities and
Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Board (4) be arranged to consider the
Space Standards/Design Codes.

2) Request that the outcome of the Regulation 19 be consultation be
considered by the Committee in due course.

Community Safety Plan 2024-27

Further to Minute 13/24, the Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee considered a
Briefing Note of the Director of Law and Governance which provided an update on
the consultation process to develop the Community Safety Partnership Plan and
seeking the Committee’s contributions to shape the final Plan.

Chief Inspector Godhania Hamir, West Midlands Police, attended the meeting and
was welcomed by the Committee.

The Briefing Note indicated that Community Safety Partnerships (CSP) are
required to develop an overarching Community Safety Partnership Plan under the
Crime and Disorder Act 1998. The Plan provides an overview of the work and
priority areas that fall under the responsibility of the CSP. The Plan is intended to
focus upon those issues of most concern to residents, that cause the most harm to
communities and require a coordinated approach to deliver lasting change.

A 12 week public consultation period on the development of the Plan had
commenced on 10 July, 2024. A list of stakeholders invited to participate in the

—4-—

Page 8



consultation was appended to the report. Workshops were also held by sub-
groups of the Police and Crime Board to obtain the views of partners and other
stakeholders. A summary of the Office of the Police Crime Commissioner (OPCC)
priorities was also appended to the report.

The Briefing Note detailed the outcome of the 696 responses received from the
Council's consultation (Crime Survey) and indicated that one of the main emerging
themes is that residents generally feel safer during the daytime than at night in
Coventry. Other emerging key issues were concerns with Environmental Anti
Social Behaviour (ASB), ASB, vehicle crime and drug offences.

Workshops were undertaken with stakeholders and various partners who reviewed
the findings of the Strategic Assessment and gave their professional perspective
on what considerations should be in the Community Safety Partnership Plan.
These workshops were organised in the theme of Place, Victim and Offender.
Some of the key themes emerging from these workshops included lack of
resources being a challenge and the need to support vulnerable people and
protect them from exploitation. The partners felt improvements could be made by
improving multi-agency networks, engaging with communities and making it easier
to report crime. They also felt that there was a need to provide more information
on success stories.

Good practice guidance recommends that Community Safety Partnerships
consider various aspects of crime. The primary elements of a crime include the
victim, offender, and location. Analysing crime from this perspective assists
partners in pooling resources to set priorities and allocate resources effectively to
reduce crime and disorder in their area. The Plan therefore addresses the
following three key themes:

e The reduction of Offending, Re-Offending and Serious Organised Crime:

e Public Place Safety and Reassurance; and

e Tackling Exploitation and Protecting Victims of Crime.

It is proposed that under these themes, a range of priorities will be developed
based on the feedback from the consultation.

Feedback was sought from the Committee to further develop the Plan. A survey
has also been developed for Members to complete so that the results can be
integrated into the Plan, a copy of which was appended to the report. The
Committee noted that the full set of results and recommendations for the Plan will
be submitted to Cabinet on the 18" March 2025.

The Committee asked questions, sought information and assurances and made
comments on a number of issues, including:-

e The inclusion of faith groups in the list of stakeholders. It was noted
that consultation with the Faith Group Alliance and Street Pastors had
taken place

e Work undertaken with a range of communities was welcomed

e Police resources in Coventry, including deployment of officers in the
city centre

e Priorities in the City, particularly in relation to Domestic Abuse and
violence against women and girls

o Page 9



e Parking on kerbs

e Work undertaken in relation to ensuring the consultation was far
reaching, and ways this may be improved in the future, including
consulting with the BID and local businesses outside of the city centre

Chief Inspector Hamir was thanked for his attendance and contribution to the
meeting.

RESOLVED that the Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee:-

1) Note the consultation questions and responses provided at
Appendix 3.

2) Note that all Members will be provided with an opportunity to
respond and contribute to the consultation process.

3) Note that Cabinet will consider the Plan at their meeting on the
18t March 2025.

4) Request that that future consultation includes the BID and
businesses outside of the city centre.
65. Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee Work Programme and Outstanding Issues

2024/25

The Committee considered and noted their Work Programme and outstanding
issues for 2024/25.

66. Any Other Items of Urgent Public Business

There were no other items of urgent public business.

(Meeting closed at 2.05 pm)

Page 10



Agenda ltem 4a
e
P,
2
Coventry City Council Process Note

To: Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee
Date: 21 January 2025

Subject: The Call-in Procedure

1 Purpose of the Note

1.1 Atits meeting on 21 January, the Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee will consider
two call-ins related to decisions made by the Cabinet Member City Services at the
meeting of 9 December 2024.

1.2 This Process Note summarises the provisions in the call-in process which are set
out in the Council’'s Constitution and the options open to the Scrutiny Co-ordination
Committee at its meeting.

Information and Background

2.1 The Council’s Constitution includes the right for Members that are not Cabinet
Members to look at and consider issues decided by the Cabinet or any Cabinet
Member subject to certain limitations. This procedure is called call-in and is set out
in the Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Part 3E) of the Council’s Constitution.

2.2 A minimum of three Members must identify the specific decision to which the call-in
relates, give a written reason for the call-in and submit their request within the
timescale set out in the constitution. Once it has been determined that a call-in is
appropriate, it is scheduled for consideration at the next appropriate meeting of the
Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee or Board.

2.3 The call-ins that are the subject of this meeting, the decisions to which they relate
and the relevant papers have been circulated with the agenda for the meeting.

3 Matters for the Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee to consider

3.1 Atleast one of the Members who called in the decision must attend and speak at
the meeting. If none of the Members attend, the call-in will fail unless the
Committee decides that the matter can be referred to a subsequent meeting when
at least one Member can attend or that the call-in can be considered in their
absence.

3.2 Once it has heard from the Members who have called the decision in, the Scrutiny
Co-ordination Committee will consider the decisions called in and will have access

Page 11



to the information which has been submitted to the Cabinet Member. Members can
ask guestions about the issue of the relevant Cabinet Member and appropriate
employees who have been invited to the meeting.

3.3 The Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee does not have the authority to make
decisions or overturn the decision made by the Cabinet Member. The options open
to the Committee are:

a) to accept the original decision of the Cabinet Member.
b) to make recommendations to the Cabinet Member to amend a decision.

4 Next Steps

4.1 If the Committee accepts the original decision of the Cabinet Member (option a), the
decision becomes effective immediately.

4.2 If the Committee makes recommendations to the Cabinet Member (option b), the
recommendations made by Scrutiny will be considered by the Cabinet Member at a
future meeting.

4.3 If the Cabinet Member accepts the recommendation, the decision becomes
effective immediately.

4.4 If the Cabinet Member disagrees with the recommendation to amend a decision
they will inform the Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee. In such circumstances, the
Scrutiny Coordination Committee may refer the matter to the Council for decision
on the dispute.

4.5 If the Cabinet or Cabinet Member decides further work needs to be done, they may
defer the item for this to be carried out.

Adrian West
Head of Governance
adrian.west@coventry.gov.uk

Page 12


mailto:adrian.west@coventry.gov.uk

Agenda Item 4b
-

L/ o
2 Call-in Briefing Note

Coventry City Council Public

To: Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee Date: 21 January 2025

Subject: Binley Cycleway — Section 7 (Clifford Bridge Road)

Introduction

1  The decision which is the subject of the Call-ins and the reason for Call-ins

1.1 The decision taken by the Cabinet Member for City Services on 09 December 2024
to approve the construction of Section 7 — Clifford Bridge Road cycleway has been
called in.

1.2 Two call-ins were received, the reasons given for the call-ins, which have been
validated, were as follows:

Councillors J Blundell, M Lapsa and T Sawdon:

e “The report fails to take account of a key safety report which is omitted from
the report”.

e “The report contains misleading information regarding the health of the
trees”.

e “The report does not give sufficient weight and fails to evaluate and cost the
alternative routes as set out in the report”.

Councillors R Thay, F Abbott and A Hopkins:

e “There has been no consideration of any disability reports. Sight of these
reports has not been forthcoming, and freedom of information requests have
not been fulfilled. A decision cannot be made without a disability
assessment”. (It has been clarified that this relates to the outcome of
consultation with disability groups and their views)”.

e “The report does not sufficiently evidence that residents’ concerns have been
resolved, particularly considering residents at the meeting were saying that
their concerns had not been resolved to their satisfaction and issues remain
at specific properties along the road”. (It has been clarified that this relates to
the ability of people at specific properties to have safe access to and from
their drives).

Page 13



2 Background to the decision

2.1 The Cabinet Member for City Services considered a report on 09 December 2024
entitled ‘Binley Cycleway — Section 7 (Clifford Bridge Road)’

2.2 At the meeting, the Cabinet Member for City Services was recommended to:

1) Note progress in response to the recommendations made within the 15
November 2023 Binley Cycleway — Section 7 (Clifford Bridge Road) report.

2) Consider the responses, representations and objections to the Tree Felling
Notices, Notice of Proposal and Notices of Intent.

3) Consider the petitioners concerns relating to the proposed cycleway and tree
felling.

4) Subject to recommendations 1), 2) and 3), approve the construction of
Section 7 — Clifford Bridge Road cycleway.

2.3 The Cabinet Member for City Services approved all four of the above
recommendations.

2.4 The Cabinet Member for City Services has considered and approved two previous
reports on Binley Cycleway, including Section 7 (Clifford Bridge Road), they were:

e Cabinet Member for City Services Report: 20 October 2021 - Binley
Cycleway — Scheme part-approval, way forward and petition responses.

e Cabinet Member for City Services Report: 15 November 2023 - Binley
Cycleway — Section 7 (Clifford Bridge Road).

3 Material facts relating to the specific reasons for these Call-ins
3.1 Safety report

To ensure safe design, the scheme has been designed in accordance with national
design standards, been subject to an externally led design review and a Stage 1
Road Safety Audit has been undertaken. These documents are either publicly
available or have been provided to members of the public, and the documents are
referenced within the 09 December 2024 Binley Cycleway — Section 7 (Clifford
Bridge Road) report.

A Stage 2 Road Safety Audit (RSA) will be undertaken prior to construction
commencing. The RSA2 will be completed by an external company and any
recommendations raised in the RSA2 will be considered and responded to by the
Council’s design team.

The Strategic Lead for Policy and Innovation has Delegated Authority to approve or
reject the Designers Response to the RSA. The process the Council is following is

Page 14



3.2

3.3

a standard and best practice approach nationally and is no different to that followed
for every other significant transport scheme within the Council’s capital programme.

It should be noted, collisions involving personal injury have significantly reduced
across the previously completed sections of Binley Cycleway.

The Cabinet Member for City Services Report: 09 December 2024 - Binley
Cycleway — Section 7 (Clifford Bridge Road) covers these items within paragraphs
2.1, 2.6, other useful documents section and Appendix D (Responses,
Representations and Objections Summary Report). In addition, at the meeting the
Head of Public Realm and the Strategic Lead for Policy and Innovation responded
to a number of questions raised by Councillors and members of the public invited to
speak by the Cabinet Member for City Services on a wide range of safety-related
issues and made the RSA processes clear to those attending the meeting.

Health of trees

The removal of up to 26 trees is necessary to implement the proposed cycleway
along Clifford Bridge Road. The decision to remove trees is never taken lightly and
for this reason the removal of trees has been minimised by narrowing and
realigning the proposed cycleway, and trees of significant value have been retained
as part of the scheme. As part of the plans, the Council has completed a
comprehensive risk assessment, and the Urban Forestry Team have assessed the
trees. Members of this team are highly experienced, fully qualified and have the
required knowledge to undertake and understand the assessment. This
assessment concluded that some of the trees are at risk of disease and are highly
likely to die in the medium term. Additionally, other trees have a limited remaining
usable life, limited amenity value and will need to be replaced in the medium term,
with or without the cycleway. Therefore, it is wise to replace them as part of this
scheme. The number of new semi-mature trees will be more than those removed,
and the new high amenity value trees will be planted in purpose-built root protection
systems, giving the trees the right conditions to thrive. This approach will provide
ecological benefits, in excess of and earlier, than if the Council waited for the trees
at risk of disease to fail and then replaced when required.

The Cabinet Member for City Services Report: 09 December 2024 - Binley
Cycleway — Section 7 (Clifford Bridge Road) covers these items within paragraphs
2.1, 2.4, 6.5 and Appendix D (Responses, Representations and Objections
Summary Report). In addition, at the meeting the Director of City Services and
Commercial responded to several questions relating to the trees raised by
Councillors and members of the public invited to speak by the Cabinet Member for
City Services, covering a range of issues including the health of the trees including
those affected by ash die-back.

Alternative routes

Alternative routes have been assessed as part of the development and design of
Binley Cycleway.

Page 15



Alternative routes were first analysed as part of the development of the West
Midlands Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (WM LCWIP) published in
2019.

Further analysis was carried out as part of the Binley Cycleway Full Business Case
submitted to and approved by the West Midlands Combined Authority (WMCA) in
2021. An additional Business Justification Case, for Clifford Bridge Road, was
approved by WMCA in December 2024. Both business cases analysed alternative
routes and both business cases had positive benefit cost ratios for the preferred
option along Clifford Bridge Road.

The funding for Binley Cycleway, including Clifford Bridge Road, is external capital
grant funding and can only be spent on the cycleway and not revenue type activities
such as highway maintenance. A detailed costing exercise cannot be completed
without investing significant costs into commissioning surveys, technical
assessments and detailed design work, as the funding bodies have indicated that
they would not support the funding being used to deliver the alternative route
options put forward, the costing exercise would need to be funded by the Council.

Alternatives were analysed as part of the 15 November 2023 and 09 December
2024 Binley Cycleway — Section 7 (Clifford Bridge Road) reports. The alternative
routes include:

Hipswell Highway / Farren Road
Sowe Valley (various options)
Bridgeacre Gardens

Coombe Park Road.

External bodies who specialise in active travel (cycling) have formally assessed
Clifford Bridge Road and alternative routes using their option appraisal tools. The
outcome of the Active Travel England (ATE) formal assessment of Clifford Bridge
Road and alternative routes was to support the Council to proceed with the option
of a segregated cycleway along Clifford Bridge Road. The outcome of the Transport
for West Midlands (TfWM) and their specialist consultant’s formal assessment, of
Clifford Bridge Road and alternative routes, scored Clifford Bridge Road as the
preferred route.

The Clifford Bridge Road section is forecast to have the largest increase in cyclist
numbers as it is the most viable and beneficial option for achieving the goals of
improved connectivity, safety, and accessibility for cyclists in the area. Using a
Department for Transport model, the expected daily average number of cyclists
who will use it once it has been constructed, is 204. The Clifford Bridge Road
section will also likely increase cyclist numbers on other completed sections of
Binley Cycleway.

For the reasons set out in the Cabinet Member for City Services Report: 09
December 2024 - Binley Cycleway — Section 7 (Clifford Bridge Road), paragraphs
2.1,2.7-2.14,5.1, the executive summary and Appendices D (Responses,
Representations and Objections Summary Report), F (Independent Route Options

Page 16



3.4

Review), G (ATE letter and DRP findings) and H (Sowe Valley flood zone data and
photographs), alternative routes were discounted, and Clifford Bridge Road was
identified as the preferred route. At the meeting, representatives from ATE and
TfWM set out the role that their respective organisations had played, as funding
agencies, in the assessment of the business case, including scheme options, and
provided their views on the alternative options based on audits and site visits that
they had conducted. The representatives also, along with the Head of Public Realm
and the Strategic Lead for Policy and Innovation, responded to questions raised by
Councillors and members of the public invited to speak by the Cabinet Member for
City Services relating to alternative routes that had been considered during the
business case and scheme development process.

Disability reports and assessment

The safety of all road users, including those with additional need is paramount and
has been considered. For this reason, an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) was
undertaken for the scheme. The EIA is appended to this briefing note as Appendix
A.

The July 2023 consultation employed a mixed approach to engage local residents
and businesses. This included:

« Widespread distribution: 1,200 copies of "Street News" were delivered to
local homes or businesses.

e Public meetings: A well-attended public meeting with 140 participants
facilitated open dialogue and feedback.

o Accessibility: A drop-in session, attended by 100 people, offered a less
formal opportunity for engagement.

e Online engagement: A "Let's Talk" online survey, supported by dedicated
email and phone contact options, ensured accessibility for those unable to
attend in-person events.

Various stakeholder groups were specifically invited to participate in these activities.
While the survey maintained respondent anonymity, 9.9% of respondents self-
identified as disabled. This indicates that the consultation successfully captured the
perspectives of disabled users and relevant groups.

In addition to the July 2023 consultation, the Council engaged with the Access
Development Group through the 'Let's Talk' online survey, launched in September
2020. Due to COVID restrictions in place in 2020, no in-person meetings were held.

Responses to Freedom of Information (FOI) requests were responded to on 07
November 2024 and 10 December 2024, subsequent follow-up responses were
responded to promptly by Officers.

In November 2024 an online meeting took place between Officers and
representatives from the Guide Dogs for the Blind Association, no formal report was
taken from the meeting. Items raised at the meeting did lead to minor detailed
design changes such as additional tactile paving at junctions.

Page 17



The Councils highly experienced Design Team are fully qualified and utilise best
practices, including Local Transport Note (LTN) 1/20, Inclusive Mobility, Manual for
Streets and other relevant highway design documents, to ensure all schemes meet
required safety and accessibility standards.

This includes specific considerations for vulnerable and disabled users, informed by
their training and consultation with relevant organisations. All Design Team members
attend ATE webinar training sessions monthly which focus on active travel and the
latest improvements to the transport sector, and in 2024 attended site visits with the
Thomas Pocklington Trust to discuss challenges faced by visually and mobility
impaired users negotiating bus stop bypasses and floating bus stops.

The Team has regular contact and design reviews with TT'WM and ATE. They have
worked closely with specialist consultants who are advisors to ATE and developed
LTN1/20 guidance. The final design will comply with all legislation and guidance,
including the Equality Act 2010.

A Stage 1 RSA, in accordance with GG119 Road Safety Audit Standards, has been
undertaken on the scheme, GG119 specifies auditors must consider the safety of all
road users including vulnerable users. As stated in paragraph 3.1, the RSA2 will be
completed by an external company.

A route check has been completed by ATE and a joint design review panel with
TfWM and ATE, these checks and reviews include assessment and metrics to
ensure designers fully consider and account for the needs of all users including those
with a disability.

The Cabinet Member for City Services Report: 09 December 2024 - Binley
Cycleway — Section 7 (Clifford Bridge Road) covers these items within paragraphs
1.4,1.7, 2.2, 3.0, 6.4, other useful documents section and Appendices D
(Responses, Representations and Objections Summary Report) and G (ATE letter
and DRP findings). The Head of Public Realm also responded to questions raised
by Councillors and members of the public invited to speak at the meeting by the
Cabinet Member for City Services on this subject.

3.5 Resident concerns

The section of cycleway along Clifford Bridge Road has been subject to four
specific rounds of consultation and engagement, the first of which was held in 2021
focussed on a fully segregated cycleway, the second held between September
2022 and January 2023 based on a revised design, the third, in July 2023, focussed
on an alternative shared use path design in response to feedback on the first two
rounds of engagement, and the fourth, in January 2024, focussed on a segregated
route complying with the core 7 principles recommended in the 15 November 2023
Cabinet Member for City Services, Binley Cycleway — Section 7 (Clifford Bridge
Road) report.

Page 18



The 7 core principles considered items raised through consultation and petitions
heard within the report. One of the core principles was that appropriate visibility be
maintained for vehicles exiting side roads and driveways. Following the November
Cabinet Member meeting and 18 January 2024 public meeting, Officers committed
to working with all households individually along the route to make access to
driveways as safe as possible and advised any future concerns would be picked up
from RSAs.

Officers understand that residents have concerns and have engaged directly with
many residents to discuss the project's potential localised impacts. Through 2024,
Officers have responded to a significantly high number of emails and other forms of
correspondence on the scheme, with the majority of these coming from people
living on or directly off Clifford Bridge Road. Officers have also visited residents and
businesses to discuss specific individual property related concerns and queries they
may have with the final design.

While concerns have been addressed and responded to, Officers recognise that
certain residents remain apprehensive about the safety of reversing manoeuvres
and the potential impact on boundary walls. It is important to emphasise that the
visibility issues when reversing exist with the current road layout and are not solely
attributable to the proposed cycle lane. It should also be noted on average 54
cyclists currently use Clifford Bridge Road daily, of these, it is worth noting that
around a third cycle on the footway. Over the last 5 years (04/12/2019 —
03/12/2024) there have been zero collisions, involving personal injury, between
drivers accessing or egressing their driveways and cyclists travelling along the
footway.

Officers have carefully considered these concerns and will continue to engage with
residents throughout the detailed design process. Furthermore, the RSA process
will continue to be followed to identify and mitigate any potential safety risks,
including those related to driveway access and egress. As stated in paragraph 3.1,
the RSA2 will be completed by an external company.

As with all transport projects, every individual’s concern may not be fully alleviated,
however, Officers have been and are still committed to working with residents to
find solutions that balance their needs with the wider benefits of improved cycling
infrastructure.

The Cabinet Member for City Services Report: 09 December 2024 - Binley
Cycleway — Section 7 (Clifford Bridge Road) covers these items within paragraphs
1.72,1.7.3,1.9,1.11,2.1, 2.2,2.3, 2.5, 2.12 and Appendix D (Responses,
Representations and Objections Summary Report). Again, the Head of Public
Realm and Strategic Lead for Policy and Innovation responded to a range of
guestions raised by Councillors and members of the public invited to speak by the
Cabinet Member for City Services on a range of issues at the meeting.

Page 19



Briefing Note author
Name and job title: Mark O’Connell, Head of Public Realm
Directorate: City Services and Commercial

Email: mark.oconnell@coventry.gov.uk

Page 20


mailto:mark.oconnell@coventry.gov.uk

Agenda Item 4c

%%
7
Coventry City Council

Public report
Cabinet Member

Cabinet Member for City Services 09 December 2024
Name of Cabinet Member:

Cabinet Member for City Services — Councillor P Hetherton

Director approving submission of the report:
Director of City Services and Commercial

Ward(s) affected:
Wyken

Title:
Binley Cycleway — Section 7 (Clifford Bridge Road)

Is this a key decision?

No

Executive summary:

Binley Cycleway, including a section along Clifford Bridge Road, was identified as a
strategic cycle route connecting Coventry City Centre with the University Hospital Coventry
and Warwickshire (UHCW) via Binley Business Park within the West Midlands Local
Walking and Cycling Infrastructure Plan (WM LCWIP). Funding to construct the Cycleway
was secured from the West Midlands Combined Authority (WMCA) and Active Travel
England (ATE) from the Transforming Cities Fund, Active Travel Fund Tranche 2, Active
Travel Fund 3 and Active Travel Fund 4.

Most of the Binley Cycleway has been completed, including the additional section, funded
through Active Travel Fund 4, connecting Allard Way to the New Century Park residential
estate. The remaining section to be completed is along Clifford Bridge Road, between its

junction with B4027 Brinklow Road and its junction with Dorchester Way.

This remaining section of the Cycleway has been subject to four specific rounds of
consultation and engagement, the first of which was held in 2021 focussed on a fully
segregated cycleway, the second held between September 2022 and January 2023 based
on a revised design, the third, in July 2023, focussed on an alternative shared use path
design in response to feedback on the first two rounds of engagement, and the fourth, in
January 2024, focussed on a segregated route complying with the core 7 principles
recommended in the November 2023 Cabinet Member Report for Section 7 — Clifford
Bridge Road. The final scheme design has been reviewed by ATE and Transport for West
Midlands (TfWM).

Page 21



Following the November 2023 Cabinet Member Report, the engagement in January 2024
and advertisement of associated Notice of Proposals (NOP), Notices of Intent (NOI) and
Tree Felling Notices (TFN); 2 petitions, 1 relating to the proposed Cycleway and 1 relating
to the tree felling, have been submitted, with 178 representations received across all the
Notices.

Details of both petitions and the representations are contained within the main body of the
report.

The scheme has generated a lot of public interest, which is why four rounds of engagement
have been held whilst developing the proposals, and a wide range of views have been
expressed. These include the identification of alternative routes that could be taken for the
Cycleway, avoiding this section of Clifford Bridge Road, and comments on detailed aspects
of the scheme design, such as the impact upon car parking, access to driveways and side
roads, pedestrian safety, vehicle speeds, access to the Hospital, and the need to deliver
high quality cycle routes to encourage cycling. These issues are considered in detail within
the main report. The final scheme proposals respond to these key items whilst achieving
the objective of delivering a high-quality cycle route linking the Hospital area with Binley,
which will complete the Binley Cycleway.

Once Section 7 — Clifford Bridge Road is complete, the full Binley Cycleway will provide a
spine route from which further routes can link, with future route options including Hipswell
Highway, a connection to Coombe Abbey Park, and a link through Binley to Willenhall and
the cycleway along London Road, the first section of which is currently under construction.
This section of cycleway is therefore part of a wider network that is being developed that
will link residential areas with key employment sites, education and healthcare facilities, and
transport interchanges and will encourage more local journeys to be made by active and
sustainable travel in line with adopted transport and climate change strategies.

Subject to approval the intention would be to construct Section 7 during 2025.
Recommendations:
The Cabinet Member for City Services is recommended to:

1) Note progress in response to the recommendations made within the 15 November
2023 Binley Cycleway — Section 7 (Clifford Bridge Road) report.

2) Consider the responses, representations and objections to the Tree Felling Notices,
Notice of Proposal and Notices of Intent.

3) Consider the petitioners concerns relating to the proposed cycleway and tree felling.

4) Subject to recommendations 1), 2) and 3), approve the construction of Section 7 —
Clifford Bridge Road cycleway.

Page 22



List of Appendices included:

Appendix A — Proposed trees to be felled

Appendix B — Proposed controlled crossings, raised junctions and waiting restrictions
Appendix C — Proposed change in speed limit

Appendix D — Responses, representations and objections summary report

Appendix E - Scheme design for Clifford Bridge Road Cycleway

Appendix F — Independent route options review

Appendix G — Active Travel England letter and Design Review Panel findings
Appendix H — Sowe Valley flood zone data and photographs

Background papers:

e Cabinet Report: 15 November 2022 — Coventry Transport Strategy

e City Services Cabinet Report: 20 October 2021 - Binley Cycleway — Scheme part-
approval, way forward and petition responses

e City Services Cabinet Report: 15 November 2023 - Binley Cycleway — Section 7
(Clifford Bridge Road).

Other useful documents:

WMCA Board — A Common Approach to Cycling and Walking in the West Midlands
Sustrans - Bike Life West Midlands Report

Local Transport Note 1/20 Cycle Infrastructure Design

Transport for London - Bus stop bypass safety review 2024

Has it or will it be considered by Scrutiny?
No

Has it or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory Panel, or
other body?

No
Will this report go to Council?

No

Page 23



Report title: Binley Cycleway — Section 7 (Clifford Bridge Road)
1. Context (or background)

1.1.Binley Cycleway was identified as a strategic cycle route connecting Coventry city
centre with UHCW via Binley Business Park within the WM LCWIP published in 2019.
The WM LCWIP recognised that cycling levels in the city, and across the West
Midlands, are currently significantly below those of many other metropolitan areas and
core cities across the UK and recognised a need for a clear and defined ambition to
raise cycling levels, and the commitment and will to deliver this change. This ambition is
in line with Government policy as set out in the Gear Change document published in
2020, and subsequently enshrined in Government’s establishment of Active Travel
England (ATE) as a government body aimed at promoting active travel modes, notably
walking and cycling.

1.2.Cycling has an important role to play in addressing the challenges the city and region
face, which include reducing congestion, carbon and pollution, supporting economic
growth and employment, tackling obesity and creating places where people want to
live, work, learn, shop and do business. Cycling offers an affordable, convenient and
low-cost travel option to access jobs, education and leisure opportunities, particularly
for people without access to cars. One in three households in Coventry do not have
access to a car. Investment in high quality cycle routes is a priority set out in the
Coventry Transport Strategy which was approved by the City Council in December
2022. In a compact city such as Coventry, cycling has clear potential to become a
preferred choice for local journeys within the city, but survey evidence shows that a
major deterrent to cycling is the need to cycle on busy roads amongst the traffic. The
aim of providing a core network of fully segregated cycle routes is to remove this
deterrent by ensuring that cyclists have their own dedicated space separated from
pedestrians and traffic on busy routes.

1.3. Funding to construct the Cycleway was secured from WMCA and ATE from the
Transforming Cities Fund, Active Travel Fund Tranche 2, Active Travel Fund 3, and
Active Travel Fund 4.

1.4. Public consultation was initially held in two phases due to the length of the scheme. The
first phase took place in September and October 2020, and the second phase in March
and April 2021. In response to consultation feedback, design amendments were made
to the scheme and in October 2021, a report outlining these amendments was
considered by the Cabinet Member for City Services. Approval was given for the
construction to proceed on the Gulson Road to Brinklow Road and Dorchester Way to
UHCW sections of the scheme. These sections and the Allard Way to the New Century
Park section (for which funding was subsequently secured) are now complete and fully
open for use.

1.5. The remaining section (section 7) of the route, along Clifford Bridge Road between
Brinklow Road and Dorchester Way, is a key component of the Binley Road Cycle
Scheme, which will provide a segregated cycleway and pedestrian footpath for safe and
convenient active travel. The scheme also includes improvements such as a signalised
crossing, enhancing safety and accessibility for pedestrians and cyclists while
managing vehicular traffic flow.

Page 24



1.6. Section 7 has been subject to several rounds of consultation and engagement, initially
in 2021 then, following scheme amendments in response to comments received, in
September 2022 then, in response to feedback on the first two rounds of engagement,
in July 2023 and finally focussing on the core 7 principles recommended in the
November 2023 Cabinet Member Report, in January 2024. The final scheme design
has also been reviewed by ATE and TfWM.

1.7. A report was presented to the Cabinet Member for City Services meeting on 15
November 2023 on Binley Cycleway — Section 7 (Clifford Bridge Road). This report set
out five recommendations which were approved by the Cabinet Member for City

Services.

1.7.1. Recommendation 1 was to note the July 2023 consultation feedback as
captured within the consultation report.

The Cabinet Member for City Services noted the consultation feedback at the
meeting.

1.7.2. Recommendation 2 requested a review of the scheme was undertaken,
incorporating 7 core principles, and considered items raised through
consultation and petitions heard within the report. The core principles were:

That there is an identified need for a high-quality cycle route on the eastern
side of the city connecting local communities with key facilities such as the
Hospital and the Binley Business Park.

That the carriageway width of Clifford Bridge Road needs to be maintained
at its current width, recognising that it will remain a two-lane single
carriageway road.

That the pedestrian and cycle infrastructure should be provided at a
standard that is LTN1/20 compliant as the default position, maintaining
segregation of pedestrians and cyclists from each other and from traffic,
with any exceptions to this standard requiring robust justification.

That no parking capacity should be removed along this section of Clifford
Bridge Road.

That appropriate visibility be maintained for vehicles exiting side roads and
driveways.

That community concerns about wider transport issues such as overspill
parking from the school or the Hospital, vehicle speeds, and HGV traffic
levels be addressed as part of standard City Council processes for such
matters alongside the delivery of a revised scheme.

That the impact on existing landscaped areas and trees be minimised or
sufficiently offset

Following the meeting Officers considered all the core principles. They have
been included within the final design, with the wider transport issues, such as
Average Speed Enforcement (ASE), being considered as part of other
programmes.

Page 25



1.7.3. Recommendation 3 agreed a public meeting be arranged to share the revised
scheme design.

A public meeting was held at Wyken Community Association on 18 January
2024, at the meeting a final design layout was shared adhering to all of the 7
core principles.

1.7.4. Recommendation 4 approved, following the public meeting, the advertising of
Traffic Regulation Orders (TROSs) for the revised scheme.

Since the public meeting, Officers have undertaken surveys and visited
residents and businesses to discuss specific individual property related
concerns and queries they may have with the final design. Officers have
listened to the points made and are now working through them as part of the
detailed design process. The detailed design process has not and will not
materially change the layout presented at the public meeting. As stated in
paragraph 1.8, Notices were advertised on 08 August 2024.

1.7.5. Recommendation 5 requested the investigation of a Residential Parking
Scheme, a reduction in speed limit and introduction of Average Speed
Enforcement, and the introduction of an HGV restriction on Clifford Bridge
Road.

As set out in the November report these are being considered under the
relevant Traffic Management and Road Safety processes for inclusion in the
future capital programme subject to the outcome of investigation and
prioritisation.

1.8.0n 08 August 2024, the Notice of Proposals (for new waiting restrictions and a change
of speed limit from 40mph to 30mph), Notices of Intent (for 3 raised tables, a new puffin
crossing and an existing crossing to be made a TOUCAN crossing) and Tree Felling
Notices (TFN) were advertised. The statutory 21-day objection period for the Notice of
Proposals (NOP) and Notices of Intent (NOI) was initially due to end on 29 August 2024
and 05 September 2024 for the TFN. These were extended to 12 September 2024
following concerns from residents. As part of the statutory process, the NOP & NOIs
were advertised in the local press and the documents were available on deposit; in
addition, as acknowledged as good practice notices were also prominently displayed at
appropriate heights on lamp columns and trees in the affected area. The Council
provided additional notifications, in the form of a Street News and letter drops to ensure
local residents were aware of the Notices.

1.9. The responses, representations and objections summary report is included as
Appendix D. The representations fall within five key themes, these being:

e Safety concerns

e Alternative solutions, necessity, and effectiveness of the proposals
e Lack of consultation and community engagement

e Environmental impact

e Impact on residents



1.10.

1.11.

Within Section 2 of the report, options considered and recommended proposal, Table 1
summarises the representations raised during the consultation, and the response to
these topics.

In April 2024 Petitions e44/23 and 32/23 — Petition against the Clifford Bridge Road
Cycle Lane Development were submitted to the Council. The petitions bear 1510
signatures (paper petition 32/23, 1420 signatures, e-petition e44/23, 90 signatures)
and were sponsored by Councillor F Abbott, a Wyken Ward Councillor.

The Petition specifically petitioned to “move this development to a safer route. All
three planning proposals that were presented for the Clifford Bridge cycle lane section
have been found unsafe in the eyes of the public. The design approach does not
adhere to the correct standards in order to provide safety for all of the road users
(disabled users, children walking to school, cyclists and residents). This development
will create hazards and will highly impact the safety of all the people using Clifford
Bridge Road. This route is used to divert traffic from A46 which often creates
increased traffic and blockage in the area. This street will be severely challenged and
there will be multiple safety concerns around parking spaces, navigation, visibility at
junctions and access for intervention vehicles. The research data that sits at the base
of this cycle lane proposal is based on a report that was conducted during the
pandemic when everyone walked or cycled due to restrictions. There was no user
analysis and road safety audit conducted prior to developing a cycle lane proposal on
such a congested road, that has its challenges as it is. Moving forward, we demand
this development to be moved and redesigned in another area in order to keep all of
the users safe and to prioritise the needs and wellbeing of residents".

Most concerns raised in Petitions e44/23 and 32/23 cover the same concerns raised in
the Petition 09/23 - Petition against Clifford Bridge Road Cycle Lane development, for
example:

e Both request that the Cycleway be moved to a different route.

e Both state the design is unsafe and will create hazards.

e Both state the design approach does not adhere to the correct standards to
provide safety for all the road users.

e Both state the scheme will cause traffic congestion.

e Both state there are multiple safety concerns around parking spaces, navigation,
visibility at junctions and access for emergency vehicles.

¢ Both demand the scheme is moved and redesigned in another area.

All these concerns were considered within the 15 November 2023 Binley Cycleway —
Section 7 (Clifford Bridge Road) report, attached as a background paper, and
addressed within the presentation and final design presented at the 18 January 2024
public meeting. Officers responded at the November and January meetings, advising
of the following:

e That the road width would be maintained in the revised design scheme.

Page 27



¢ Visibility would be maintained or improved by moving the cycleway to a
segregated facility.

e The level of parking would be maintained and residents would have like for like
access and would feel safe using the parking.

e Officers would work with all households individually along the route to make
access to driveways as safe as possible.

e The further review of the scheme, incorporating core principles, would be
addressed through the City Council’s standard programmes including the
petitions scheme.

e Any future concerns would be picked up from Road Safety Audits.

e A public meeting would be arranged with residents to share the revised scheme
design prior to the advertising of the Traffic Regulation Orders.

e Signage for cyclists would be investigated.

1.12. In addition, in August 2024 Petition e17/24-25 - Save the trees on Clifford Bridge
Road was launched. The petition, sponsored by Councillors F Abbott and J Blundell,
was signed by 4273 people. It petitioned to “save the 26 established trees lining
Clifford Bridge Road between Mill Lane and the roundabout leading to the B4082
from being cut down. Some of the trees on Clifford Bridge Road are over 150 years
old and there is a mixture of species each with their own eco system housing various
wildlife. The trees take up particle pollution, carbon and drink hundreds of gallons of
water saving some homes on the slope from flooding. Oak trees on the road have
preservation orders. The council initially told residents that some trees were
diseased. When proven wrong, they decided they were stressed and now they say
they have no longevity. All of the trees on Clifford Bridge Road have between one
hundred and six hundred years of life left in them if left to flourish. The council intend
to replant young trees, that none of us alive today will see mature in to fully grown
trees. Please help us SAVE THE TREES and sign the petition. Coventry City Council
have signed up to Net O over the coming years. Felling healthy trees is exactly the
opposite of being green. The council have decided to remove the trees to make way
for a 2 lane cycleway. We ask that this is either re designed (saving the trees) or a
more less destructive route is found”.

1.13. Within Section 2 of the report, options considered and recommended proposal,
responses to the abovementioned petitions are provided.

2. Option considered and recommended proposal.

2.1. 98 of the 178 responses, representations and objections received were related to the
advertised NOP, NOI and TFN combined, with 80 solely regarding the TFEN. It's
important to note that a significant portion of the responses, representations,
objections pertained to the cycle scheme, which has already had its own distinct
consultation process. These have been categorised within five key themes set out in
Table 1. The full response, representation and objection summary report is included
as Appendix D to the report.

Page 28



Category

Summary

Response

Safety concerns

e Traffic congestion and
conflicts

e Junction and driveway
visibility

e Cyclist safety at
night

e Emergency vehicle
access

e Vulnerable road
users

The safety of all road users is paramount
and has been considered. For example:

The scheme has been designed to the
relevant design standards and guidance
such as LTN 1/20, Inclusive Mobility and
Manual for Streets 2.

Stage 1 and Stage 2 Road Safety Audits, in
accordance with GG119, have been
undertaken on the scheme.

Collisions that have resulted in personal
injury (PIC) have significantly reduced
across the previously completed sections of
Binley Cycleway. The total number of PICs
have reduced from 33 in the 3 years prior to
the scheme being opened to 12 post
scheme opening. PICs involving cyclists
have reduced from 9 to 3. Further analysis
of PIC data is within paragraph 2.6.

A joint design review panel with TTWM and
ATE has been completed on the scheme.

An Equality Impact Assessment has been
undertaken.

Alternative
solutions,
necessity and
effectiveness of
proposals

e Low usage and

e Data accuracy
e Lack of

alternative routes

consideration for
alternatives

Officers have thoroughly considered
alternative routes and utilised the best
available data to inform decision-making.

The proposed Binley Cycleway extension
represents the most viable and beneficial
option for achieving the goals of improved
connectivity, safety, and accessibility for
cyclists in the area.

Between March and June this year, the
average number of cyclists seen on a
typical weekday on Clifford Bridge Road
was 54.

Daily averages vary along the completed
sections of Binley cycleway from 175
(closest to Binley Business Park) to 401
(closest to the city centre). On average this
a 125% increase from pre-scheme counts.

Page 29




It should be noted that as the complete
scheme is unfinished and does not yet form
part of a wider network of similar cycleways,
these numbers do not represent the
maximum that can be achieved.

For the Clifford Bridge Road section of the
scheme specifically, the Council’s current
estimate of the expected daily average
number of cyclists who will use it once it has
been constructed, is 204. This has been
calculated using a model provided by the
Department for Transport (DfT).

Lack of
consultation and
community
engagement

Inadequate
consultation
Dismissed
concerns

Lack of
communication

A significant amount of consultation and
engagement has been undertaken, a
summary of which is provided in
paragraphs 1.4 and 1.6 of the report.

Officers have and will continue to meet
individual residents to discuss and clarify
any concerns they have between the
proposals and their property, and where
necessary, make amendments.

Environmental
impact

Tree removal
Long-term impact of
replacement trees
Net Zero objectives

The decision to remove trees is never
taken lightly, and the Council are
committed to mitigating the environmental
impact through a comprehensive tree
replacement programme.

The project includes the planting of new
trees, over and above the number to be
removed, carefully selected for their
suitability to the urban environment and
their potential to provide long-term
environmental benefits. These trees will be
planted in purpose-built root cells to
ensure their healthy growth and minimise
any potential damage to surrounding
infrastructure.

The Council recognise that it will take time
for the new trees to mature and provide
the same level of environmental benefits
as the existing ones. However, the long-
term benefits of the project, including
promoting sustainable transport and
reducing carbon emissions, will outweigh

Page 30



the temporary environmental impact of
tree removal.

The Council are working with
Warwickshire Wildlife Trust to ensure their
recommendations are met.

The Council has recently adopted its
Climate Change Strategy 2024-2030. This
contains a series of goals and objectives
relating to all aspects of achieving net zero
in terms of emissions, notably

carbon. Transport is a key contributor
towards carbon emissions, with around
29% of Coventry’s emissions coming from
transport. By helping to promote safer
cycling, the proposed scheme will
contribute towards meeting the Council’s
carbon reduction targets.

Impact on e Access and The Council recognise the potential for
residents parking issues disruption and inconvenience during the
e Disruption and construction phase. Officers are engaging
inconvenience with stakeholders, such as UHCW and
e Impact on National Highways, and actively working to
hospital staff minimise these impacts.

The project design adheres to national
guidelines and standards, which prioritise
the safety and convenience of all road
users, including residents accessing their
driveways.

Table 1

2.2.To better understand the concerns and potential issues being faced by residents and
stakeholders, a series of meetings have been held throughout 2024. These include:

e Site meetings with individual residents about detailed proposals outside their
properties

e Meetings with business owners along and within close vicinity of Clifford Bridge
Road

¢ Meeting with The Guide Dogs for the Blind Association.

¢ Meetings with key stakeholders such as UHCW and National Highways to inform
scheme design and management of traffic during construction

e Meetings with project funders (ATE and Tf\WM) and active travel specialist
consultants to ensure the scheme design is robust and high quality.

Items raised at these meetings have led to detailed design changes, traffic
management alterations, retention of on-street parking spaces, adjustments to driveway

Page 31




accesses to enhance safety and further engagement activities. The detailed design
changes have not materially altered the layout presented at the January 2024 public
meeting.

2.3.In April 2024 Petitions e44/23 & 32/23 — Petition against the Clifford Bridge Road Cycle
Lane Development were submitted to the Council. As explained in paragraph 1.11,
most concerns raised in Petitions e44/23 and 32/23 cover the same concerns raised in
the Petition 09/23 - Petition against Clifford Bridge Road Cycle Lane development and
were resolved within the 15 November 2023 Binley Cycleway — Section 7 (Clifford
Bridge Road) report.

In addition to the November Report; Table 1 and paragraphs 2.5 through 2.13 explain
the issues considered and recommended options.

2.4. Petition e17/24-25 - Save the trees on Clifford Bridge Road raises concerns with the
proposed removal of trees along the road.

The removal of up to 26 trees is necessary to implement the proposed cycleway along
Clifford Bridge Road. The decision to remove trees is never taken lightly and for this
reason the removal of trees has been minimised by narrowing and realigning the
proposed cycleway, and trees of significant value have been retained as part of the
scheme. As part of the plans, the Council has completed a comprehensive risk
assessment, and the Urban Forestry Team have assessed the trees. This assessment
concluded that some of the trees are at risk of disease and are highly likely to die in the
medium term. Additionally, other trees have a limited remaining usable life, limited
amenity value and will need to be replaced in the medium term, with or without the
cycleway. Therefore, it is wise to replace them as part of this scheme. The number of
new semi-mature trees will be more than those removed, and the new high amenity
value trees will be planted in purpose-built root protection systems, giving the trees the
right conditions to thrive. This approach will provide ecological benefits, in excess of
and earlier, than if the Council waited for the trees at risk of disease to fail and then
replaced when required.

The overall improvement in amenity value is high. Many of the trees present are Ash
species and we know that approx. 95% of all Ash trees in the UK will be killed by the
tree disease known widely as Ash dieback. Its full name is Hymenoscyphus Fraxineus.
The Council are starting to see an increasing number of Ash trees affected by this
disease and it would be inefficient to leave trees in this scheme that may need to be
replaced at a later date. It should be noted the Council are working with Warwickshire
Wildlife Trust to ensure their recommendations are met, the Council has also agreed to
consider additional mitigations, to provide further ecological benefits.

The Council agree, trees and grassed areas provide natural drainage solutions.
Subsequently, Clifford Bridge Road will benefit from new trees, over and above the
number to be removed, being planted alongside new grass verges and sustainable
urban drainage solutions, these will increase the natural drainage capacity along and
throughout the scheme.

Page 32



2.5.

The new trees will be planted in purpose-built planting pits that provide good rooting
volumes beneath the parking bays and verges. This will lead to all new trees prospering
to provide large canopies in a short number of years.

Reducing carbon within Coventry is a priority for the Council. Using car CO2 emission
data, from DfT, and traffic volume data collected from Clifford Bridge Road, the annual
amount of carbon emitted, by vehicles is 648,500kg. An average tree absorbs 25kg of
carbon per annum, therefore, on average, the 23 trees along Clifford Bridge Road
capture 575kg of carbon per annum. This is 0.09% of carbon emitted by vehicles along
the road. Conversely, 575kg of carbon per annum would be mitigated by one single car
driver reducing their car journeys by a third. On average, across 2024 there have been
12,815 motorised vehicle movements per day along the road.

Further calculations performed using the DfT’s Active Mode Appraisal Toolkit (a
standard method of assessing the likely impact of active travel schemes) estimate that
construction of this section of the Binley Cycleway will save more than 50,000km worth
of vehicle trips, over the next 40 years. It is further estimated that this will reduce carbon
emissions by a total of 8.66 tonnes. These estimates relate to an analysis of the Clifford
Bridge Road section of the cycleway in isolation, and that larger reductions can be
expected from the wider Binley Cycleway scheme and the city’s wider network of
planned cycleways, of which Clifford Bridge Road will ultimately form one part.

For context, it would take 26,000 trees (an area over 192,000sgm which is equivalent to
the northern Sowe Valley section between Clifford Bridge Road and Caludon Castle
School) to offset vehicular created carbon along Clifford Bridge Road.

It should be noted, during 2022, Coventry City Council planted a new woodland on the
former school play field. The Urban Rangers who, are part of the Parks and Open
spaces team, helped local volunteers to plant the native species trees which are now
flourishing and will provide highly valuable eco-system services including wildlife
habitat, carbon sequestration and amenity for local people to access for pleasant walks.

Trees are an important part of moving towards Net Zero, hence new trees, over and
above the number to be removed, are to be planted, which will provide an improved
service to the eco-system by year 7 of their life. Reducing the number of vehicles
travelling, by giving road users travel choices, is also important and will have a greater
impact upon reducing the amount of carbon emitted along Clifford Bridge Road.

Binley Cycleway is a well-used facility, daily averages vary along the completed
sections of Binley cycleway from 175 (closest to Binley Business Park) to 401 (closest
to the city centre). It should be noted that as the complete scheme is unfinished and
does not yet form part of a wider network of similar cycleways, these numbers do not
represent the maximum that can be achieved.

The Council are committed to the provision of a cycle network based on high quality
infrastructure, with a core network of fully segregated cycle routes that will provide an
attractive, and safe, cycling environment with the aim of encouraging more people to
cycle for local journeys within the city. The Binley Cycleway was identified as a priority
route within the WM LCWIP, if the cycleway is not completed, and a gap is left along
Clifford Bridge Road, then the benefits provided by a continuous route will be eroded.

Page 33



The baseline data for Clifford Bridge Road shows that on average 54 cyclists use the
route daily, despite the unattractive environment for cycling. Of these cyclists, it is worth
noting that around a third cycle on the footway. Although this is illegal, as the footway is
not designated as a shared use path, the fact that cyclists are electing to use the
footway in preference to cycling on the road indicates that the road is not seen to be a
safe environment for cycling.

For the Clifford Bridge Road section of the scheme specifically, the Council’s current
estimate of the expected daily average number of cyclists who will use it once it has
been constructed, is 204.

Given the evidence of existing cycling levels on Clifford Bridge Road, the forecast
increase in use if completed, and the data demonstrating that the construction of the
Binley Cycleway has led to a significant increase in cycling elsewhere along the
corridor, it is recommended that a cycle route is required.

2.6. Collisions involving personal injury (PIC) have reduced across the previously completed
sections of Binley Cycleway. In the 3 years prior to each section of the scheme being
opened, the total number of PICs were 33, with 9 of these involving a cyclist. This gives
an average yearly collision rate of 11 and 3.

In the time-period since each section was opened for use (up to 28 October 2024), the
total number of PICs is 12, with 3 of these involving a cyclist. Accounting for the
different dates each section was opened, the yearly average collision rates are 7.59
and 2.09 respectively. No PICs have occurred between cyclists and pedestrians at bus
stops or anywhere along the cycle route.

Notwithstanding, 2 of the 3 PICs involving cyclists occurred outside of the newly
constructed segregated cycle lane, and there has been a significant reduction in both
the total number of PICs and those including cyclists.

It should be noted that, as explained in paragraph 2.6, Binley Cycleway is a well-used
facility, and despite the number of cyclists substantially increasing along the corridor,
PICs involving cyclists have reduced.

2.7. Alternative routes for Section 7 of Binley Cycleway have been considered, these

include:
e Hipswell Highway / Farren Road
e Sowe Valley
e Bridgeacre Gardens
e Coombe Park Road.

2.8. The route along Hipswell Highway and Farren Road has some benefits as an
alternative route connecting the existing Binley Cycleway, at the Allard Way junction,
with the UHCW. It would also have the merit of providing connectivity between the
Wyken and Stoke / Whitley areas of the city, linking to the Allard Way extension to the
Binley Cycleway. It is a route that is worthy of further development and consideration for
inclusion in the city’s emerging cycle network. It would not provide connectivity between
Walsgrave / UHCW and the Binley / Willenhall areas of the city, though, and discussion
with the funding bodies has indicated that whilst they would be open to future funding

Page 34



bids for such a scheme, they would not support the existing funding award for Binley
Cycleway being diverted to this scheme.

2.9. The construction of a LTN1/20 cycle route along the River Sowe Valley from Binley
Bridge to the Sowe Bridge would provide a direct route to the UHCW from the Stoke
area, but it would be challenging to deliver to the appropriate standard due to the
topography, with significant earthworks being required in places, the need for lighting,
which would urbanise what is currently a rural area of the city, and the removal of trees
and bushes to provide sufficient room for the cycle route alongside pedestrians. The
route would also require significant drainage and would in part be within the River Sowe
flood plain, meaning that it would not be available for use all year round, Appendix H
details Sowe Valley flood zone data and includes photographs of recent flooding. With
limited overlooking of the route from housing, natural surveillance would be low level,
meaning that some people may not feel safe using the route. It would also not provide
the connectivity between Walsgrave / UHCW and Binley / Willenhall. The Council have
engaged with ATE, TTWM and specialist transport consultants regarding Sowe Valley
being the preferred route, subsequently, they have undertaken an audit of 3 different
routes through the Sowe Valley and scored them against extending the route along
Clifford Bridge Road. Clifford Bridge Road scored 26, with the Sowe Valley options
scoring 14, 14, and 13 respectively, the full options analysis is included within Appendix
F. The Sowe Valley options have at least 4 categories with a score of zero (Clifford
Bridge Road option has scores of 1 and over); a single score of zero (critical issue) can
prevent a scheme obtaining funding and the funding bodies have again indicated that
they would not support the diversion of funds to deliver this option.

2.10. The options of diverting the route away from Clifford Bridge onto the parallel estate
roads of either Bridgeacre Gardens (west of Clifford Bridge Road) or Coombe Park
Road / Gainsford Rise (east of Clifford Bridge Road) have been considered. The
second option is superficially attractive, as it would also serve the Clifford Bridge
Primary School. Either route would be delivered through a Quietway approach, without
a dedicated cycleway, due to insufficient space to provide such a facility. The lower
traffic levels on the side roads mean that they should be safer for cycling. Either route
would be less direct for cyclists than keeping on the main Clifford Bridge Road, and the
Coombe Park Road option would require cyclists to cross Clifford Bridge Road twice, at
either end. These factors mean that such a route is unlikely to be well used by existing
cyclists, who will almost certainly continue to use Clifford Bridge Road. These options
will also be unlikely to attract new cyclists.

2.11. ATE have formally assessed Clifford Bridge Road and alternative routes, the outcome
of their assessment was to “Support scheme promoter [Coventry City Council] to
proceed” with the option of a segregated cycleway along Clifford Bridge Road. A letter
from ATE and the outcome of the Design Review Panel is included as Appendix G to
the report.

2.12. Following the 15 November 2023 report, there has been further community
engagement, further comprehensive analysis of alternative routes, positive outcomes
from the ATE and TfWM Design Review Audit, adherence to the 7 key principles as set
out in paragraph 1.7.2, detailed surveys and technical assessments undertaken,
consideration of objections to the NOI, NOP and TFN, resolution of the Road Safety
Audit Stage 1 and Stage 2 recommendations, meetings with key stakeholders such as

Page 35



UHCW and National Highways, and detailed design alterations following site meetings
with individual residents about proposals outside their properties.

2.13. 1t is therefore recommended that Binley Cycleway - Section 7 (Clifford Bridge Road),
as shown in Appendix E, is taken forward to construction.

2.14. 1t is also recommended that the Hipswell Highway option be taken forward as a
separate scheme, subject to securing funding for scheme development. The potential
for a recreational cycle route along the Sowe Valley will also be considered as part of
the Council’s LCWIP development. It is recommended that these alternative routes
should not be considered as a satisfactory alternative to Section 7 Clifford Bridge Road.

3.0 Results of consultation undertaken

3.1 Public consultation was held in two phases due to the length of the scheme. The first
phase took place in September and October 2020, and the second phase in March
and April 2021. The consultations were online on the council’s Let’s Talk which
included information about the proposals, artists’ impressions, downloadable plans
and a survey for responses. There was a scheme email address and phone number
provided for people to feed back to. We also delivered 10,500 Street News
newsletters to properties along and to the side of the route.

3.2 Design amendments were made along the scheme and in October 2021, a report
outlining these amendments was considered by the Cabinet Member for City Services.

3.3 Further consultation was undertaken between September 2022 and January 2023
based on a revised design.

3.4 A third consultation took place between 6 July and 31 July 2023 and focussed on an
alternative shared use path design in response to feedback on the first two rounds of
engagement. The results of which were considered within the 15 November 2023
Binley Cycleway — Section 7 (Clifford Bridge Road) Cabinet Member for City Services
report. For this consultation a Street News was delivered to approx. 1200 homes or
businesses, there was a public meeting attended by approx. 140 people, a drop-in
session attended by approx. 100 people as well as a Let’s Talk survey and dedicated
email address and phone number.

3.5 A fourth community engagement exercise was held in the form of a public meeting, in
January 2024, focussing on the core 7 principles recommended in the November 2023
Cabinet Member Report.

3.6 NOP, NOI and TFN were advertised, and the appended responses, representations
and objection summary report (Appendix D to the report) summarises the responses
received.

3.7 Two petitions were received, as reported in paragraphs 1.10 and 1.12 above.

3.8 The final scheme design has also been reviewed by Active Travel England and
Transport for West Midlands (TfWM).

Page 36



4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

Timetable for implementing this decision.

Subject to approval of recommendation 4, approval to construct Section 7 — Clifford
Bridge Road cycleway, construction will commence in 2024/25 financial year and be
completed in the 2025/26 financial year.

Comments from the Director of Finance and Resources and the Director of Law
and Governance

Financial Implications

The funding required for all sections of Binley Cycleway is £12.794 million in total, as
shown in the Table 2 below.

£9,526,000 is secured. The remaining £3,268,000 has been formally approved by
ATE’s Investment Programme Board and is subject to approval at WMCA'’s
Designated Sign-Off Meeting.

Grant Status £
Transforming Cities Fund | Secure £5,250,000
Active Travel Fund 2 Secure £715,000
Active Travel Fund 3 Secure £2,890,000
Active Travel Fund 4 Secure £550,000
Active Travel Fund 4 To be secured £3,268,000
Other Grant Secure £121,000
Total £12,794,000
Table 2

The funding can only be spent on the cycleway and not revenue type activities such
as highway maintenance. As noted above, the funding bodies have indicated that they
would not support the funding being used to deliver the alternative route options put
forward.

The scheme is being delivered in sections by the Council’s Direct Labour
Organisation (DLO) and its sub-contractors and spend profiles have been and will be
monitored throughout. In the unlikely event of a shortfall, options to value engineer
will be sought to ensure full scheme delivery within the £12.8m budget.

There are no additional revenue implications of the scheme. Cycleways are
significantly cheaper to maintain than carriageways over their lifetime because wear
and tear is directly related to vehicle axle loading. The scheme will also resurface
parts of the existing footway and carriageway and replace traffic signals with new
installations. This effectively resets the maintenance cycle back to its lowest cost
point.

In the highly unlikely scenario that the BJC isn’t approved, the scheme will not

progress. There are therefore no additional financial implications for the Council
arising from the recommendations of this report.

Page 37



5.2 Legal Implications

The Council in its capacity of Highway Authority and pursuant to S.65 Highways Act
1980, may in or by the side of a highway maintainable at the public expense construct
a cycle track which forms part of the highway.

The Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 allows the Council to make a Traffic Regulation
Order on various grounds e.g. improving safety, improving traffic flow and preserving or
improving the amenities of an area provided it has given due consideration to the effect
of such an order.

In accordance with Section 122 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, when
considering whether it would be expedient to make a Traffic Order, the Council is under
a duty to have regard to and balance various potentially conflicting factors e.g. the
convenient and safe movement of traffic (including pedestrians), adequate parking,
improving or preserving local amenity, air quality and/or public transport provision.

There is an obligation under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 to advertise our
intention to make Traffic Orders and to inform various stakeholders, including the Police
and the public. The Authority is obliged to consider any representations received. If
representations are received, these are considered by the Cabinet Member for City
Services. Regulations allow for an advertised Order to be modified (in response to
objections or otherwise) before a final version of the Order is made.

The 1984 Act provides that once a Traffic Order has been made, it may only be
challenged further via the High Court on a point of law (i.e. that the Order does not
comply with the Act for some reason).

6.0 Other implications

6.1 How will this contribute to the One Coventry Plan?
(https://lwww.coventry.gov.uk/strategies-plans-policies/one-coventry-plan)

These proposals support the Council’s core aim, as set out in the One Council Plan, by:

e Improving the health and wellbeing of residents by improving air quality through
the reduction in traffic generated emissions.

e Creating an attractive, cleaner and greener city by providing improved cycle
routes, better public realm and more greenery on key routes into the city.

¢ Making the city more accessible for businesses, visitors and local people through
increasing mode choice.

6.2 How is risk being managed?

There is inevitably a mixture of risks associated with such an infrastructure project.
Some of the main risks are securing the statutory approvals to implement the scheme,
the unknown effects on utility providers’ apparatus once the ground is opened, the
cost of construction increasing due to external market factors like material costs or
plant hire costs, and a prolonged bout of inclement weather delaying construction.

Page 38


https://www.coventry.gov.uk/strategies-plans-policies/one-coventry-plan

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Learning has been carried forward from the Coundon Cycleway scheme and the parts
of the Binley Cycleway constructed to date as many of the delivery risks encountered
are common to the rest of the Binley scheme.

A dedicated scheme Project Manager and multi-disciplinary project team will control
these risks on a day-to-day basis. The biggest risks are discussed weekly with senior
infrastructure delivery officers and reported to the Active Travel Board, which in turn
reports to the Transport Capital Programme Board.

Construction will continue to be principally undertaken by the Council’s DLO.
Specialist support will continue to be provided by Balfour Beatty Living Places for
electrical works and works at height, HTM for traffic management, and Yunex for
traffic signal installation and commissioning. All companies are in contract with the
Council.

Some of the civil engineering works may be delivered for the Council’'s DLO via a
framework of subcontractors.

What is the impact on the organisation?

There is no impact on the organisation, as all resources required to deliver the
scheme will be funded through the grants received from government and the WMCA.

Equality Impact Assessment

The Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is completed and being evaluated. The new
cycleway layout will improve pedestrian and cycle connectivity at this location
including improvements to the crossings near the school which allow pedestrians and
cyclists to cross safely and feel confident to do so. Crossings will be upgraded which
encourage more use of cycling and walking along the route. Segregating pedestrians
and cyclists will reduce conflict between vulnerable pedestrians and wheelchair users
and cyclists, making it safer for those with mobility difficulties.

Implications for (or impact on) climate change and the environment?

Based on the evidence of the cycleways delivered to date, and on the modelling
undertaken, the scheme will lead to an increase in cycle use as a mode of transport
which will reduce car use for local trips. This will reduce the emissions generated by
road transport, supporting the Climate Change Strategy and improve local air quality. A
reduction in impermeable surface area and increase in trees, hedges and verges will
also benefit drainage and the discharge rate into natural watercourses

Implications for partner organisations?

The scheme will result in improved air quality and levels of activity and provide
improved infrastructure for people to walk and cycle.

Page 39



Report author:

John Seddon

Strategic Lead: Transport and Innovation

Service Area:

City Services and Commercial

Tel and email contact:

Tel: 02476977282

Email: john.seddon@coventry.gov.uk

Enquiries should be directed to the above person.

for City Services

Contributor/approver | Title Service Area | Date doc | Date response
name sent out | received or
approved
Contributors:
Michelle Salmon/ Governance Law and 11/11/24 | 20/11/24
Caroline Taylor Services Officer | Governance
Sunny Heer Lead Accountant | Finance and 18/10/24 | 21/10/24
Resources
Names of approvers
for submission:
(officers and members)
Tina Pinks Corporate Finance and 11/11/24 | 12/11/24
Finance Resources
Manager
Rob Parkes Team Leader Law and 18/10/24 | 23/10/24
(Place), Legal Governance
Services
Andrew Walster Director of City - 19/11/24 | 22/11/24
Services and
Commercial
Councillor P Hetherton | Cabinet Member | - 19/11/24 | 26/11/2024

This report is published on the council's website: www.coventry.gov.uk/council-meetings

Page 40



http://www.coventry.gov.uk/council-meetings

0‘\0(:V

Do Not Scale This Drawing - | | I — - B | | =

T~ | f f | “‘ \“ “‘
| . | Iy R o [T | | 87 X
\ | f‘ / L] 5 M 7 I — - N

N 162 | | S | |
;ﬁﬁﬁ [ i | i

160 [ — | ) |

177

175

TRY TO KEEP THIS BIRCH TREE. | ) / @3
THE ROOTS ARE FRAGILE. IF DAMAGEI | | |
THE TREE MAY NEED TO BE REMOVE[ [ J \

173

1173

58 | |

171

| | [ T —_— - ‘ |
| - | [ o8 — ) T I R S W 50 —_—

167 | / T | | (L | |
154 — | | | ® |

163

163

| L | | J -
R . ] 75 | |
) / , | | — L | “ 74 |
RN / / | ; — = 18 ; ] I ) A S I | , | |
\ o y / | —— — | | | ‘ / | “ | - | - 7T777i7777”*
‘ | | I

157

157
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

i

-

155 146 T

\ - /] H 144 | [ | 69 | |

| | | | : — | J | ‘

A\ [ | “‘ | 777%7""""'—7—»,,,, 3“ ;‘ [)/ nnnw%"s""""'»w,,,, | | N R — | | | I — —
AN \ / ‘ | | | I / ‘ [ w D | |

< ( \ / [ | | | ~N—— / | | L

AN w \ | | / \ [ ‘ | |

| — L | | o / ) — || | |
N\ A\ _ L Uy 142 | — 1 | © |

N N /) | — o E—
N : Vi — i
\\ AN AN ~~—_ 7 T S/ //' | “J

N — | yyan o m % T | N 1 |

N I e i LT — | AL o N N
T — —— - —_— - T ‘ | |
. ) H I ] \ \ | \
g L i — J | — s JE | |

- | T [ | | | - L |

—_

— ~ —_— | | — ~— |

NN | | g 136 1 | | L | |
145 / | \ | [— \ ‘ “

/ \ P _ ] — | . A
N Vo _ | 143 — - | ] w \ - |
NN ' | - —_— | | S / - — | — |
AN \ I | || - - L] | \‘ \ Y |

AN \ /) s - — | - | | |
\ /) ,/ - | | | { — |
A \ / / y — | | — | o | —_—r —
~ NN / vk ~ \ | | —— | — [
- \ / / / \ — | | — -
< AN N\ \\ /S Yl _ \ — | 141 | | r | N | | | -
\ N N\ / / \ — | _ | | —
N N AN yay e : I | | - B
\ N / \ | —_— |
\ N X / / \ | —
\ | I
\

\ \ Y | ! | 140

\ 134 / B B e S L

boy

5 L1130 ) | ] , U

\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\ | \ \ | |
\ \ \ \ | |
\ \ \ \ | |
‘| ‘\‘ “\‘ f—w,fv 777“’777”””’*77—7”,,,77” “‘ | |
\ | \ \ D e | |
\ \ \ | —]| _ | | |
\ \ \ \ i I | i ]
|1 1 \ \ \ | | | | | “ o1 “
| 1 | \ \ _— | | —— —
|\ \ \ \ \ [ — | | | | |
| | | ~ — . 1
{1 \ \ \ \ | | —_ | | | | |
\ | \ | \ | | ] 131 | | | ‘ | _— |
\ \ \ \ \ | — | | | -
\ \ \ | | ] | | |
\ \ \ \ o | | | | — |
\ \ \ \ — | | | |
\ \ B N | _— | |
\ \ \ \ T ] —— |
\ \ \ — |
] \ \ |
\
\
\
\
\
\
\

\ | 129 | | . |
| x“ | Co126 N Y R

+7229 [

| | | || — L |
127 S ] |

. - \ N — J
. — ] | 5

N TR - | IRPX | L |
X ! “II [ | / | | 120 | ‘ ] - ]

~ | | / — | | | | |
RN | | / —T—L | L |
. -~/ | / / | D | ] |
o \ | [ / | [ — | | | B |
- . \ / | | / | — | | —
RN \/ i | | / | | | 118 | [ — T —
AN [ | | / | | | | | | |
N . % / \ | | / | | | | | |
O\ / | / | | | | |
AN N \ /o7 \ | [ / | —_— [ — |
NN / / | | / | | — | | | | |
NN \ ’ | | / - | | T | |
\/ / / [ | | | ]
OO\ | / | | | | | | T
' | [ / | | | | | -
N | | | |
N | | | [ |
|
N L | | | | |
| | | |

& &
“LIFFORD BRIDGE Roas

42

: | I | - f ] | X | L | I oy 2 I

\sM — | | T —_ | B I —

' | \ f
“‘ ””"’”"s‘**"" 110 | JJ ¥ J‘ 3 *
| o | L I m E— ﬁ? | |
S R | — |
- 108 | | | LN | )
[ | 32 o

Posts B

. \ | ’] |
B S~ o | | S /
pid PR | | | / ~__ [ IR . | |

|
- | / oy ' Rosedale
e e Y —— ' Lottages

-MC-008-TREES.dwg - 29/07/2024 17:45:52 - AO TREES - cvade 160
1
\

s B ] i S By S
185 N | | ] B
5 / | | 92 | | e/

— T | vam N | : N
| \ — | J g | /
7 1*&*’ [T T | ] | | T | [ @

e | | | | | |

04_24\2.0 Model Files\BCWY
[
«S»
|
|
|

N

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|
|
|

|

|

—
|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

ul

| —
|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

—

177

175

TRY TO KEEP THIS BIRCH TREE. | 87 | D g —_—
THE ROOTS ARE FRAGILE. IF DAMAGED L | @3 | | |

| / ] — | | |
Produced from Ordnance Survey mapping with permission of the TH E TREE MAY N EED TO BE REMOVED “ | + L‘ | “
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office © Crown Copyright. / - ‘J’ - “ ‘T I | L

Unauthorized production infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to
— | prosecution or civil proceedings. © Coventry City Council © Crown
| | Copyright and database right 2020 Ordnance Survey 100026294.

m | L[] — | e | Beltane

KEY: NOTES:

— -
Y Project Title: ﬂ///v&

EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN B|N|_EY CYC LEWAY Coventry City Council

PLACE DIRECTORATE, TRANSPORTATION AND HIGHWAYS,
ENGINEERING DESIGN TEAM, FLOOR 8, ONE FRIARGATE, COVENTRY, CV1 2GN
(23:? EXISTING TREE TO BE REMOVED — 26Nr

{2’} NEW TREES — 32Nr

Drawing Title:

CLIFFORD BRIDGE ROAD—TREES |>** " s T NFORMATION

Drawn: Checked: Approved:
AH XX XX
29/07/24 XX /XX /XX XX /XX /XX

P:\CDD\Transport Delivery Unit\04 Walking and Cycling\BINLEY CYCLEWAY\2.0 Design from 24

o
>,

Drawing Number: Rev
— | Date ORIGINAL Drawn | Checked | Approved Page 41 .

Rev. | Date Description Drawn | Checked | Approved X X X X / O O O O

2]

<]

v O,




This page is intentionally left blank



Location Plan

Binley Cycleway - Proposed Controlled Crossings, Raised Junctions & Prohibition of Waiting (Double Yellow Lines)

~— [ [ 1 = _,r"'l I !;':_’: —
| B ] el
Proposed double .' o o | .' N
yellow lines 7 7 H T A T
i 'Ilr--__ o i | ; S e
|I [ . __'__I':':;‘-—_ .'I' . :’ | i N
; 0 0 e L | g C J"
| O i s
. ol | |f |
| g~ THH-—
I| __L____ II' _II_ I| i | |‘_ II -
' | Proposed a7 T o=
H b double , L —
L | gl T——— f —/ | H -'.'.'-I il - -
— bt R yellow lines _ .
j EX'STI'ng cﬂouble | Proposed double | —— N E T8 ||| LT
yellowlines || yellow lines N ol . i e = 0
1 S _ iy # — :__'_- e ._-_"I h'["'-—_—-_ir_-:__ |:— — | Proposed
. T8 L—] | L double
i Z B ! yellow lines
|
[0 s
|-- -~ -—
-
=

Proposed
double M

yellow lines =
— — _JI. . -
| Il Proposed
iy | . double
o | - .
R |__ _ [7] yellow lines
_LI —— —I|_ 1 - _J__
. T Rl
— | N ey
. e |
1 | | ==
e BUESE I s SN
. — | S S 5 s L] .
\‘\ e == T_I_____ _ — i |
i . — — Proposed raised |
| [ | | BRIDGEACRE table 1
\ '. |' 1| | GDNS
" | \ - N e
A A ﬁ'.:T—J |
. | |  — z =X
T NN | Proposed raised
\ = AR BRIDGEACRE . =
SR GDNS | table
) \‘I -..l T
: = —
2 - £ — | =
1
L
— = .
i g _I — . Proposed controlled - L]
i B — 474 crossing (TOUCAN) Proposed raised
L5 “" | replacing existing table
[ 87 crossing L7
A om | S
=== Proposed controlled | -
' crossing (PUFFIN) S
b P
: |
Produced from Ordnance Survey mapping with permission of the
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office ® Crown Copyright
Unauthorized production infringes Crown Copyright and may lead

| to prosection or civil proceedings. ® Coventry City Council
Licence No: 100026294 and Crown Copyright {2020)

RAISED TABLE

fﬂ} EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN
Coventry City Council
{iCEE EXISTING TREE TO BE REMOVED
ESJE NEW TREES

CYCLEWAY ROUTE
Page 43

TOUCAN CROSSING




This page is intentionally left blank



Location Plan - Clifford Bridge Road — Proposed revocation of 40mph speed limit.

KEY

- Existing 40mph limit proposed to be revoked (to become 30mph)

A

Coventry City Council

Existing 40mph speed limit
proposed to be revoked.

© Crown Copyright and database right 2024. Ordnance Survey 100026294.

Existing 30mph limit

Existing 40mph limit to remain

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix D - Responses, Representations
and Objections Summary Report

Contents

T INEFOAUCTION ...t e e e e e e aeb s 2
2 SAfEty CONCEIMNS ... 3
3 Alternative Solutions, Necessity and Effectiveness of the Cycleway ................... 5
4  Lack of Consultation and Community Engagement.................ccco 7
5 Environmental IMPact ............oiiiiiiiii e 9
6  Impact 0N RESIAENTS .......coiiii e 11
7 Comprehensive Analysis of Lack of Consideration for Alternatives................... 13

Page 47



1 Introduction

The Council received a significant response to the notices throughout the objection
period. Residents provided objections via multiple routes, not just the advertised
method. There were also several anonymous responses. As Officers are unable to
confirm the source of these responses, these have all been counted. All responses,
regardless of the method of submission, have been included. Several residents
responded multiple times. To ensure a fair representation, each resident's objection
has been counted once, regardless of the number of responses.

To streamline analysis, this report uses 'objections' as a general term for all
unfavourable responses received across the various notices. This includes formal
objections to the TRO/NOI, representations regarding road humps, comments on the
cycle track designation (which did not have a formal objection process), and
responses to the tree felling notices. It's important to note that a significant portion of
these objections pertained to the cycle scheme, which has already had its own
distinct consultation process.

Objection Type

= Tree
s NOIMNOP
Both

As a result, the final objections for the tree felling notice and Notice of Intent (NOI) /
Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) are as follows:

Objection Type | Number
Tree 80
NOI/TRO 13
Both 85

Page 48



Given the significant number of objections received, The Council have collated them
into the following key themes to facilitate comprehensive consideration:

Safety Concerns

Alternative Solutions, Necessity, and Effectiveness of the Cycleway
Lack of Consultation and Community Engagement

Environmental Impact

Impact on Residents

aRrLbdb=

Each theme is summarised and addressed in the following sections.

2 Safety Concerns

2.1 Summary

« Traffic Congestion and Conflicts: Respondents and objectors raised concerns
that the cycleway will exacerbate existing traffic congestion on Clifford Bridge
Road, especially during peak hours and hospital shift changes, leading to
potential conflicts between vehicles, cyclists, and pedestrians.

« Junction and Driveway Visibility: Concerns are raised about reduced visibility
at junctions and driveways due to the cycle lane design and proposed raised
tables, increasing the risk of accidents.

o Cyclist Safety at Night: Respondents and objectors raised concerns about the
safety of cyclists at night, referencing the lack of street lighting during certain
hours.

« Emergency Vehicle Access: Apprehension that the cycleway and associated
changes could hinder emergency vehicle access and response times, particularly
given the road's proximity to the hospital and its use as a diversion route.

« Vulnerable Road Users: Specific concerns are raised about the safety of
children, the elderly, and individuals with disabilities, who may face additional
challenges navigating the new road layout.

2.2 Selected Quotes

Quotation 1

“l am objecting to the intrinsic system 'in-use' safety of the Phase 3 Clifford Bridge
Road section as proposed by the current designer. | want the Phase 3 project to be
officially paused and | want the intrinsic 'in-use' system safety of the scheme to be

professionally assessed by the UK National Audit Office (NAQO). On ‘in-use' safety
grounds the end result may involve a significant re-routing exercise.”

Quotation 2

"This is a major route for ambulances into the hospital and the cycle lane should be
re-routed.”

Page 49



Quotation 3

"How can you guarantee safety if people reverse or pull off drives - to cyclists
travelling at speed often on electric bikes."

Quotation 4

"I have some concerns for these as a driver and a cyclist... These raised tables are
going to make it increasingly more difficult and dangerous to enter and exit the road."

Quotation 5

"My other concern is that when you are turning right into Bridgeacre Gardens most of
the time you have to sit there for some time until there is a gap in the traffic. It is near
impossible to be able to see behind you in your blind spot to see if any cyclists are
coming along the cycle lane. | have had many near misses as it is when cyclists are
riding along the pavement all dressed in black with no lights.”

2.3 The Council Response

Changes to road layouts can raise questions about potential impacts on traffic flow,
visibility, and the safety of all road users, including cyclists, pedestrians, and
motorists. Safety is of utmost priority in the design and implementation of any
transport project promoted by the Council and are subject to the road safety audit
processes appropriate for the type of scheme being delivered.

« Traffic Congestion and Conflicts:

Clifford Bridge Road is a single carriageway road with a single lane of traffic in each
direction. There are no dedicated right-turn lanes at any of the junctions within the
section of Clifford Bridge Road that is the subject of this scheme. On-street parking
is provided within lay-bys of varying width and standard. Throughout the design
process, all design options have retained Clifford Bridge Road as a single
carriageway road with no subsequent loss of capacity. An early variant of the design
included a slight reduction in road width which would have minimised the need to
remove as many trees to accommodate the cycleway but would have retained
Clifford Bridge Road as a single carriageway road without any loss of capacity.
However, following consultation feedback the Council agreed to maintain the
carriageway width at its current width, and this has been retained as a core principle
throughout the remaining design process. As the carriageway widths have been
maintained there is no loss of road capacity. Additionally, the design principles
adopted are in line with the latest LTN1/20 design standards. Therefore, the
cycleway is not expected to significantly increase congestion or create major
conflicts between vehicles, cyclists, and pedestrians.

e Junction and Driveway Visibility:

The design of the cycleway has been carefully considered to ensure adequate
visibility at junctions and driveways. Sightlines have been assessed, and

Page 50



adjustments made to the layout where necessary to improve visibility and minimise
the risk of accidents.

o Cyclist Safety at Night:

A lighting design is currently being undertaken that considers the proposed route and
will ensure that appropriate lighting is in place to enhance cyclist safety at night.
Street lighting along Clifford Bridge Road, like the majority of the city, is switched off
between midnight - 5:30am on Sunday to Thursday, and 1:00am - 5:30am on Friday
and Saturday. These hours are outside of the times the vast majority of users will be
travelling along the street. There is no evidence to date of this streetlighting policy
having any safety implications for cyclists.

« Emergency Vehicle Access:

The Council will be working closely with University Hospital Coventry Warwickshire
(UHCW) to ensure that the cycleway design does not hinder emergency vehicle
access or response times both during construction and on completion. The road
width has been maintained at its current width, meaning that access for emergency
vehicles will be exactly the same as at present. The Council will continue to work
closely with emergency services throughout the construction and implementation
process.

¢ Vulnerable Road Users:

The safety of vulnerable road users, including children, the elderly, and individuals
with disabilities, is a key consideration in the design of the cycleway. The Council
have incorporated features such as dedicated crossing points, clear signage, and
speed reduction measures to enhance safety for all users. The Council are
committed to ongoing monitoring and evaluation of the cycleway to identify and
address any potential safety issues that may arise.

The segregation of pedestrians and cyclists will further improve the safety of
vulnerable road users. Survey evidence shows that around a third of cyclists on
Clifford Bridge Road cycle on the footway, rather than the road, and therefore the
construction of a fully segregated cycle route will reduce the level of conflict between
pedestrians and cyclists on this section of Clifford Bridge Road.

3 Alternative Solutions, Necessity and Effectiveness of the Cycleway

3.1 Summary

« Low Usage and Alternative Routes: Respondents and objectors questioned the
necessity of the cycleway, citing perceived low usage on existing sections and
suggesting alternative routes that they believe would be safer, more scenic, and
better serve the community's needs.

Page 51



o Data Accuracy: The accuracy of the data used to justify the project is
questioned, with some objectors suggesting that it may not reflect current traffic
and usage patterns.

« Comprehensive Analysis of Lack of Consideration for Alternatives: There's
a sense that alternative solutions proposed by residents have not been
adequately explored or considered, leading to frustration and a feeling of being
unheard. A comprehensive analysis proposing an alternative route has been
shared by a resident, claiming to represent the views of a significant number of
residents. A detailed response to this analysis can be found in Section 7.

3.2 Selected Quotes
Quotation 1

“We as a community have no problem having a cycleway, but feel there is an
alternative to the route, which we feel was never considered."

Quotation 2

"The residents have made several alternative suggestions for the route of the
cycleway, but these options have not been fully explored or given proper
consideration."

Quotation 3

"It will be interesting to know if you have actually done any research into whether this
Cycle lane will get good use, because sadly | don't think it will. Such a waste of
money, and so much damage to the environment."

Quotation 4

"l understand there have been alternative solutions that haven't been fully explored
from the residents, including a re-imagining of safely incorporating a cycleway on
that actual road, as well as alternative nearby routes."

Quotation 5

"The obvious route to the hospital (if that is what’s needed?) from Binley road, is
along Hipswell highway and Ansty road, these roads both have enough space to
safely accommodate a cycleway, and are the route that Google maps take you as
the most direct route, from the top of Binley road hill."

3.3 The Council Response
The Council has carefully considered various factors, including usage data and
alternative route options, in developing the proposed Binley Cycleway extension.

o Low Usage and Alternative Routes:
The Council will monitor usage using cameras which have already been installed at
various points along the Binley Cycleway, including on Clifford Bridge Road.

Between March and June this year, the average number of cyclists seen on a typical
weekday on Clifford Bridge Road was 54. Over the same time period the number of

Page 52



cyclists seen on Binley Road, where segregated facilities are already in place, were
significantly higher. Daily averages varied from one section of cycleway to another
but ranged between 401 (closest to the city centre) and 175 (closest to Binley
Business Park).

While the same level of data is not available for the period prior to construction of the
wider scheme beginning, a series of one-off counts carried out before construction
revealed an average of 128 cyclists per day on the Binley Road/Clifford Bridge Road
corridor as a whole. The evidence therefore suggests that rates of cycling have
already increased significantly on those sections of the corridor where segregated
facilities are now in place. Furthermore, as the scheme is still unfinished and does
not yet form part of a wider network of similar cycleways (to enable trips to and from
a wider variety of destinations), the Council do not believe that these numbers
represent the maximum that will be achieved.

For the Clifford Bridge Road section of the scheme specifically, the Council’s
estimate of the expected daily average number of cyclists who will use it once it has
been constructed, is 204. This has been calculated using a modelling tool provided
by the Department for Transport, which they require scheme promoters to use when
preparing business cases for funding for active travel schemes.

« Data Accuracy:

The traffic and usage data utilised in the planning process were collected using
established and recognised methodologies, accepted by DfT through assessment of
business cases. However, steps have been taken to account for these potential
changes by incorporating recent trends and projections into our analysis.

Furthermore, the projected usage figures for the Clifford Bridge Road section of the
cycleway are based on the Department for Transport's (DfT) modelling tool, which
provides a standardised and evidence-based approach to estimating future cycle
use. This ensures that our projections are aligned with national best practices and
reflect the expected benefits of the proposed infrastructure.

4 Lack of Consultation and Community Engagement

4.1 Summary

« Inadequate Consultation: Many objectors feel that the consultation process has
been inadequate, lacking transparency and genuine engagement with the
community.

« Dismissed Concerns: Residents express frustration that their concerns have not
been adequately addressed or taken seriously, leading to a feeling of being
ignored or dismissed.

o Lack of Communication: Complaints about poor communication from the
Council, including delayed responses, out-of-office replies, and the use of jargon,
contribute to the perception of a lack of engagement.

Page 53



4.2 Selected Quotes
Quotation 1

"There has been insufficient evidence of need analysis, cycleway usage, end
destination and prejudice in recognising specific needs of inhabitants who have
disabilities. CCC have failed to fully explore alternative routes that have been
suggested with no proper explanations as to why these other routes would not be
allowed.”

Quotation 2

"We have previously had meetings with council representatives to raise these
concerns on safety, yet we neither had a response or any proposals from those
representatives to mitigate those safety/user concerns. Which is both unprofessional,
and shows a disregard for the views and concerns of the residence.”

Quotation 3

"The residents have made several alternative suggestions for the route of the
cycleway, but these options have not been fully explored or given proper
consideration. Unfortunately, the dialogue between residents and the Council has
been hindered by several obstacles, preventing an open and constructive discussion
on finding a solution that works for all parties.”

Quotation 4

"Whilst consultations have taken place with residents none of the safety aspects
have been listen too or changed. The junctions have been pushed back with tables
added which will decrease visibility for drivers and put cyclists at considerable risk
when crossing.”

Quotation 5

"Moreover, the very process by which this decision has been made feels deeply
undemocratic. Local residents—those most directly affected by this cycleway—have
faced diversions, misinformation, and obstacles when trying to voice their concerns."
4.3 The Council Response

The Council have actively engaged with the community through various channels,
including public meetings (as listed below), surveys, and online platforms and the
design has evolved as a result of these discussions.

¢ Inadequate Consultation:
Binley Cycleway Public Consultations: -

Public consultations were initially held in two phases due to the length of the
scheme. The first phase took place in September and October 2020, and the
second phase in March and April 2021.

Page 54



Section 7 (Clifford Bridge Road) Public Consultations: -

Section 7 has been subject to several rounds of consultation and engagement,
initially in 2021 then, following scheme amendments in response to comments
received, in September 2022 then, in response to feedback on the first two
rounds of engagement, in July 2023 and finally focussing on the core 7 principles
recommended in the November 2023 Cabinet Member Report, in January 2024.

« Dismissed Concerns:

The Council have taken on board feedback throughout the process. The initial
consultation focussed on a fully segregated cycleway, and then in response to
consultation response a shared use path was proposed. Further consultation
responses, including two petitions, resulted in the third variant of the scheme
being designed, based on core principles agreed by the Cabinet Member for City
Services in response to consultation feedback. These core principles covered
issues such as the retention of road carriageway width, the need for segregation
of cyclists, pedestrians and traffic, the retention of on-street parking for residents,
maintaining visibility from side roads and accesses, and retention of trees (and
replacement where necessary).

¢ Lack of Communication

The Council has communicated extensively with local people in numerous ways,
including direct mailed Street News newsletters, letters, public meetings, drop-in
sessions and site meetings and visits. The Council has an email inbox for the
project and have shared officers phone numbers for people to use. The Council
are corresponding promptly with residents and responding in a timely manner to
all queries.

5 Environmental Impact

5.1 Summary

« Tree Removal: The removal of mature trees is a major point of contention, with
objectors highlighting their ecological value, including providing habitat for
wildlife, improving air quality, reducing noise pollution, and mitigating flooding.

o Net Zero Goals: The decision to fell trees is seen as contradicting the Council's
commitment to net zero and environmental protection.

« Long-Term Impact of Replacement Trees: Objectors express concerns that the
newly planted trees will take many years to provide the same environmental
benefits as the mature trees being removed.

5.2 Selected Quotes
Quotation 1

"Mature trees play in our ecosystem. They offer numerous benefits that young trees
simply cannot provide until they reach maturity."

Page 55



Quotation 2

"These trees are mature, healthy trees, giving life and support to a variety of birds,
mammals, insects etc."

Quotation 3

"The proposed cycleway project also raises concerns about the felling of 26 mature
trees, which serve as an essential green space and contribute to cleaner air along
this busy road.”

Quotation 4
"This line of trees assists with the absorption of pollution, carbon and excess water."
Quotation 5

"Considering all Coventry City Councils promises to become a Net O council you are
not doing a good job so far."

5.3 The Council Response

The Council is committed to mitigating the environmental impact of the Binley
Cycleway extension project and considers the protection of our environment and
climate change issues when looking at such schemes.

e Tree Removal:

The decision to remove trees is never taken lightly, and the Council is committed to
mitigating the environmental impact through a comprehensive tree replacement
programme. In the case of this scheme, an earlier variant of the scheme design
would have retained more trees than the latest design but would have had a greater
impact upon parking provision and carriageway width. The shared use path design
would also have retained trees. Both these design options attracted significant
consultation feedback, resulting in the core design principles being agreed. To best
meet these design principles, it is necessary to remove 26 trees to achieve the
provision of a segregated path without impacting upon parking or carriageway width.
The project includes the planting of 32 new trees, carefully selected for their
suitability to the urban environment and their potential to provide long-term
environmental benefits. These trees will be planted in purpose-built root cells to
ensure their healthy growth and minimise any potential damage to surrounding
infrastructure.

e Long-Term Impact of Replacement Trees:

It is recognised that it will take time for the new trees to mature to the same size as
the existing ones. However, the trees that will be planting will be semi-mature (rather
than saplings) and will be more suitable to the urban environment than trees planted
in the past will have been, using the benefit of knowledge and experience gained
over the years on the suitability of different species of tree. It is believed that the
long-term benefits of the project, including promoting sustainable transport and
reducing carbon emissions, will outweigh the temporary environmental impact of tree
removal.

Page 56



e Net Zero Goals:

The Council has recently adopted its Climate Change Strategy 2024-2030. This
contains a series of goals and objectives relating to all aspects of achieving net zero
in terms of emissions, notably carbon. Transport is a key contributor towards carbon
emissions, with around 29% of Coventry’s emissions coming from transport. By
helping to promote safer cycling, the proposed scheme will contribute towards
meeting the Council’s carbon reduction targets.

Calculations performed using the Department for Transport’s Active Mode Appraisal
Toolkit (a standard method of assessing the likely impact of active travel schemes)
estimate that construction of this section of the Binley Cycleway will save more than
50,000 km worth of vehicle trips, over the next 40 years. It is further estimated that
this will reduce carbon emissions by a total of 8.66 tonnes.

It should also be noted that these estimates relate to an analysis of the Clifford
Bridge Road section of the cycleway in isolation, and that larger reductions can be
expected from the wider Binley Cycleway scheme and the city’s wider network of
planned cycleways, of which Clifford Bridge Road will ultimately form one part.

6 Impact on Residents

6.1 Summary

e Access and Parking Issues: Concerns were raised about the impact on
residents' ability to access their driveways and park their vehicles safely due to
changes in road layout, removal of parking bays, and increased congestion.

o Disruption and Inconvenience: The potential disruption and inconvenience
caused by the construction process, including noise, dust, and traffic delays, are
also highlighted as concerns.

« Impact on Hospital Staff: The removal of parking bays and potential for
increased traffic congestion are seen as negatively impacting hospital staff.

6.2 Selected Quotes
Quotation 1

"My objection is also based on the impact of the proposed changes on the safety of
the residents and visitors in the area.”

Quotation 2

"The Inhabitants have raised major concerns in relation to driving on and off their
drives, having to cross the foot path the cycle lane to gain access to the road. There
will be less room for them to manoeuvre out of their drives. An inhabitant’s survey
has demonstrated that there will be 90 cars subjected to these access problems
which could lead to 180 cycleways reversing crossing a day with each one
potentially being a major safety issue."

Page 57



Quotation 3

"I believe further cycle lanes along Clifford Bridge Road would be dangerous for
residents (and cyclists) It would have a massive safety impact on residents using
their driveways."

Quotation 4

"Incidentally we have many hospital workers park and walk or cycle from Gainford
Rise because of the staff parking charges."

Quotation 5

"This is an unsafe plan which as it stands now will have a detrimental impact on the
environment, residents and users of Clifford Bridge Road and surrounding areas."

6.3 The Council Response

The Council is actively working to minimise these impacts. The project design
adheres to national guidelines and standards, such as LTN 1/20, which prioritise the
safety and convenience of all road users, including residents accessing their
driveways. The Council are also exploring options to mitigate traffic congestion and
will make every effort to minimise disruption during construction.

Access and Parking

The scheme does not remove any driveway accesses or on-street parking, although
there will be minor changes to the layout of some parking lay-bys. Residents
accessing their driveways currently have to cross the footway, which is used by
pedestrians and cyclists, and the verge, and visibility is generally impacted most by
the parking. The introduction of the cycleway will fundamentally have little impact
upon the manoeuvre in and out of driveways — drivers will still have to look for
pedestrians, cyclists and other users in addition to traffic on the main carriageway —
this is no different to the current layout other than the cyclists will be further out from
boundary walls and hedges and therefore will be more visible.

Disruption and Inconvenience

During the construction of the scheme, there will inevitably be some disruption and
inconvenience caused to residents as well as users of Clifford Bridge Road. That is
the case for any transport scheme, including maintenance works, taking place in a
busy urban environment. The Council is experienced at managing these situations,
and will work closely with residents and businesses, as well as its contractors, to
minimise the impact as much as it can. There will be regular communication
throughout the duration of the works, and we will work to maintain access for
residents at all times.

Impact on Hospital Staff

Other than disruption during the works (see above), there will be no impact on
Hospital staff through the scheme as traffic capacity will be maintained at its current
level. Staff parking for the Hospital staff is provided on site, and should any Hospital
staff be seeking to park on Clifford Bridge Road then the current level of on-street

Page 58



parking is being maintained. The completion of this missing link of the cycleway will
also provide Hospital staff with a safe and direct route to the Hospital from Binley
and Willenhall.

7 Comprehensive Analysis of Lack of Consideration for Alternatives

7.1 Introduction

The following section addresses the concerns and observations raised by a resident,
in their analysis of the Clifford Bridge Road Cycle Way proposal. The resident's
analysis focuses on the project's adherence to core design principles, safety
implications, and the potential benefits of an alternative route.

7.2 Core Design Principles

7.2.1 Coherent Design Principles

¢ Resident's Points: The resident suggests that the current proposal only
partially meets coherent design principles as it is not the most direct route.
They propose an alternative route that they believe better fulfils these
principles.

e Council's Response: The resident states that the “most direct” route is
via Sowe Valley is predicated on the only objective of the cycleway to get
from the University Hospital to the City Centre, however the scheme has
wider objectives than this. Binley Cycleway was identified as a strategic
cycle route connecting Coventry city centre with the UHCW via Binley
Business Park within the West Midlands Local Walking and Cycling
Infrastructure Plan (WM LCWIP). The proposed Binley Cycleway
extension represents the most viable and beneficial option for achieving
the goals of improved connectivity, safety, and accessibility for cyclists in
the area. The final scheme, including the Clifford Bridge Road section, will
therefore provide the most direct route connecting Walsgrave, the
Hospital, the estates on Clifford Bridge Road, Binley Business Park,
Binley, Stoke, Lower Stoke, and the city centre. The route will serve
multiple journey types in the most efficient and direct way. The Sowe
Valley route would serve some journeys, but not the Walsgrave / Hospital
to Binley / Willenhall desire line.

7.2.2 Direct Design Principles

¢ Resident's Points: The resident argues that the alternative route is more
direct and, therefore, better aligns with direct design principles.
e Council's Response: Response provided in 7.2.1.

7.2.3 Safe Design Principles

e Resident's Points: The resident expresses safety concerns, citing issues
such as cyclist speed, resident access to parked cars, emergency vehicle
access, and potential conflicts with the Harry Shaw coach company. They
believe these concerns cannot be adequately addressed in the current
plan.

Page 59



Council's Response: A Stage 1 RSA was carried out by independent and
qualified auditors and a Stage 2 Road Safety Audit (RSA2) will be
conducted before any works commence. This RSA2 will be commissioned
in line with GG119 guidelines and will include a design brief.

The scheme is designed to the latest relevant standards in LTN1/20 and a
design review panel (DRP) with Transport for West Midlands (TfWM) and
Active Travel England (ATE) has been completed on Clifford Bridge Road.
This involves auditing the scheme to ensure it aligns with active travel
policies and design guidance such as LTN 1/20. The route check and DRP
documents are ATE and TfWM documents.

The design already incorporates several features that will help reduce
speeds. To maintain existing trees and accommodate pedestrian access,
the cycleway incorporates shared-use sections and several curves, which
will naturally encourage cyclists to reduce their speed. Additionally, the 2-
metre width of the cycle lane promotes a more cautious approach.

Finally, a third of the cyclists currently using Clifford Bridge Road cycle on
the footways. The cycle route would provide a safe cycle route
segregated from both traffic and pedestrians and would therefore reduce
the degree of conflict between pedestrians and cyclists that currently
exists.

7.2.4 Comfortable Design Principles

Page 60

Resident's Points: The resident argues the current plan fails to meet
comfortable design principles due to steep gradients, lack of accessibility
for individuals with disabilities or using cargo bikes, and challenges for
wheelchair users.

Council's Response: This scheme is being designed in full compliance
with the latest safety regulations and guidance, including LTN 1/20 Cycle
Infrastructure Design, which sets the standards for cycleway design.
Furthermore, The Council are committed to ensuring the scheme meets
the requirements of the Equality Act 2010.

As part of the design process for this scheme, the Council has undertaken
extensive consultation with a range of stakeholders. Due to COVID
restrictions at the time, this involved a large-scale leaflet drop
(approximately 11,000), online surveys, and an email address for
feedback.

The Council has also directly engaged with the following groups:
o Access Development Group (subgroup of Disability Equality Action
Partnership)
o Gosford Park Residents Association
o Stoke Park Residents Group



To further enhance the accessibility of the scheme, members of our design
team participated in a site visit and engagement exercise led by Sight Loss
Counsel, in association with ATE and TFWM.

In addition to the consultations, an Equalities Impact Assessment has
been carried out to identify and mitigate any potential negative impacts of
the scheme on people with protected characteristics. This assessment
informs The Councils design decisions and ensures that the scheme is
accessible and inclusive for all.

The Council also work in close collaboration with ATE, the government
body responsible for setting active travel policy and standards and TTWM’s
Cycling and Walking Team. ATE provide expert advice and guidance
throughout the design process, ensuring that schemes meet the highest
safety and accessibility standards.

7.2.5 Attractive Design Principles

¢ Resident's Points: The resident suggests the alternative route is more
attractive, particularly due to its avoidance of steep gradients and potential
for enhancing public spaces. Concerns are also raised about the removal
of mature trees along Clifford Bridge Road, impacting its attractiveness.

e Council's Response: There is a gradient on Clifford Bridge Road.
However, it's important to remember that this gradient exists currently, and
cyclists are already using the road and footpath. The cycleway aims to
improve safety by separating cyclists from both vehicle traffic and
pedestrians.

Whilst there is a gradient there are features in the design that will aid in
keeping cyclists' speeds down. To maintain existing trees and
accommodate pedestrian access, the cycleway incorporates shared-use
sections and several curves, which will naturally encourage cyclists to
reduce their speed. Additionally, the 2-metre width of the cycle lane
promotes a more cautious approach.

7.2.6 Other Issues

¢ Resident's Points: The resident believes the current plan fails to meet
several design principles, potentially leading to wasted public funds and
significant disruption for residents during construction.

e Council's Response: This scheme is being designed in full compliance
with the latest safety regulations and guidance, including LTN 1/20 Cycle
Infrastructure Design, which sets the standards for cycleway design in the
UK. Furthermore, The Council are committed to ensuring the scheme
meets the requirements of the Equality Act 2010.

A design review panel (DRP) with Transport for West Midlands and Active
Travel England has also been completed for this scheme, ensuring

Page 61



alignment with active travel policies and design guidance such as LTN
1/20. The outputs of the review have been shared with residents.

¢ Resident's Points: The resident expresses concerns about the decision-
making process, suggesting a lack of local councillor influence and
questioning the democratic process.

e Council's Response: This section of cycleway has been subject to four
specific rounds of consultation and engagement, the first of which was
held in 2021 focussed on a fully segregated cycleway, the second held
between September 2022 and January 2023 based on a revised design,
the third, in July 2023, focussed on an alternative shared use path design
in response to feedback on the first two rounds of engagement, and the
fourth, in January 2024, focussed on the core 7 principles recommended
in the November 2023 Cabinet Member Report for Section 7 — Clifford
Bridge Road. The final scheme design has also been reviewed by ATE and
TFWM.

7.3 Conclusion

The Binley Cycleway extension project has been the subject of a formal consultation
and objection period. Objections, comments, and suggestions were received
throughout the consultation period and have been summarised and responded to
within this document.

The final design of the Binley Cycleway extension has been informed by the
feedback received from four rounds of engagement, including this most recent formal
consultation, and has been reviewed by Active Travel England and Transport for
West Midlands.

It is considered that the final design responds as far as possible to the range of
issues raised throughout the consultation, whilst retaining the overall objective of
achieving a significant improvement in active travel infrastructure within Coventry
providing a core cycling route within the Council’'s emerging strategic cycle network
linking key destinations across the city.

Page 62



- 21/11/2024 14:57:40 - A1 SCALE 500_01 CAB - cvade160

Cabinet drawings.dwg

04_24\2.0 Model Files\BCWY-MC-018-RSA 02

P:\CDD\Transport Delivery Unit\04 Walking and Cycling\BINLEY CYCLEWAY\2.0 Design from 24

Do Not Scale This Drawing

159

157

155

153

151

149

147

145

R

1w
139

137

135

-| © Crown copyright and database rights 2024 OS AC000850544. You

are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or
interact with, the organisation that provided you with the data. You are
not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute or sell any of this data to
third parties in any form.

187

185

183

181

—
—

PR

/

\
\
\
\
\
1
! <!
1
\ | S
1
1
1
=

,/
‘
|
\
‘
‘
1
‘
| |
/ \
[ ‘ “
| |
|1 |
\‘ [
[ ] ‘
| \
| | |
| |
|
N
AN NS
. N
- N L
AN
"\
\\ N
‘ \
AN
| 4
| o
\
‘
LS
|
1 1
1 1
\ 1 \
(W] \
N} \
W )
1 \
\ \
I\ .
\\ \
\
\
\
\\ \
\ \
\
\ \
\ \
\ N\
\\ \
\ \
\ \
NN N
~ AN N
~ AN AN
~ AN ~
\:\ \\\
\\‘\ S
\ NN RN
\\\\ \\\
\\ NN -
AN ~ ~
s .
NS N
< S~o .
b \\\ \\\
~ ~
N N
. - .
\\\ \\\
< -
< -
- .
~ ~
. .
. .
\ - .
- \\\ \\\
.~ _
.~ -
\\\ \\\
\\\\ S~o
-1 Bq L
—~ 082 —~
/ -
‘4l —
—
/ Vs —
-
/
yz
-

KEY:

oo DUTCH KERB
HB2 KERB 125mm FACE
SPLAY KERB 75mm FACE

———————————— BN KERB 25mm FACE
BN KERB 06mm FACE

VERGE/LOW LEVEL PLANTING AREA

STRATACELL 5.5M73 TREE ROOT SYSTEM

NEW TREE

EX TREE TO REMAIN

TREE FOR REMOVAL

Project Title:

BINLEY CYCLEWAY

Drawing Title:

P

Coventry City Council

CITY SERVICES, TRANSPORT AND INNOVATION,
ENGINEERING DESIGN TEAM, FLOOR 8, ONE FRIARGATE, COVENTRY, CV1 2GN

SECTION O/ — DESIGN GA e 00 T ISCUSSION
Drawn: Checked: Approved:
AH HB HB
21/11/24 21/11/24 21/11/24
Drawing Number: R
~al ~ 21/11/24 ORIGINAL AH HB HB rewing T j’
&y ogl Rev. | Date Description Drawn | Checked | Approved BCWY / CAB / 009 / 01

Page

bo




il av0d Mavd 3gn00 - :
av4 I [ ,, L] | S Yo - S
/ _— | N/ | | I | | R I > ~
/ \ i [ —_ | | | | | e— | | I © o —
/ —_— | — | | | | | B | | ] > T
| — | | [ | | o .. ~
| | N . | — : | & RS
| =4 3
[oNe] [=%
= o oy
= <
Sy
Z m z [@))
T OZ2E a ')
2 cw 3 S
.WJ S o % — M
v L2 o ~
S, 7 =« s = <
NG g |2 ~
N e |F |3 ~
m w’ wn (3]
5 =
=5 O
S 2 < AA]
o N i
o ~ [
o = — — |2
& <@ < |E
] < & ~N | =
Ll - -
= 5 . Nl
2 2 s =
= 3] <4 2
[72] o a

DESIGN GA

BINLEY CYCLEWAY
SECTION O/ -

Project Title:
Drawing Title:

1
3
135

@
~
I ¥
b
| ™ | "
, [ = - | o |
— | | ~ | |
| | IS ~ | | |
| — | | - | - K& I = [ ,
| | | | ~— | M | | o~ & | | | |
| | | | | | N | | — | — [ | ~ | n | |
| — | | | | - | | | - | | = — ,, » | - | | | | | — —
,,, I | ] — | | ) | | g | — = | i | | =] | ~ | E=
— i ] T | | | | B | - — | = | o | 7o) | I
I~ | ] I | | S | | | [ - | =] M |
| | S | | | | — ] [ | | 1 | | - | || | - | =} |
| — | | | | [ 1 | - | — L | | | — | ,, | — |
| , | , | [ | , | | I
| . | | | | | |
o ! | | A | | | _ | | .
y | _ | | —_ |
i} [ " [] | , ,, | ,,, ,,, , , | [ — , , , ~ 0 ) |
| | | | | | _ | | [=2] o
| | . | | H | | | | I — . L v — ] | 2 508 B s 2 R 2 o
| | | | | | | | | — | L — | | = 7 7 | | — , , | | f I~
,, o i \F,\\\\A, ,, | , T 4, [ | | | - | ,T“L ,, ,, | E - 7 | 7 ‘\“\“ 77
| — — —
| ,, | | | | | | | ,, | | | o m 7 | ] ,f\\\ | — | JE—
[ | | | | | | | | | | — Vv\\\\\L I — | | | | — |
- ] | [ | | | | | | | 7 =< L | | | | | | I e [
, | L | | | - , [S— , , , S — , , | [ T , ,
, , ] | | ,, , , , , ,, , , , W | , , | | | [ —
| | | | | — |
| | | ,,, | | | | | | | | or | S - | | | [ — | L
| | | | | | | | | | | Q | , | | | | 7
[ | | | , [ | M , | , ,, ,, | ,,
| | | | _ | |
| | ] | g8 | | | | , e
| | | | Q| , | | | |
, | o | | ,
o , [—
|
|
|
|

Do Not Scale This Drawing |

I A

BRIDGEACRE GARDENS

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 OS AC000850544. You

are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or

KEY:

interact with, the organisation that provided you with the data. You are
not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute or sell any of this data to

third parties in any form.

b

| | | ~

0919peAd - gvD 00§ ITVOS LV - 60:2S ¥} ¥202/11/1Z - BmprsBuimelp 1aulqed” 20 YSH-810-ON-AMOE\S3IId [9POIN 0'2\WZ Y0 2 wosj ubisad 0'2\AVMITOAD ATINI

NEW TREE

HB2 KERB 125mm FACE
SPLAY KERB 75mm FACE

oo DUTCH KERB

BN KERB 25mm FACE

EX TREE TO REMAIN

BN KERB 06mm FACE

TREE FOR REMOVAL

VERGE/LOW LEVEL PLANTING AREA

STRATACELL 5.5M73 TREE ROOT SYSTEM

HB

Approved

HB

Checked

Drawn

ORIGINAL
Description

21/11/24

Date

Page 64

g\buiphp pue Bunjep yowUN Alealle@ podsuel1\ado\d

M

D 34,
v | Rev.

(S
Q




Alternative Binley Cycleway Section 7

Binley Cycle Scheme

£ e Gmar EducationGay 2

fe R\ Welfarejliri st Y
Gulson Road to Biggin Hall 3 “ SIS \ The R Ce Bowlr
Crescent : : Chrnese Ta.keawayw

Gurl Hargoblnd "‘ N TN e UShel NG MEREm Ak Caludon
:C’ @ Sahlb“Jl Gurdwara % SN AT R ' o ) AT ’-Castle RPark
Biggin Hall Crescent to Church I | e S e R\ e MRS el \ ) e,
Lane it \ g i A AN / : \ AV \lé?@
£ Be\‘é‘

h _;,,g A\ st , Wyken! Communlty
Church Lane to Allard Way \ ‘ ' ‘ i\ N 2 Assocratlon

3

Allard Way Junction
£

Allard Way to Brinklow Road

Brandon Road to Brinklow Road

£

Brinklow Road to Belgrave

Road
; Meredlth Road

. .  A i =, < SRR ~=B, ptistl Church
Belgrave Road to UHCW NG 2 5 _

“ L|d|® _

Alternative Section 7 (1) actionyl’-

& digaEs 2 - ~ & e 2 A = ‘ : = ; ot} 3N\ s’ -Beechwood| Tre ;
Qorl at : . ) 1 YA ¢ e b N e T v ) R &llfandscapes

Alternative Section 7 (2) (EIDAKETYN SR T . oot ‘ , : , : » ;

Alternative Section 7 (3) . e R ‘ '3 T t & ol mp I g8 Jews‘onl- éf ff|ce

"""”——"‘;,‘ Coventry Sphrnx@ % 3y h @ :
Sports‘and SociallClub} LA uttersThe Spires / Stoke OId Boys
= ' ' SR Rugby FootbaII Club

Copsewood Sports
“and:Social CIub

Ernesford Grange
Prrmary Sohool

i Imagery ©2024 Airbus, Maxar Technologies

B e B R A VAN B AV~ I M EEAY




Design Option

Red (existing alignment)

Should be designed to reach their day to
destinations

The route goes through residential areas of
Binley, providing a connection almost to the
front door, allowing people to easily access the
route, as well as passing in close proximity to
Clifford Bridge Academy.

Shouldn’t be unintuitive or confusing

The route directly connects the two existing
sections of the Binely Cycleway which users are
already familiar with, this scheme essentially
fills the gap to deliver a continuous route.

Consistent quality

Based on corridor widths along the length of
Clifford Bridge Road, there seems to be
sufficient width to continue a fully protected
facility which links the two existing routes.

As direct —and more direct - than those
available for private motor vehicles.

The route follows Clifford Bridge Road meaning
it has the same level of directness as motor
vehicles

Avoid stop starting as this may lead to cyclists
in the carriageway which is more unsafe

There are a number of side road junctions
along Clifford Bridge Road to provide access to
the nearby residential areas. Any infrastructure
proposals would have to ensure that cyclists
have priority over all of these side roads. Given
the precedent of continuous footways in the
delivered section of the scheme, we have
confidence this can be achieved.

Perception of safety

Design has the potential to provide protection
of cyclists from motor traffic.

Substandard widths are not safe

Corridor width along the length of the route is
>15m which is sufficient width for desirable
footway widths on both sides of the
carriageway, desirable widths for a bidirectional
cycle track, a 0.5m buffer and a carriageway
width suitable for the Clifford Bridge Road
considering that it is a bus route

Lighting and natural surveillance / Personal
Safety

The road is already lit for the extent of the
route, and has direct frontage onto residential
properties from the southern extent of the
route to the Clifford Bridge Road/B4082
roundabout. North of this junction, there is no
frontage onto any properties

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

The route goes through Stoke Floods Green and
runs along the River Sowe, passing in close
proximity to Caludon Castle School. Whilst the
route could be considered more direct to a
specific destination, the route does not pass
through residential area of Binley so many
residents would have to take a more
convoluted route to access the cycle track
which would significantly increase the journey
time for cyclists wanting to use protected cycle
infrastructure.

Whilst the route requires cyclists to come off of
the existing on-carriageway cycle track, the
route beyond this is considered intuitive as it
follows the River Sowe for large sections of the
route.

The route goes through a section of dense
woodland to the east of Dunrose Close and
south of Westmorland Road - it is not clear if
the full effective width in accordance with
guidelines is deliverable. Tree roots can cause
long term damage to a cycle track.

Whilst the route could be considered as more
direct for some users between specific origins
and destinations, this would create an overall
more convoluted route for those existing
residents in Binley, or those wishing to travel to
the Business Park.

The route features no junctions or crossing for
cyclists to have to stop at apart from crossing
Clifford Bridge Road to access the existing cycle
track at the Clifford Bridge Road/Dorchester
Way junction

Design has the potential to provide protection
of cyclists from motor traffic.

To achieve desirable minimum cycle widths of
3m (for shared use or a bidirectional cycle
track) this could require significant tree
removal in the woodland sections of the route
which may not be feasible and could result in
substandard cycle infrastructure widths.
Evidence would be required to amend this
score.

The route has very limited natural surveillance,
especially in the northern sections of the route.
Where the route passes residential dwellings to
the south of the route they are not that
overlooked due to the orientation of the
houses and the presence of fences at the end
of most of the cul-de-sacs. The route is not
currently lit so lighting would be required

1

0

2

0

0

The route follows Mayflower Drive at it's
southern extent, passing through a residential
area before crossing the River Sowe through
Stoke Floods Green, running along allotments
to the west of Clifford Bridge Road and
northwards on Clifford Bridge Road. Whilst the
route could be considered more direct to a
specific destination, the route does not pass
through residential area of Binley so many
residents would have to take a more
convoluted route to access the cycle track
which would significantly increase the journey
time for cyclists wanting to use protected cycle
infrastructure.

The route features multiple deviations as it
passes into and through Stoke Floods Green, as
well as deviating to follow the edge of the
residential area and allotments to the west of
Clifford Bridge Road. Compared to the red and
pink route the arrangement could be confusing
to follow and would be reliant on a strong
wayfinding strategy. The route also hits
multiple decisions points through Stoke Floods
Green which could be confusing for some users

The route goes through a section of dense
woodland when crossing the River Sowe to the
south - it is not clear if the full effective width
in accordance with guidelines is deliverable.
Tree roots can cause long term damage to a
cycle track.

Whilst the route could be considered as more
direct for some users between specific origins
and destinations, this would create an overall
more convoluted route for those existing
residents in Binley, or those wishing to travel to
the Business Park.

The route features no junctions or crossing for
cyclists to have to stop at apart from crossing
Clifford Bridge Road to access the existing cycle
track at the Clifford Bridge Road/Dorchester
Way junction

Design has the potential to provide protection
of cyclists from motor traffic apart from low
trafficked streets.

To achieve desirable minimum cycle widths of
3m (for shared use or a bidirectional cycle
track) this could require significant tree
removal in the woodland sections of the route
which may not be feasible and could result in
substandard cycle infrastructure widths.
Evidence would be required to amend this
score.

The southern section of the route which follows
along Mayflower Drive has high levels of
natural surveillance as houses front onto the
road, however the route northwards of
Dunrose Close has very limited natural
surveillance. There is street lighting present on
Mayflower Drive and Clifford Bridge Road
however the section of the route that runs
along Stoke Floods Green has no lighting

1

0

0

0

The route goes through Stoke Floods Green and
runs along the Mayflower Drive estate before
crossing the River Sowe, running along
allotments to the west of Clifford Bridge Road
and northwards on the Clifford Bridge Road.
Whilst the route could be considered more
direct to a specific destination, the route does
not pass through residential area of Binley so
many residents would have to take a more
convoluted route to access the cycle track
which would significantly increase the journey
time for cyclists wanting to use protected cycle
infrastructure.

The route features multiple deviations as it
passes into and through Barbican Rise and
Dunrose Close, and follows along the River
Sowe for a short distance before turning
eastwards before Binley allotments. Compared
to the other route options the arrangement is
confusing and features multiple turns which
would require clear wayfinding strategy to
make obvious for users

The route goes through a section of dense
woodland when crossing the River Sowe to the
south - it is not clear if the full effective width
in accordance with guidelines is deliverable.
Tree roots can cause long term damage to a
cycle track.

Whilst the route could be considered as more
direct for some users between specific origins
and destinations, this would create an overall
more convoluted route for those existing
residents in Binley, or those wishing to travel to
the Business Park.

The route features no junctions or crossing for
cyclists to have to stop at apart from crossing
Clifford Bridge Road to access the existing cycle
track at the Clifford Bridge Road/Dorchester
Way junction

Design has the potential to provide protection
of cyclists from motor traffic apart from low
trafficked streets.

To achieve desirable minimum cycle widths of
3m (for shared use or a bidirectional cycle
track) this could require significant tree
removal in the woodland sections of the route
which may not be feasible and could result in
substandard cycle infrastructure widths.
Evidence would be required to amend this
score.

The route has very limited natural surveillance
outside of Barbican Rise and Dunrose Close,
and is not lit with the exception of the small
number of residential streets and Clifford
Bridge Road which the route runs along for the
most northern section

1

0




Comfortable

Design Option

Red (existing alignment)

Good quality, well maintained - smooth
surfaces,
adequate width for the volume of users,
minimal stopping and starting
Avoiding steep gradients.

Uncomfortable transitions should be avoided

It is assumed that the route surface will be of a
good quality and well maintained given that it
would be adjacent to an existing road and
would have potential for cleaning and
maintenance when Clifford Bridge Road is
maintained. Given the width of the road it is
considered that the desirable minimum
footway, cycle track and carriageway widths
can be achieved. Areas of the route have a
maximum slope of just over 5% which is
considered a steep gradient, however this is for The route would be consistent in it's provision
a small section and based from desktop studies, at footway level and would note require

the gradient does not appear to exceed 6.3%.  multiple transitions.

Flood risk?

Along the route between the Clifford Bridge
Road/B4082 junction and the Clifford Bridge
Road/Bridgeacre Gardens there is a low chance
of flooding

Cycle infrastructure should help to deliver
public spaces that are well designed and
ed in attractive materials and be places
that people want to spend time using.

Whilst it is assumed high quality materials
would be used in the build out, there is limited
space to provide other public realm
improvements.

Sometimes well-intentioned signs and
markings for cycling are not only difficult and
uncomfortable to use, but are also
unattractive additions to the street scape.

The route follows the existing Clifford Bridge
Road and continues on a straight line from the
existing cycle provision either side of the
missing gap, that it would be legible to
understand and not overly confusing for users.
ON the basis that this route is very direct, it is
likely that minimal signage would be required.

Attractive

Should minimise vegetation removal

There are a number of mature trees present on
either side of Clifford Bridge Road so some
impact is likely however it is accepted that
street trees have a limited lifespan. The scheme
would need to look to areas for re-planting.

Consideration of compliance to LCWIP and
connections to existing infrastructure

The route is consistent with the LCWIP.

i 2

2

1

2

The route has several steep gradients, and
undulates throughout resulting in no
continuous flat provision. Given the amount of
trees that are adjacent to the route, there is
possibilities for the roots of the trees to impact
the cycle route surface over time, creating an
uneven surface.

The route transitions between different
typologies, resulting in multiple transitions.
Careful design would be required to ensure
these are comfortable.

The length of the River Stowe is classed as a
high flood risk and the southern section of the
route passes through low flood risk areas. The
only section of the route that is not within a
flood risk area is the northern most section,
where the route deviates from the River Stowe
towards the Dorchester Way/Clifford Bridge
Road junction

The route travels through a public park where
the scheme could contribute to other public
realm improvements

There are several decision points on the route
that would require wayfinding, for example;
turning away from the cycle track on Binley
Road; crossing the carriageway over Clifford
Bridge Road and to indicate to cyclists to come
off of the River Stow

The route covers significant open green space
so would require vegetation removal for a large
extent of the route. This could include the
removal of a high number of trees depending
on the route alignment, which should be
replanted where not possible to avoid

The route deviates from the LCWIP however
does connect two points.

i 1

0

0

1

The route has several steep gradients, and
undulates throughout resulting in no
continuous flat provision. Given that the route
crosses the River Sowe through a woodland
area, there are possibilities for the roots of the
trees to impact the cycle route surface over
time, creating an uneven surface. For the
section of the route that crosses the River

The route transitions between different
typologies, resulting in multiple transitions.
Sowe, there could be difficulties accessing this  Careful design would be required to ensure
area for continual maintenance these are comfortable.

At the southwestern extent of the route along
Mayflower Drive the area is in a high risk
flooding area. The delivery of a bridge in this
section would be costly and likely be unviable.

The route travels through a public park where
the scheme could contribute to other public
realm improvements

Significant wayfinding would be required given
how much the route deviates, action should be
taken to ensure that whilst the provision
remains consistent this is not unsightly to the
streetscape

The route covers some open green space so
would require vegetation removal for a large
extent of the route. This could include the
removal of a high number of trees depending
on the route alignment, which should be
replanted where not possible to avoid

The route deviates from the LCWIP however
does connect two points.

1 1

1

0

1

1

The route has several steep gradients, and
undulates throughout resulting in no
continuous flat provision. Given that the route
crosses the River Sowe through a woodland
area, there are possibilities for the roots of the
trees to impact the cycle route surface over
time, creating an uneven surface. For the
section of the route that crosses the River

The route transitions between different
typologies, resulting in multiple transitions.
Sowe, there could be difficulties accessing this  Careful design would be required to ensure
area for continual maintenance these are comfortable.

The southern section of the route, prior to
Barbican Rise is in a low risk flood area. The
delivery of a bridge in this section would be
costly and likely be unviable.

The route travels through a public park where
the scheme could contribute to other public
realm improvements

Significant wayfinding would be required given
how much the route deviates, action should be
taken to ensure that whilst the provision
remains consistent this is not unsightly to the
streetscape

The route covers significant open green space
so would require vegetation removal for a large
extent of the route. This could include the
removal of a high number of trees depending
on the route alignment, which should be
replanted where not possible to avoid

The route deviates from the LCWIP however
does connect two points.

1 1

1

0

0

1

/9 abed

26

14

14

13



This page is intentionally left blank



R i@? West Offices (City of York Council)
AN Station Rise

I York
Active Yok A
Travel
England

20 November 2024

Sent by email

Dear John,
Binley Road to University Hospital route; Clifford Bridge Road Section

| am aware that members of Coventry City Council are to consider approval of the Clifford Bridge
Road section of the Binley Cycleway and would like to set out what assurance Active Travel
England (ATE), as the funders of the Binley Cycleway, have provided to date in relation to this
scheme.

Binley cycleway, of which Clifford Bridge Road is considered to constitute the final link connecting
the University Hospital Coventry & Warwickshire (UHCW) with Coventry city centre has been
visited by ATE Inspectors and elements of the constructed scheme, developed by Coventry City
Council officers have been identified as examples of best practice.

ATE was first contacted about the Clifford Bridge Road element of scheme in summer 2023 and
Inspectors were asked to review five options. A route check was carried out on the proposed
alignments for which appropriate information was available. This review used the ATE Route
Check tool, intended to support the design process by identifying critical safety issues and policy
conflicts and promote a considered discussion about how a scheme could be modified to deliver an
improved level of service for those walking, wheeling and cycling. The outputs of this review were
shared with Transport for the West Midlands (TfWM) and Coventry City Council officers. The note
issued is in Annex A.

Subsequent to this the detailed design for Clifford Bridge Road scheme was presented by
Coventry City Council officers and discussed at the January 2024 TfWM trial Design Review Panel
(DRP). The DRP is a collaborative process between WMCA, Partner Local Authorities and ATE to
assess and improve the quality of design outcomes for Active Travel Fund (ATF) funded schemes.
The DRP informs the ongoing design process, and Local Authority and WMCA approval
processes, ensuring that schemes are supporting delivery of local policies and strategies. An ATE
Inspector participates in this panel, and the DRP discussion is informed by a desktop assessment
of the scheme which is assured by ATE, using the published ATE Route Check tool.

The recorded outcome of that DRP was “Support scheme promoter [Coventry City Council] to
proceed e.g. to consultation or Business Case submission as presented, noting comments /
recommendations in column J of the Feedback tab”. The report can be found in Annex B.

In addition to the technical assurance outlined above, ATE have received two pieces of
correspondence from local stakeholders in relation to the scheme as well as a Freedom of
Information (Fol) request (for access to route audits). A standard response was issued to both
correspondence cases recommending that the interested parties contact Coventry City Council as
the Local Highway Authority, whilst route audits were released in response to the Fol.

| would like to take this opportunity to highlight to you that ATE’s role is to provide guidance,
assurance and support to Coventry City Council in developing your active travel network and the
subsequent design of these schemes. It is for you, the Local Highway Authority, in collaboration
with TTWM to identify which schemes to progress, their alignment and ultimately, their design. ATE
does not direct which route, alignment or design a scheme should take.

Page 69



Active Travel England remains committed to working with TFTWM and Coventry City Council officers
to support the delivery of high quality active travel schemes which deliver maximum benefits for
users.

Yours faithfully,

Drion Deapn

Brian Deegan
Director of Inspections, Active Travel England

Page 70



Annex A

Page 71



‘ West Offices (City of York Council)

M Station Rise
York
ACtlve Y(())r1 6GA
Travel 23J 2023
England e
g Sent by email

Dear Adam
Design review feedback: ATE00676 Binley Road Coventry to University Hospital route
Thank you for contacting us about the Binley Road Coventry to University Hospital route.

A meeting was held to discuss the scheme early in 2023 and Active Travel England (ATE) offered
to carry out a design review of options. Subsequently, Coventry City Council forwarded five design
options for comment.

This letter outlines the key findings of the design review and Appendix A contains summaries of the
‘critical issues’ that have been identified. A critical issue, is defined as a street layout or condition
that is associated with pedestrian and/or cyclist collisions. In total, there are fifteen types of critical
issues used to assess schemes, which was first introduced nationally in Local Transport Note 1/20.

Summary of options

The committed parts of the route are shown in red in the plan below, these are either under
construction or have been completed.

e Option 1 is to implement the scheme as consulted on, and comprises a fully segregated
cycleway.

e Option 2 follows the same alignment as option 1, along Clifford Bridge Road, but is a
conversion of the existing footway to a shared use path.

e Option 3 is to do nothing, effectively the base situation where cycling takes place on the
carriageway mixed with general traffic.

e Option 4 is to construct a path across the River Sowe valley away from the highway

e Option 5 is a fully segregated cycleway along a parallel route and then a quiet-way
connection to the hospital.

j w—— Approved
{ Option 1 & 2
Option 4

Option 5

Page 72



Key Design Review findings

Active Travel England is committed to improving the quality and safety of active travel
infrastructure. One of the ways that we do this is by using a set of tools that we have developed to
assess the quality of active travel infrastructure designs and to identify critical issues for users.

Each of the options were assessed using the ‘route check’ tool and the results are summarised
below and detailed in Appendix A and a copy of the tools is attached to the email that accompanies
this letter.

e Option 1 presents the highest score in terms of the route check tool and when considering the
adjacent approved infrastructure would provide the most consistent experience and would be a
high-quality link.

e Option 2 is a proposed shared use route. Gear Change notes that shared use routes in streets
with high pedestrian or cyclist flows should not be used and instead, distinct tracks for cyclists
should be made. Shared use provision is unlikely to see as significant an uplift in active travel.
LTN 1/20 section 6.5 details its limitations around increased conflict between users, especially
those with visual impairments. Both Gear Change and LTN 1/20 are clear that shared use
routes with high pedestrian numbers or cyclist flows should not be used, and in urban areas
conversion of a footway to shared use is a last resort.

e Option 1 and Option 5 would together provide provision for a wider portion of the residential
areas and schools, consideration to developing both is recommended.

Delivery of schemes that do not meet LTN1/20, particularly if they have critical issues that can be
resolved within the scheme budget, may have an impact on an authority’s future capability rating
and consequently impact the amount of ATE funding available to the authority. Future funding for
the authority may be reduced up to the funding level of the non-compliant scheme delivered.

Next steps
Active Travel England Inspectors are keen to work with the proposer as the scheme develops to
ensure that active travel infrastructure provided as part of the scheme is to standard. This includes

an offer to meet with the proposer to assist in the scheme development.

Should you need any further assistance or would like to provide feedback about the process,
please contact us by email contact@activetravelengland.gov.uk.

Yours faithfully,

(D00 Deezan

Brian Deegan
Director of Inspections, Active Travel England

Page 73



T
jabl
Q

@ppendix : Route check, dentification of Critical Issues and recommendations

\I

%ption ATE comment/ critical issue Recommendation
Option1-  Route check results:

Zfr%':t?;:‘;f' bi-  Existing layout 44% with 2 critical issues

Consulted Proposed layout scores 69% with 0 critical issues

design, fully

segregated bi-
directional route
along Clifford
Bridge Road

Pedestrians and cyclists share space at crossing points.

Consider signalised parallel crossing instead of Toucan to
provide a higher quality of crossing facility.

There are limited crossing points throughout this section.

Consider additional points for users to access/leave the cycle
facility.

End on parking close to Gainford Rise, potential for overhang into cycle

facility from larger vehicles

Consider physical buffer such as planting.

Vehicle parking areas are mostly retained throughout.

Confirm buffer width as per LTN 1/20 table 6-1 for horizontal
separation recommendations around parking.

Shared use area over River Sowe bridge is substandard in terms of width.

ATE recognise the constraints in this location due to cost of
footbridge widening.

Side roads on the east of Clifford Bridge Road remain wide for

pedestrians to cross, with tactile paving missing in some instances

(Portree Road).

Review tactile paving throughout. Recommend continuous
footways and tightening radii, see LTN 1/20 figure 10.1.3.




Option 2 —
shared use.
Same alignment
as Option 1 but
comprising of a

Route check results:
Existing layout 44% with 4 critical issues
Proposed layout scores 54% with 1 critical issue

shared use
path. Critical issue: There is at least one instance of there being a cycle facility Throughout this section there is frequent residential parking
next to parking/loading with no buffer. This may present a 'dooring' risk for bays adjacent to the shared use path with no buffer. Consider
cyclists. narrowing laybys where cars park perpendicular to footway
and provide horizontal separation throughout. See LTN 1/20
table 6-1.
Urban area not suitable for shared use. Consider alternative options presented.
There are limited crossing points throughout this section. Consider additional points for users to access/leave the
proposed route.
Option 4 — No design at this stage — design tool not applied.
Traffic free
Sowe Valley ] ] i
route. Off Segregated route away from motorised traffic. Assumed 5m segregated route of sealed surface (3m bi-
highway traffic directional and 2m footway). Upgrading of existing route.
free path through
R|\ﬁer Sowe Presents a more direct route than Option 1 and 2 between hospital and
valley.

Allard Way junction (2.72km vs 3km)

No lighting detail provided — uptake of route likely dependant on lighting,  Consider lighting throughout.
especially for female users.

No proposed link to approved section of Binley Road route creating break Consider link.
in provision between A428 junction and commencement of traffic free
route at Tesco roundabout.

G, abed



T

jabl
Q

@ption 5-—
sdgregated bi-

ectional and
quiet way. Fully
segregated
cycleway along
a parallel route
(Hipswell
Highway) and
then a quiet-way
connection to
the hospital

Hispwell Highway bi-directional route section
Route check results:
Existing layout 41% with 4 critical issues

Proposed layout scores 58% with 2 resolvable critical issues

Critical issue: There is at least one instance of there being insufficient
crossing facilities for pedestrians on busier roads, or desire lines being

blocked by parking and loading on quieter roads.

Limited pedestrian crossing facilities, as volume assumed
>8,000 vpd additional formalised crossing points could be
considered. Uncontrolled refuges are likely to exclude some
users see LTN 1/20 table 10-2.

Critical issue: There is at least one instance of unacceptably poor
crossing facilities for pedestrians. This may lead to pedestrians crossing

busy roads at risk.

Binley Road/Allard Way junction contains arms with no green
man for pedestrians on the southern approach. There is no
signalised crossing for cyclists travelling south onto Allard
Way route. Note crossing upgrade not included in ATF4
scheme.

Footway constrained around bus shelters.

Recommend a minimum of 2m length clear boarding /
alighting area, to allow easy pedestrian movement and
boarding ramp. See Inclusive Mobility chapter 9.3 for
dimensions. Confirm widths.

Farren Road quiet way section

Route check results:

Existing layout 42% with 1 critical issue
Proposed layout scores 46% with 1 critical issue

Critical issue: There is at least one instance of cyclists having to mix with
traffic in lanes in the critical range (3.25m to 3.9m). This increases the risk

of collisions alongside or from behind for cyclists.

Confirm Farren Road traffic speed and volume are suitable for
cycling in mixed traffic as per LTN 1/20 figure 4.1

Priority change benefits cyclists but proposed side road interactions

remain untreated with large radii for pedestrians to cross.

Consider additional interventions at side roads to slow joining
motorised traffic, Bodmin Road likely has high volume of HGV
traffic, consider raised table. Recommend continuous




footways at side roads. Review tactile provision on side road
junctions (Arch Road, Hockling Road, Bodmin Road)

No proposed crossing points over Farren Road. Consider crossing locations e.g. access to Caludon Castle
park.

Missing connection for local shop key destination on Hipswell Road/ Ansty Consider extending provision to meet Anstry Road junction
Road junction. and local shops.

/) obed



Annex B

Page 78



Binley Cycleway - Clifford Bridge Road

N Final Layout

Widths

BRIDGECARE GARDENS

* The road will be maintained at 7.3 metres wide.
* Pavements will be 2 metres wide.

* Pavements are kerb separated from cycleway or paint separated from parking.
There will be a 20 metre long section of shared-use footway/cycleway outside house numbers 39 and 41to

avoid felling a very mature tree, or narrowing the road.
The cycleway width with vary along the road depending on the constraints at each location, but will average

at 2.7 metres wide.

Parking

Previously approved design beyond this point
./—Bus stop and tree remain as currently * Parking spaces are 2 metres wide with an extra 0.5 metre of painted hatching

* Parking spaces will be level with the pavement or cycleway to improve accessibility for disabled users.
* There are currently 79 on-street spaces spaces existing.
* There will be 86 on-street parking spaces provided in new layout.

Additional parking space adde

Oak tree to remain, cycletrack aligned Access and Pedestrians

Central island re-shaped to maintain two
lanes and create space for cycleway. around tree. One parking space removed ———= - o _ o
Roundabout has two entry lanes and one Drainage repaired in the pavement. [ Road widening. Parking provided in _ _ _ o o _ o
exit lane on each of the three arms. I, ; marked parking bay on new widened * Two new Puffin pedestrian crossings will be installed and the existing pelican crossing will be upgraded to a
i ) ~—— pavement, separated from the road new Toucan crossing.
','i — _ T dditional i dded. T '5 by a splay kerb and protected by * Side road junction visibility will be improved through the removal or reduction of parking bays near junctions.
o i Wor\?omlléc;/nl\?la%?er tlrr:a%:?:ﬁweosVZd (camé n:lv(\j : hatched markings. However overall parking spaces on the street will increase.
"' ’ - T
tree planted. . .
Grass verge narrowed. One tree to be Landscaping and Drainage
removed. One new tree planted.
Splitter island widened and repositioned. * 24 trees are to be removed.
Short merge off the roundabout removed tc | / //\/ ! * 12 trees are to remain, including the most mature trees.
improve safety, now single lane exit /; Iy / v, Two additional parking spaces added. ] . | . * 32 new trees are to be planted.
/\ f/ / One new tree. i, Road widening. Parking provided in * New trees will be planted with a high quality root protection system, enabling them to mature much more
§ /:;:,:\ ’ / [ marked parking bay on new widened quickly than average street trees, and be larger when planted.
/ 7 ’ ew traffic signal controlled crossing [| T ————pavement, separated from the road * 15 rainwater gardens (SUDS) will be installed. These are new green areas with low level planting that hold
i (Puffin crossing). g Ey ahSP(;ay kekrb and protected by on to rainwater, reducing flooding.
N ¢ atched markings.

A mini zebra crossing across the cycleway.
One new tree———— |
Grass verge narrowed and replaced
with Sustainable Urban Drainage

System and low level planting. One Key to the Plan

oad starts to get re-aligned (widened) here.

(o)
<
8 / \ tree to be removed.
Footway and Cycleway narrow here to /. - . . . . : .
y y grotect the trees. 0 1] |/ L;o Tree and grass verge replaced with two One new tree—— . 6 o | . 45 degree kerb. This kerb slopes and is lower than a standard kerb which means it is easier to drive
Three large trees remain. a /77 £ /=——additional parking spaces and two new N Road widening. Parking provided in over.
Two additional parking spaces created Q 5 / trees. g marked parking bay on new widened o
N ; W +———pavement, separated from the road — Standard kerb. The type of kerb most used in this city, for example between roads and pavements.
vl by a splay kerb and protected by
------------- Dropped Kerb. This is a much flatter kerb, usually used to allow access to driveways.

with a reinforced grass verge and hatched !
E:--" hatched markings.

protection.
Sustainable Urban Drainage System - Rainwater garden. These are new green areas with low level

I | Grass verge narrowed and replaced 7%
with Sustainable Urban Drainage //% planting that hold on to rainwater, reducing flooding.

/System and low level planting.

b

i Marked parking bay on widened pavement
s / with a splay kerb between road and parking.
v 1 Hatched area to protect parking bay.

Grass verge

Footway and Cycleway separated by kerbs
End on parking layout maintained at existinng

depth, but realigned with road widening o
Two additional parking spaces provided on

parking and road, with hatched protection
marked on the road.

the opposite side of the road. No change in
number of spaces. marked parking bay on widened pavement.
Splay kerb between road and parking. One new tree. i ) New tree
Verge and two trees removed, replaced g Road widening. Parking provided in
J ‘ . with one new tree. [ marked parking bay on new widened @ Existing tree to be removed
Trees remain. Bus stop remains on ;:' | I Lok ’;'“\pavement, separated from the road
newly constructgd build out. / ; / feo . : ¢ by a splay kerlb and protected by @3 Existing tree to remain
Uncontrolled pedestrian dropped ] One parking space removed. New One tree removed, two new trees planted in o hatched markings.
crossing provided. / b uncontrolled pedestrian crossing repositioned grass verge 7
Mini zebra crossing across the cycleway . Ao/ " E@ (pedestrian dropped kerb) to help access Grass verge narrowed and replaced
..... / I bus stop. One new tree. : with Sustainable Urban Drainage
Layby narrowed to prevent end on System and low level planting.
. . _ _ parking. ; / a.. Two additional parking spaces provided on ! o _ ]
Su_bject to discussion with 151-157, I / ; ; / marked parking bay on widened pavement. Road WIdempg. Parking prowd_ed in o ] ]
this could be replaced by two pairs [/ / iy Splay kerb between road and parking. One new tree——__| : marked parking bay on new widened EX|st|ng typ|ca| cross section of the road (shown below)
of shared driveway accesse Lf ’, Verge and two trees removed, replaced - avement, separated from the road
serving the four houses, with one IL¢ / - with one new tree. Lo by a splay kerb and protected by
on street space in between. | / ‘ : t ; hatched markings. \@&7 )17
OR be three on-street spaces | : i =
without on-plot parking. | / ;“7 Parki . One tree removed, two new trees planted in i E Road widening. Two parking spaces \\Q“VV
! arking becomes a marked bay on widened repositioned grass verge ; \ 4 ]10
v pavement with a splay kerb between the removed and replaced with Sustainable
/ Urban Drainage Systems with low level
] planting.

New Sustainable Urban
Double yellow lines installed to meet

current junction visibility standards.

improve junction visibility.

Drainage Systems with low /
level planting. I
.;‘: | Cycleway access to Portree Ave.
VA Double Yellow Lines extended to Faygate One parking space removed: i\ Pavement Parking bay Parking bay ~ Pavement
LA Close on north side of Gainford Rise and on Two new trees. | A Tree in verge
A to Clifford Bridge Road on both sides to {— - -PO'R‘:FREE‘ A\/ENUE : . . .
|| | Proposed typical cross section of the road with parking and new tree

S

hown below

' Road widening. Two parking spaces (sho belo )@Qﬂ%
7

removed and replaced with Sustainable
Urban Drainage Systems with low level
shrubs.
Double yellow lines installed to meet
current junction visibility standards.

Trees remain. Cycleway will be
road side of trees. Road
realigned towards Gainford Rise
to make space.

1AL
' Two additional parking spaces added.
Two trees removed. One new tree planted.

: Two parking spaces removed.
Bus stop relocated. Bus stop flag and

boarding area accessed via mini-zebra
crossing.

Sustainable Urban Drainage System
added.

AMBULIANCE

D
<
S
oc
Lo

G
o
-

h
Pavement
Cycleway Parking marked on Pavement

Parking off road

Road re-aligned to widen pavement. o
0ad widening. Grass verge narrowed

Two additional parking ; __':
spaces created. One tre j I ¢ Road widened on this side. One tree Tree to remain with resin bound
removed. ! emoved, replaced with a new tree. Grass gravel finish on the surface OQ:
] I [ verge repositioned. maximising usable width. Short O

! [ : section of route will be shared-use LL‘,: . . . . .
7l / to avoid tree felling. = Proposed typical cross section of the road with sustainable urban drainage
¥ N 7 Road widening. Parking provided in marked © system (SUD) - (ShOWh below)
| 1 I f 4 parking bay on new widened pavement,
| 1 K 623 eparated from the road by a Splay kerb . Lot

and protected by hatched markings. I / {cﬁ}

One new tree. Two parking spaces removed\/ I

I “ VA
Two additional parking Road widening. Two trees removed. Two K I Pavement Cycleway Parking off road SuD Pavement
spaces created. new trees. i / (Rain garden)
|
Proposed typical detail showing parking and driveway accesses - plan view

Junction will be raised to pavement level.
Vehicles must give way to pedestrians and

Road widening. Parking provided in marked cyclists/that are-crossing the juncfion.

@\zarking bay on new widened footway,
eparated from the road by a Splay kerb

and protected by hatched markings. B

One new tree. R,DGECARE GARDENS

/

E| ROAD

I
|
|
_J

:
!

/
L - ,
------------ New traffic signal controlled
@ edestrian crossing (Puffin)
Bus stop repositioned.

Road widening. One tree removed. Two
new trees.

Two additional parking
spaces created.Tw
trees removed.

B

—— — —
%,——'f

\—'\/\__\

Two additional parking spaces created.
Grass verge removed.
Road widening. Parking provided in marked parking bay
on new widened footway, separated from the road by a
Splay kerb and protected by hatched markings.
One new tree.

LIFFORD BRIDG

Cycleway created in
place of grass verge 1

ARS R

~—-

c
O0MBE PARK Rouy

One tree removed and replaced with a new
tree. Bus stop repositioned on new road
alignment. Access to driveway unaffected.

N NAN

—_—

Road widening. Two trees removed. Two ; // ; I
new trees.

NPELY
o

’ Parking within the junction visibility splay
r‘. will be removed and replaced with bollarded I
‘/é;/Sustainable Urban Drainage planting, and
one new tree
I Junction will be raised to pavement level. I RJ/ur;](.:tilon will be raised to pavzmen.t level. g /1:@
DE ; Vehicles must give way to pedestrians and M/[ L e I'ICtesthm;JSt give way t?hpe_ esttr_lans an 7/
NS — cyclists that are crossing the junction. M/\/E cyclists that are crossing the junction. /l
7/
/
7l
New cycle link nelho pedestrian path to ;l
connect the crossing with the school. Vi
==
| s—

New upgraded crossing. Pedestrians and 1
cyclists separated, side by side. | {
ol

Completed cycleway beyond this point

OAD
ARINKLOW R
' w.eSt Produced from Ordn.ance'Surve.y mgpping with permission of.the Plans are nOt
‘ ‘ Midlands Contollerof e Malst' Stalonany Offcs ) Crown Convat, shown to a
7 A'A Cycle & Walk Gopuright and daiabae right 3022. Ordnance Survey 100076354, specified scale
' ac > Binley Cycleway Section 7 - Clifford Bridge Road. Final Layout

Funded by Janua
ry 2024

UK Government

Page 79

e

Coventry City Council =~
Active Travel England



AutoCAD SHX Text
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
Rosedale

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
Craven

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
CLIFFORD BRIDGE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
COOMBE

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
MILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
BRINKLOW ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
PORTREE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
MELFORT CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
Beltane

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
7 to 19

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
80.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
BRINKLOW ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
MILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
CLIFFORD BRIDGE  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
BRIDGECARE GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
PORTREE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
BRIDGECARE GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
COOMBE PARK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
BUS STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
BUS STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
BUS STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
173

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
148

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
147

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
COOMBE PARK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
77.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
157

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
177

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
GAINFORD RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
80.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
FAYGATE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
137

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
Sowe

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
157

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
162

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
71.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
CLIFFORD BRIDGE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
134

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
187

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
CLIFFORD BRIDGE  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
CLIFFORD BRIDGE  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
GAINFORD RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
BRIDGECARE GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
BUS STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
BUS STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
BUS STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
BUS STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
AMBULANCE


iﬁmwm Route Check D raﬂ

Version Control

This current version is a draft - subject to final approval

o
jab)
«Q
®
0]
o

Version No. Notes Date
1.0 Original version created by Brian Deegan (ATE). Feb-22
2.0 New streamlined version created by WSP. Apr-22
21 Revisions made by WSP following various ATE/WSP/Motts reviews May-22
22 Corrections made by WSP 16/06/2022
3.0 Placemaking check and N/A functionality added by WSP 17/06/2022
3.1 Minor amendments by WSP ahead of beta testing freeze 20/06/2022
3.2 Change to shared footway scoring and locked version of spreadsheet created 15/07/2022
3.3 Error with cell protection fixed 19/07/2022

Changes following feedback from users and TfL ahead of wider release for ATF4.
Changes included some amended wording and adding N/A functionality for certain
metrics, adding more spaces for commentary, editing the lock/unlock and text

3.4 wrapping functionality and optimising the sheets for printing. 12/09/2022

341 Locking errors fixed to allow users to paste images and edit cells as needed 17/11/2022

Bugs fixed and permissions changed to allow users to change column widths and row

26/01/2022
heights /01/.




4
Active Travel England Route CheCk D ra

Introduction
About this tool

How to use this tool

There are three tabs to complete: 'Key Scheme Information' (to be completed first), the 'Link Check' and the 'Junction Assessment Tool' check. There are then two
output tabs: 'Full Check Score Results' (which summarises the overall scores from the 'Link Check' and JAT Check' tabs) and 'Design Review Results', which is for ATE
completion only. Additional info may be added into comment boxes in the 'Full Check Score Results' tab. The tabs are colour coded: red tabs are for ATE only, grey
tabs provide information and green tabs are tabs to be completed and reviewed by the reviewer.

The tool allows users to perform a reduced 'Critical Check', which only assesses the critically important aspects of schemes (mostly to do with safety). The reviewer
can select whether they are doing a 'Critical Check' or a 'Full Check' in the 'Pre-Questionnaire' on the 'Key Scheme Information' tab. If a 'Critical Check' is being
performed, the 'Full Check Score Results' tab will not be populated.

The first time a route is assessed, the existing conditions should be scored to create a baseline. Then, as designs are progressed, these can be assessed against the
baseline to ensure that conditions are being substantially improved. It is also important to continue rescoring schemes as they progress through the design stages,
to ensure that design compromises which might affect pedestrians and cyclists are kept to an absolute minimum. Finally, the as-built scheme will be assessed
against the baseline to check that a high quality scheme has been built.

How to use the 'Key Scheme Information' tab

The 'Key Scheme Information' tab first requires basic information about the scheme to be filled in (such as name, design stage and who is performing the
assessment).

The 'Key Scheme Information' tab also contains a mandatory 'Pre-Check Questionnaire'. The first question asks whether a 'Full Check' or 'Critical Check' is being
performed. This affects what is shown in the remaining tabs. There are then a few questions which scrutinise key aspects of the scheme, such as whether it forms
part of a wider network plan or contains shared footways. If there are shared footways in the design, the reviewer will be asked what the justification for these is in
light of LTN 1/20 guidance. If there are shared footways in the existing layout and/or proposed design, there will be a further question on shared footways in the
'Link Check' tab. The reviewer can also choose to undertake a 'Placemaking Check' if your scheme incorporates placemaking elements. This will affect the number of
metrics to complete in the 'Link Check' tab.

The 'Key Scheme Information' tab also requires the reviewer to add a network map of the scheme showing it in context (e.g. if it is part of a wider route).

How to use the 'Link Check’ tab

Routes are made up of multiple links and junctions. The reviewer should first divide the overall route up into links of similar characteristics. Each link will then
require its own version of this spreadsheet to be completed. Great care should be taken to ensure that routes are divided in such a way that all junctions on the
route are scored (and no junctions are scored twice).

The 'Link Check' tab consists of a series of metrics. The link, and the junctions which are on the link, are to be scored to reflect their weakest points. For example, if
footways are wide on one side of a junction, but narrow on the other side, then the width of the narrower footways should be used in the scoring.

The metrics ask for data, information and a certain level of design detail in order to score certain metrics. There is space in the tool to write assumptions when
scoring these, in case this is missing at the earlier design stages, for example.

Possible scores are red (0), amber (1) and green (2). A red score is a cause for concern, although some metrics have an additional ‘critical’ ('C') score possible, which
highlights elements of major concern, usually relating to safety. These metrics are especially important and so scores for these metrics are multiplied by 3 for the
final weighting. Justification must be given for any remaining critical scores through the design process. The reviewer will be asked if there are any trams along the
route and, if the answer is yes, there will be an additional two critical safety metrics to score.

A small number of metrics also have the 'Not Applicable’ option ('N/A') in case the metric does not apply (e.g. if the metric is assessing signal crossings but there are
none on the route). Where this is the case, the reviewer should explain why the metric does not apply.

It is impossible to get full marks in the 'Link Check' so the designer should not design to beat the checklist. Instead, they should think of it as a strength test.

If the reviewer answered yes to the question of whether a 'Placemaking Check' was being performed, there will be additional metrics to score at the bottom of this
tab.

How to use the JAT Check’ tab

Junctions (defined as priority junctions, signalised junctions and are scored twice in this tool: once in the 'Link Check’ tab and a second time in the
'Junction Assessment Tool Check' ('JAT Check') tab.

A Junction Assessment Tool check should be performed for the existing layout and the proposed design. An explanation of how to perform a JAT check can be found
in Appendix B of LTN 1/20. However, all desirable pedestrian movements across the junction should also be assessed and scored alongside cycle movements (e.g.
pedestrian crossing movements across each arm of the junction and possibly also diagonals crossings). A single combined score for pedestrian and cyclist
movements around the junction should be given.

How to use the 'Full Check Score Results' tab

This is non-editable tab which summarises the 'Link Check' scores against 14 of the 22 Active Travel England principles. It also gives the overall score for the link and
highlights the number of critical fails. If a 'Placemaking Check' has been undertaken, it gives the overall placemaking scores for the link. Finally, it also summarises
the results of the 'JAT Check' tab.

This tab will not be fully populated / useable if a reduced 'Critical Check' is being performed.

How to use the 'Design Review Results' tab

This tab pulls out any critical fails in the proposed design from the 'Link Check' tab and provides space for ATE reviewers to comment on these as well as other
results from the assessment.

Page 81



L

Active Travel England Route Check

Draft

Scheme name Binley Cycleway Way - Clifford Bridge Road
Scheme reference XXX_CVY_03

Scheme information reviewed (for ATE use)

Scheme reference (optional)

Local Authority Coventry City Council (TFWM)
Scheme budget (optional)

Design Stage Detailed Design

Route length assessed in this file 800m

Total route length 6KM

Completed by - name
Completed by - email
Appraisal date (for ATE use)
Approved by (for ATE use)

This is part of the Binley cycleway scheme - it was not orignally completed due to challenges with parking which
Notes increased costs. It is agreed that this section is important to link the hospital to the rest of the Binley cycleway.

Coventry may reallocate existing funds to build this scheme.

1. Is a 'Full Check' being performed or a 'Critical Check' only?

2. Is a 'Placemaking Check' being performed?

3. Does the scheme form part of an LCWIP or similar network plan?

4. If the answer to (3) is yes, please give details:

5. Does the proposed scheme include shared footways? If the answer is yes, what is the justification for this in light of
LTN 1/20 guidance?

6. Does the proposed scheme include shared use crossings (e.g. toucan crossings)? If the answer is yes, what is the
justification for this in light of LTN 1/20 guidance?

Full Check

Yes

Yes

Missing link between hospital and Binley
cycleway

Yes, short sections at continuous footways
and around a mature tree

No

Please add below a map showing the section of route being scored in this spreadsheet.

If the route is part of a longer route of multiple sections (covered in other spreadsheets) please show this on the map for context too.

Page 82



8

Active Travel England

Route Check

Link Check Assessment

Draft

Red Amber Green
Factor Mode Metric C 1 Existing Proposed
SAFE
Walkin Side roads / priority junctions are either closed
. e/ Conflict with motor traffic at side roads |>2500vpd cut across main cycling or . . . Side roads / priority junctions have entry / p. vl .
Wheeling / L . . Side roads / priority junctions are untreated. to motor traffic, or have continuous footway or
) / priority junctions walking streams treatments. .
Cycling zebra crossings.
. . . ) The principal pedestrian and cyclist . . Cyclists bypass the
Walking / . . ) . . . Pedestrian and/or cyclist movements are in . |All pedestrian and cyclist movements are . . .
. Conflict with motor traffic at signal >2500vpd cut across main cycling X . . movements are separated from motor traffic . junction, but pedestrians
Wheeling / X ] k conflict with motor traffic movements at X . R separated from all motor traffic movements at
) controlled junctions and roundabouts and/or walking streams ienal led i ) d dab movements at signal controlled junctions and | . | lled i X d dab cross uncontrolled at the
Cycling signal controlled junctions and roundabouts. roundabouts. signal controlled junctions and roundabouts. B4082 roundabout
Cyclists are in cycle lanes with light protection
. R . or stepped cycle tracks under 1.8m wide
. . X Cyclists are not protected in traffic lanes less |, . . A . .
. . . . Cyclists are not protected in traffic lanes ; . X (single direction). Cyclists are protected from motor traffic or off- Cyclists protected
Cycling Collision alongside or from behind X than 3.25m wide or over 3.9m wide. This )
between 3.25 and 3.9m wide. . road entirely. throughout
includes unprotected cycle lanes. X i o )
Or, cyclists are in a protected bidirectional
cycle facility under 2.5m wide.
. Trip hazard There are level differences of greater Many trip hazards Few trip hazards No trip hazards, level clear surface
Walking / . Assume route resurfaced
Collision . than 20mm with no colour contrast to )
Wheeling X . and improved
Risk help identify them.
Confllct V\{Ith ke'rb5|d'e af:tlwty (parking, Buffer provided between
loading, risk of 'dooring' and bus stops) cycleway and parking
spaces. However, it is
Frequent kerbside activity for cyclists to Less frequent kerbside activity, and conflict ~ |Kerbside activity is well-managed with no or _‘;"‘:??r in so‘n;eol'oc-ations
contend with. with cyclists is well-managed. minimal conflict with cyclists. i if this is provided via a
. Cycle facility next to parking/loading v & ¥ Frequent parking kerb or road markings -
Cycling ! spaces along the o
with no buffer. B h h ision for |s L ided f i B b d board d route i.e. it may be easy for
usistops on the route have no provision for [Some provision is provided for cyclists to pass |Bus stop ypass?s and boarders a.re used to vehicles to encroach into
cyclists. bus stops. remove all conflicts between cyclists and buses. the buffer and reduce the
buffer width. Bus stop
bypasses provided on the
NB carriageway
Risk of crossing conflicts On busy roads (>8000vpd) formal On busy roads (>8000vpd), formal crossings [On busy roads (>8000vpd), formal crossings  |On busy roads (>8000vpd), formal crossings are
crossings are more than 400m apart. are provided every 200-400m. are provided every 100-200m. provided every 50-100m.
Walking / On quieter roads (<8000vpd), desire On quieter roads (<8000vpd), On quieter roads (<8000vpd), loading/parking |On quieter roads (<8000vpd), there are formal Signalised crossing near
Wheeling lines are blocked by parking and loading. |loading/parking is formalised with gaps for |is formalised with gaps for pedestrians to crossings or only one lane of traffic to cross. to Ridgeacre Gardens
pedestrians to cross. cross on desire lines.
Standard of crossing facility On busy roads (>8000vpd), there are On busy roads (>8000vpd), there are On busy roads (>8000vpd), signal crossings On busy roads (>8000vpd), signal crossings rest
uncontrolled crossings of two or more  [uncontrolled crossings of two or more lanes (are provided for pedestrians. on green for pedestrians or have rapid Facilities improved, but
lanes with no gaps in traffic. with regular gaps in traffic. response. . uncontrolled crossing
Walking / On quieter roads (<8000vpd), crossing points N;s:;z:nagt the across two lanes of traffic
Wheeling At signal junctions there are arms with  [On quieter roads (<8000vpd), there is no have effective implied priority for pedestrians. |On quieter roads (<8000vpd), crossing points foundabout may not be suitable - to
with no green man for pedestrians. crossing provision for pedestrians. are zebra crossings. be confirmed with traffic
data
Speed of traffic (whel"e cycIlstsvare not 85th percentile speed <20mph.
Walking / separated or pedestrians crossing
Feelin A ~30mph A ~30mph 85th
& Wheeling / uncontrolled) 85th percentile > 37mph (60kph) 85th percentile >30mph 85th percentile 20mph-30mph Cyclists are protected from motor traffic or off- ssume n.]p Ssume. mP
-U)f ) . 85th percentile percentile
Cycling road entirely and controlled crossings are
(ghfety provided for pedestrians wherever needed.




Total volume of traffic (where cyclists
are not separated or pedestrians cross

0-2500 AADT

AADT assumed over
10,000. Nearby

Cyclists protected

Q
(@) Walking / uncontrolled) >10000 vpd 5000-10000vpd 2500-5000vpd location has flows throughout, but
D Wheeling / 9 Cyclists are protected from motor traffic or off- ~20,000: pedestrians cross
o0 Cycling >5% of traffic is HGVs. 2-5% of traffic is HGVs. <2% of traffic is HGVs road entirely and controlled crossings are https://roadtraffic.df uncontrolled at
N provided for pedestrians wherever needed. t.gov.uk/manualcoun roundabout
tpoints/810146
Walking / Required crossing speed (risk of Pedestrians must cross at a speed of Pedestrians must cross at a speed of 1.2m/s [Pedestrians must cross at a speed of between |Pedestrians can cross at a speed of 1m/s or
Wheeling 10 |pedestrians coming into conflict with over 1.2m/s to get across the crossing in |to get across the crossing in time. 1m/s and 1.2m/s to get across the crossing in |slower and still get across the crossing in time. Assume standard Assume standard
traffic) time. time.
Clear walking spaces free of <1.5m clear footway width. 1.5m-2m clear continuous footway width 2m-3m clear footway width and pedestrian >3m clear footway width and pedestrian
gsp Y Y y p Y p
obstructions and furniture, reducing and pedestrian comfort is good (PCL of A-C). |comfort is good (PCL of A-C). comfort is good (PCL of A-C).
Effective Width i i ing i R i
! Walking / risk .of pedestrians walking in the Or, 1.5r’r.1 2m clear f?otway width and . . . . Footway widths appear
Without Wheeling 11 |carriageway. pedestrian comfort is poor (PCL of D-E). |Or, 2m-3m clear continuous footway width |Or, >3m clear footway width and pedestrian acceptable
Obstruction and pedestrian comfort is poor (PCL of D-E). [comfort is poor (PCL of D-E).
Is there any interface with
trams on this route? N <<< please select Y or N
COMFORTABLE
Defects: non cycle friendly ironworks, Major defects Many minor defects Few minor defects No defects
Cycling 14 [raised/ sunken covers/gullies Assume resurfacing
Surface Defects: non flush tables, misleading Major defects Many minor defects Few minor defects No defects
Maintenance tactile information, cracked paving, slip-
Walking / 15 risks present from covers
Wheeling

If you specified (in the previous tab) that you are conducting a 'Full Check' please continue by assessing the metrics below.
If you specified that you are conducting a 'Critical Check' only, please continue to the 'JAT Check' tab.

Cycle surface type

Machine-laid asphalt or smooth and firm

Cyclin, 16 Unsurfaced/unbound or unstable blocks/sets |[Hand-laid asphalt or smooth blocks . . .
ycling / / P blocks undisturbed by turning vehicles
Walking surface type The surface is low-grip (e.g. PTV of 25 or The surface is medium-grip (e.g. PTV of The surface is high-grip (e.g. PTV of 35 or
Surface Material lower). between 25 and 35). higher).
Walking / 17
Wheeling If paved, the joints are wider than 5mm. If paved, the joints are 5mm or less. If paved, the joints are mortared.
DIRECT
Deviation against straight line of the
cvelin 18 entire route (not just the link being Deviation factor against straight line or Deviation factor against straight line or Deviation factor against straight line or
ycling assessed) shortest road alternative >1.4 shortest road alternative 1.2 -1.4 shortest road alternative <1.2
Deviation
Alignment of signal control junctions No crossings are located on desire lines. Some crossings are located on desire lines. All crossings are located on desire lines, and all
Walking / 19 and standalone crossings with desire desire lines are provided for. Or, there is no
Wheeling lines. need for crossings as the route is away from
motor traffic.
Delay to cyclists at junctions . ) L ) : o Delay is shorter than for motor vehicles or Cyclists able to bypass
. Delay for cyclists at junctions is greater than |Delay for cyclists at junctions is similar to ] . . .
Cycling 20 X X cyclists are not required to stop at junctions the roundabout -
for motor vehicles delay for motor vehicles . o
(e.g. bypass at signals) minimises delay
Walking / 21 Delay to pedestrians at signal controlled Maximum waiting time >60secs Maximum waiting time 40-60secs Maximum waiting time <40secs
e Wheeling junctions




Journey iimne

Delay to pedestrians at standalone
signal crossings

Pedestrians must wait over 10 seconds for a
green man.

Pedestrians must wait up to 10 seconds for a
green man.

Crossing rests on the green man for
pedestrians, or the green man is triggered

Walki
) |n.g / 22 instantly when the button is pushed.
Wheeling
ATTRACTIVE
Walking / Signing Basic direction signing (pedestrians and Some cycle and pedestrian specific direction  [Comprehensive signage on routes. Signs are
Wayfinding Wheeling/ | 23 cyclists follow road signs and markings) signing clear, easily visible and legible.
Cycling
- - - - N <
Rest Walking 24 Walking distance between resting points 150m 50m to 150m 50m
Walking / Walking distance between shelter points >150m 50m to 150m <50m Frequent trees on
Shelter N 25 Frequent trees on route
Wheeling route
Standard of lighting No lighting. Patches of no lighting. Full street lighting provided (i.e. to British
Standard 5489:2003)
Walking / Or, bat-friendly lighting. A i A i
. . . . . . . ssume well-lit - ssume well-lit -
Lighting Wheeling/ | 26 Or, t.)ff-carrlageway lighting for pedestrians and residential street residential street
Cycling cyclists meets equivalent standard.
Ease of access to secure cycle parking . . . Some secure and overlooked cycle parking . . . .
Secure Cycle . No cycle parking provided or inadequate . Secure and overlooked cycle parking provided, No evidence of cycle No evidence of cycle
. Cycling 27 |on- and off-street L provided but not enough to meet present . . A
Parking provision in insecure not overlooked areas. demand sufficient to meet present and future demand. parking parking
On urban streets, cyclists are expected to
use shared footways and/or toucan
crossings Y / In rural areas or motor traffic free There are no shared use facilities. Some shared use at side
. ings . .
Impact of Cyclin Walking / € environments, shared use footways pass the roads/continuous
P y g Wheeling / 28 |Shared use . width requirements set out in Table 6-3 of Or, in motor traffic free environments, footways. Short shared
on Walking . In rural areas or motor traffic free . . o . R ) )
Cycling . . LTN 1/20 and give pedestrians priority over pedestrian priority is given with a suggested use section to preserve
environments, shared use footways fail the . . ture t
. . . cyclists. route for cyclists. mature tree
width requirements set out in Table 6-3 of
LTN 1/20.
COHESIVE
Measures taken to restrict the use of There are no access restrictions for There are some time or movement There is no through-movement for motorised
Reducing Walking / private cars motorised traffic. restrictions for motorised traffic. traffic, with access limited to local residents,
Private Wheeling / 29 deliveries and public service vehicles. Or, the
Car Use Cycling route is completely separate from motor traffic.
R— Ability to join/leave route safely and . . . . . . . . . )
Legibility of . . Cyclists cannot transition to other routes Cyclists can transition to other routes with Cyclists have dedicated, legible and Assume minimal Good connection to
. Cycling 30 |easily . . . L . . L . ) .
Transitions without dismounting. minimal disruption to their journey. understandable transitions to all other routes. disruption Coombe Park Road
Walking / Consistency of provision for pedestrians
P . . . Some changes on route
Route Continuity | Wheeling / 31 |and cyclists. Multiple changes of form on the route. Some changes of form on the route. No change of form on the route. (segregated/shared)
Cycling
ACCESSIBLE
Walking / Steepest gradient on the route >5 per cent 3-5 per cent <3 per cent
Gradient Wheeling / | 32 |(including ramps and horizontal
Cycling gradients)
Walking / Tactile information to standard Standards have not been met. Standards have been met. Standards have been met and the facilities are
Tactile Paving Wheeling/ | 33 fully legible.
Cycling
Access control barriers/ security barriers Barriers are not accessible by wheelchairs All barriers are accessible by wheelchair and  |All barriers are accessible by the cycle design
Walking / and/or solo upright cycles (as defined in LTN |by solo upright cycle (as defined in LTN 1/20), |vehicle referenced in LTN 1/20, with sufficient Assume barrier at
Barriers Wheeling/ | 34 1/20). with sufficient space to turn. space to turn. Barrier at link to Coombe Park Road is
Cydli Coombe Park Road removed (assumed from
ycling

Or, there are no barriers.

design)

Gg obed




uy)
QD
«Q
9]
Whe@air Access

(o))

Wheeling

35

Wheelchair access

Pedestrian facilities (including any crossings,
connections and public transport
interchange facilities) are not wheelchair
accessible.

All pedestrian facilities (including any
crossings, connections and public transport
interchange facilities) are step-free and
accessible for wheelchair users, but some
interaction with cyclists is possible.

All pedestrian facilities (including crossings,
connections and public transport interchange
facilities) are step-free and accessible for
wheelchair users, and there is no potential for
interaction with cyclists .

If you specified (in the previous tab) that you are conducting a 'Placemaking check' please continue by assessing the metrics below.

PERSONAL SAFETY

Otherwise, please continue to the 'JAT Check' tab.

Natural surveillance from the
surrounding environment throughout

There is poor surveillance — because few
buildings overlook the street, or because

There is intermittent surveillance — because
surrounding buildings do not completely

There is constant surveillance — because mixed
use buildings overlook the street or space

surveillance and ] - the day then? is little activity from people using or overlook the stret?t througr.m.ut day and night, throughmft.day and night, or b(?cause ther-e is Constjlnt . Constant surveillance
Activity walking through the space. or.because th.ere is less activity (fewer people |lots of activity (many people L'Jsmg or walking SUf‘Ve' a!wce fom_ from residential dwellings
using or walking through the space / fewer through the space / many active frontages). residential dwellings
active frontages).
Risk of crime High risk: ‘hiding places’, loitering, poor Low risk: area is open and the streetscape is |Very low risk: area is open and the streetscape
Risk of Crime - 37 maintenance well-maintained is high-quality and well-maintained

CHARACTER AND LEGIBILITY

Street Network

Street network impact on wayfinding

The street network is complex and/or there
are connectivity issues. Maps or signage are
needed to help navigate the area.

The street network helps users find their way
in some situations. Users may need to refer
to maps or signage at times while moving

The street network is accessible and its layout
helps users navigate the area without the need
for maps or signage. Users can see where they

Layout * through the area. are going and know how to get there.
Extent to which the form of the street The form of the street clashes with its The layout of the street is functional and The form of the street is in full harmony with
matches its intended place and intended function(s). There are issues with  |serves its intended purpose in terms of its intended function(s). Users can find their
Place and movement functions navigation and movement and/or the street |movement and/or place. way without a need for maps or signage and/or
Movement . 39 is an unpleasant place to be. the street is a pleasant place to be.

Impact of highway design on behaviour The highways layout encourages aggressive |The highways layout controls user behaviour |The highways layout encourages civilised
behaviour - which makes the street an throughout. behaviour, negotiation and forgiveness - which
unpleasant place to be. makes the street a pleasant place to be.

Behaviour
Influence } 40 (Example features of this type of layout:
central hatching, guard railing, wide flared
side roads and right-turn pockets).
Impact of on-street loading No designated provision - risk of abuse. Reasonable loading provisions in street area  |Good loading provision, low impact and
Enforcement - ) a1 where needed. integrated.
Loading

Or, no loading provision necessary.

Efficiency of signage

Lots of signage clutter and/or redundant

Minimal signage clutter, few examples of

Minimal signage, e.g. for wayfinding purposes

Street Clutter - 42 ) .
signage. redundant signage. only.
Sustainable Incorporation of low carbon, No low carbon, sustainable materials used Some low carbon, sustainable materials used |[Full integration of low carbon, sustainable
) - 43 [sustainable materials into the design materials
Materials

Visual Harmony
of Materials

44

Suitability of materials and street
furniture for area character

Surface materials and street furniture out of
keeping with the area character

Surface materials and street furniture in
keeping with the area character

Surface materials and street furniture enhance
the area's character

Distinctiveness of

Visual interest

Uniform, monotonous, boring

Some variety in the streetscape

Lots of variety in the streetscape / visually

Some variety - e.g. new

- 45 . . .
Streetscape interesting / unique features trees planted
Significance of the street to society The street is culturally significant on a The street is culturally significant on a local The character of the street reflects its cultural
Cultural ) 26 regional or national level, but the character [level, but the character of the street does not |significance to society.
Significance of the street does not reflect this. reflect this.

SOCIAL ACTIVITY




Proximity to places where people might

>800m

400 to 800m

<400m

Frequent verges on the

Social Space 47 |stop and have a conversation route
Diversit a8 Conditions for pleasant interaction Single activity area. Multiple activity area. Flexible-use space. Social interaction
v encouraged through street design choices.
Street Level of play / activity for children None Some access to formal/natural play spaces for |Access to formal/natural play spaces for
Engagement for 49 children children and street features that can engage
Children children
ENVIRONMENTAL
Habitat 50 |Sustainability of habitat for wildlife Low Moderate High
Biodiversity of the street environment The street does not include any features The street includes features which support The street includes features which support a
which support flora and fauna some flora and fauna biodiverse range of flora and fauna
Biodiversity 51
Exposure to NOy concentration The NO, concentration is greater than The NO, concentration is 32 to 40ug/m’. The NO, concentration is less than 32ug/m?>.
40pg/m’.
Air Quality - Or, the existing NO, concentration is greater |Or, the NO, concentration is 32 to 40ug/m? but
Exposure 52 If assessing a design proposal, the NO, than 40pg/m’ but local traffic volume local traffic volume reduction measures are
concentration is greater than 4Oug/m3 and |reduction measures are proposed. proposed.
there are no proposals to reduce local traffic
volume.
Air Quality - Proximity to PM10 & NOy concentration <0.5m buffer between pedestrians/cyclists |0.5m to 2m buffer between >2m buffer between pedestrians/cyclists and
L. 53 and sources of pollution pedestrians/cyclists and sources of pollution [sources of pollution
Proximity
Noise Pollution 54 [Noise level from footway Excessively noisy (>78DB) Slightly noisy (65-78DB) Comfortable noise levels (<65DB)

Planting at
Footway Level

55

Amount of planting

There is no planting.

If assessing a design proposal, no green
infrastructure is proposed, or the size of
existing greenery is to be reduced.

There is some planting in good condition eg
shrubs, verges, hedges, ornamental flower
beds

If assessing a design proposal, the existing
greenery is to be retained or enhanced.

There is substantial planting in good condition

Number of trees

There are no trees, or only one tree.

If assessing a design proposal, there are no

There are multiple trees, with canopies
spaced more than 15m apart on average.

There are multiple trees, with canopies spaced
less than 15m apart on average.

Street 56 trees, or the number of trees has been If assessing a design proposal, most existing
Trees reduced. trees are to be retained, with the overall
number of trees maintained or increased.
Resilience to extreme weather events The street is at risk of flooding, drought, Some elements of the street provide The street is highly resilient against extreme
high winds and/or high temperatures when |resilience to extreme weather events, such as |weather events, with everything necessary in
Climate there are extreme weather events. sustainable urban drainage, greening place to prevent or protect against flooding,
Resilliance 37 elements, shelter from wind and/or sun. drought, high winds and high temperatures.

Microclimate -
Sunlight

58

Sunlight penetration

None

<2hrs direct sunlight on shortest day of year

>2hrs direct sunlight on shortest day of year

Microclimate -
Wind

59

Effect of street and building layout on
wind

Strong winds

Moderate winds

Low winds

/g abed




k4
Active Travel England Route Check r a

Please complete baseline JAT idering all an and cycle at each signalised junction or
roundabout on the route in its existing form, pasting the completed junction diagrams below along with commentary if needed. For the proposed design, please complete JAT assessments considering all pedestrian and cycle movements at each signalised
junction or roundabout on the route, pasting the completed junction diagrams below along with commentary if needed.

Please also enter the JAT score (combined for both pedestrian and cycle movements) as a percentage. For example, for a score of
12/15, please convert this to a percentage (in this case, 80%). Please also enter the JAT score ined for both an and cycle asa For example, for a score of
12/15, please convert this to a percentage (in this case, 80%).

When drawing movements on the junction diagram, use solid lines for cycle movements and dashed lines for pedestrian

movements. When drawing movements on the junction diagram, use solid lines for cycle movements and dashed lines for pedestrian movements.
Junction 1 Junction 1

Junction Name Junction Name

Design Stage Existing Design Stage Detailed Design

o lan entry and
o al throe ams,

JAT Diagram JAT Diagram

amnotoosenoves
ik oad a0
1oy be oer vw»”t
cnions o oo "
o opronch oy
sngscro e /

oned spite sand. 7
o singl lane et i

JAT Score (%) 0% JAT Score (%) 22%

Commentary / Notes Commentary / Notes Straight on cycle movement improved, but could be more provision for pedestrians

Page 88



] Route Check
i Dra

Design Review Results - for completion by ATE only

Critical Issues on the link in the proposed design which need to be addressed ATE Comments on the Pre-Check Questionnaire
Metric Critical Issue ATE Recommendation

[ There is at least one instance of unacceptably high levels of traffic| No controlled crossing for pedestrians at the roundabout. Consider a
Conflict with motor traffic at signal controlled junctions and cutting across pedestrian and cyclist desire lines at signal- controlled crossing in this location.
roundabouts controlled junctions or roundabouts (and pedestrians and cyclists

are

ATE C on the Link Check Results

The buffer between parking spaces and the cycleway should be
considered in more detail to ensure there is no risk of vehicles acidentally
ing into the buffer. would be improved by

a controlled crossing in this location.

ATE C on the JAT Check Results

ATE C on PI; king (where relevant)

Page 89



o
jab)
«Q
®
(o)
o

&

Active Travel England

Link Check Assessment Results

Route Check

Full Check Score Results

Principle Existing Layout Propo?ed Layout -
Detailed Design

81080 19% 42%

Vehicular (shared use) 100% 50%

Protection 7% 38%

Quiet 0% 0%

Stop and rest (cycle parking) 17% 17%

Legibility 50% 100%

Wayfinding 0% 0%

Maintenance 25% 50%

Surface 50% 50%

Accessibility 50% 75%

Flow 40% 50%

Consistency 50% 50%

iOverall ATE Score 19% 42%

{Number of critical issues 5 1

Junction Assessment Tool Check Results

Draft

Consistency

Flow

Accessibility

Surface

Maintenance

—e—Existing Layout

=—e—Proposed Layout

81080
100%
Vehicular (shared use)

80%

60%
Protection

/ 20% A
% Quiet

4

Stop and rest (cycle
parking)

Legibility

Wayfinding

Further Comments on the Junction Assessment Tool Check Results

Further Comments on the Link Check Assessment Results

"This space is for the reviewer to give any additional commentary for
the benefit of Active Travel England.

For instance, it could be used to explain justifications for design
decisions made in the context of the whole route or to comment on
how the scheme has scored against the Active Travel England
principles."

Junction Existing Layout Propo?ed Layo.ut .
Detailed Design

Junction 1 - 0% 22%
Junction 2 - 0% 0%,
Junction 3 - 0% 0%,
Junction 4 - 0% 0%
Junction 5 - 0% 0%,
Junction 6 - 0% 0%
Junction 7 - 0% 0%
Junction 8 - 0% 0%
Junction 9 - 0% 0%,
Junction 10 - 0%, 0%
Junction 11 - 0% 0%
Junction 12 - 0%, 0%
Junction 13 - 0% 0%
Junction 14 - 0%, 0%,
Junction 15 - 0% 0%
Junction 16 - 0%, 0%
Junction 17 - 0% 0%
Junction 18 - 0%, 0%,
Junction 19 - 0%) 0%
Junction 20 - 0%, 0%,
Junction 21 - 0% 0%
Junction 22 - 0%, 0%
Junction 23 - 0% 0%
Junction 24 - 0% 0%
Junction 25 - 0% 0%
Junction 26 - 0% 0%
Junction 27 - 0% 0%
Junction 28 - 0% 0%
Junction 29 - 0%, 0%
Junction 30 - 0% 0%

Placemaking Check Results

Existing Layout
& Lay Detailed Design

Proposed Layout -

[overall Placemaking Score 50% 52%

Further Comments on the Placemaking Check Results

Text




T6 abed

Scheme Name
Scheme Description
Project ID

Funding

Local Authority

Binley Road - Coventry University to University Hospital
Clifford Bridge Road, Binley Cycleway, Coventry

CW2-0001

Coventry City Council

Revision No Date Originator |Checker |Reviewer
POO 12.12.23
PO1 15.01.24

Infrastructure Feedback Report - Clifford Bridge Road, Binley Cycleway, Coventry
Reference number: CW2-0001


REVANS3
Rectangle


SharePoint Link CW2-0001 Binley Road - Coventry University to University Hospital

Support scheme promoter to proceed e.g. to consultation or Business
LN ST IR [il o i il Case submission as presented, noting comments / recommendations in
column J of the Feedback tab.

Page 92



6 abed

ocument Reference

Comments

fWM Recommendation

Draft ATE Feedback

al LA Response

Final Rating

M Final Sign Off

1 |Clifford Bridge Road Rbt V4.1 260ct23 Road space reallocation and amendment to the roundabout [none Yes
is welcomed to accommodate the continuation of the
segregated facility.
2 [Crossing S of Rbt V4.1 260ct23 What are the flows and volumes at the crossing point? Ifin  |confirmation required Cyclists bypass the junction, but pedestrians cross Refer to updated Binley Cycleway Section 7 - Clifford Bridge Yes.
excess of what is appropriate for uncontrolled suggest uncontrolled at the B4082 roundabout: depending on flows |Road. Final Layout (January 2024) However, it shall be noted the uncontrolled
upgrading to provide signal crossing. If no desire line here, & volumes may constitue a critical issue (>10k vpd and/or New puffin crossing included crossing east of the roundabout is shown as
then suggest removal as this may create issue with ATE 85%ile 37mph or above). retained on the Final Layout (January 2024)
toolkits. drawings. Whereas this is out of the scope of the
scheme, it'll potentially score down the overall
JAT and the panel recommend that this be
removed due to the close proximity of the new
Puffin Crossing. Thus, the Amber rating.
3 [Length of scheme V4.1 260ct23 Confirmation required that a 0.5m buffer can be achieved confirmation required Buffer provided between cycleway and parking spaces. Refer to updated Binley Cycleway Section 7 - Clifford Bridge Yes.
between cycle track and parking bay. However, it is unclear in some locations if this is provided via |Road. Final Layout (January 2024) It was noted during the Design Review Panel
a kerb or road markings - i.e. it may be easy for vehicles to Proposed typical detail showing parking and driveway workshop that the buffer will be a mix of kerbed
encroach into the buffer and reduce the buffer width. Bus accesses - plan view and road markings. Markings are to be proposed
stop bypasses provided on the NB carriageway. Limiting where the cycleway is adjacent to parking bays
horizontal seperation to 0.5m may negatively impact the and accesses, as shown on the proposed typical
comfort of cyclists riding contraflow to general traffic. detail.
Amber rating as the buffer proposed is non-
conventional and it still likely that cars ould be
parked closer or on the cycleroute.
4 |Constrained locations V4.1 260ct23 Absolute minimum width of 2m accepted at constraints none N/A N/A Yes
5 [Shared use at continuous V4.1 260ct23 Would cycle track be more prominent to drivers if we Point for discussion. Critical issue may be triggered by shared use if pedestrian Surface treatment to be confirmed as part of the detailed Yes.
footways continue the cycle surface across the junction? Shared use comfort levels fall beow threshold value, and/or there is a design. Noted as Amber until turning counts are
may also lead to an increase in conflict between users. risk that people may fall or walk in the carriageway to avoid provided to confirm suitability of the proposal
other users. Suggest pedestrian comfort level assessment. currently shown.
6 [School Connection V4.1 260ct23 Small detail — ladder and tramline wrong way round. minor amendment needed "Refer to updated Binley Cycleway Section 7 - Clifford Bridge Yes
Road. Final Layout (January 2024)
7 |adjacent to parking bays V4.1 260ct23 Could we use bollards to prevent people squeezing into this |minor amendment Suggest QRA pot allows for changes to scheme to rectify This will be investigaed at the next stage of the design but Yes.
space and overhanging onto cycle track? issues identified post-implementation. this might not be possible due to driveway access points. It was noted during the Design Review Panel
workshop that the buffer will be a mix of kerbed
and road markings. Markings are to be proposed
where the cycleway is adjacent to parking bays
and accesses, as shown on the proposed typical
detail.
Amber rating as the buffer proposed is non-
conventional and it still likely that cars ould be
parked closer or on the cycleroute
8 |adjacent to parking bays V4.1 260ct23 We welcome the approach to providing a buffer on the none CCC noted within the Design Review workshop that the Yes
outside of the constrained width car parking bays. current proposed "buffer" between parking bays and general
traffic lane is 0.5m wide. However, there is potential of
increasing the width at certain locations.
9 [Signalised crossing south of V4.1 260ct23 Signalised crossing near to Bridgeacre Gardens detail signal crossing detail to be provided to ATE. Yes.
Bridgeacre Gardens Welcome approach for continuity of route within the required. Noted as Amber until detail is provided to ATE
proposed crossing. none |for confirmation.
10 |Bridgeacre Gardens access V4.1 260ct23 Confirmation of turning counts required to rule out critical Yes.

Junction treatment suitability

Confirmation of turning counts required.

issues.

Noted as Amber until turning counts are
provided to confirm suitability of the proposal
currently shown.




This page is intentionally left blank



A

26" November 2024 Coventry City Council

Binley Cycleway
Section 7 - Clifford Bridge Road
Flooding

Contents: -

1. Environment Agency Flood Map - 26" November 2024
2. Site Photos Photo’s — 25" November 2024

Page 95



Environment
W Agency

Flood map for planning

Your reference Location (easting/northing) Created
Sowe Valley 437434/279076 26 Nov 2024 8:53

Your selected location is in flood zone 3, an area with a high
probability of flooding.

This means:

e you must complete a flood risk assessment for development in this area

e you should follow the Environment Agency's standing advice for carrying out a flood
risk assessment (see www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-assessment-standing-advice)

Notes

The flood map for planning shows river and sea flooding data only. It doesn’t include other sources

of flooding. It is for use in development planning and flood risk assessments.

This information relates to the selected location and is not specific to any property within it. The
map is updated regularly and is correct at the time of printing.

Flood risk data is covered by the Open Government Licence which sets out the terms and
conditions for using government data. https://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-
licence/version/3/

Use of the address and mapping data is subject to Ordnance Survey public viewing terms under

Crown copyright and database rights 2024 OS AC0000807064. https://flood-map-for-
planning.service.gov.uk/os-terms

Pagse 962



Environment
W Agency

Flood map for planning

&
g

S
/
/
/

4 ‘ i Your reference
Sy Sowe Valley
St ‘ : \ Location (easting/northing)

N

| 4374341279076

HallFarm

Scale
1:10000

Created
26 Nov 2024 8:53

rplie) . i Eog g 950 > | |:| Selected area
G ‘ 1 | Flood zone 3

%l AT SR =0 F - rod 2 Flood zone 2

| e, 7 , cn =l £ : e Flood zone 1

PE ol R, e | === Flood defence
: iy

: === Main river

F | : < Yas TR - ‘ |
NA & . b 8 5 f e 20000¢
) , : 33338 Water storage area

[ I ]
0 100 200 300m

Page 2 of 2

© Environment Agency copyright and / or database rights 2024. All rights reserved. © Crown Copyright and database right 2024. Ordnance Survey licence number AC0000807064.



JPhoto Locations
b 25/11/2024

D

Y212 0|

86




4
(QV
o
N
~
Ay
A
~N
LO
AN
I

-—
O
4
O
L
o




v

-
w '
' -

|

.L‘.,.;.

b |

7. - ¥
C e B AR

B

A

-4 8 B

p——
vk i e MR Y R

: \ds.;\(‘?’:., .'v.““" ”
N T
WAL L
:‘cl*« L.‘ ¥ ’(
by . - L7 4 -
1,\' --t', ‘,'"
RN 52> Bl

N,

it % .«
N, . ‘:.\‘".0.“!

B ’

(.
.5

‘ﬁ e

‘k
»
»
- *
~
P .
" '.. ‘ 7 -
v 1
“
‘ b
. B
\ Q,,'



genda ltem 4d

- "

Equality Impact Assessment

/. ’\
%
C/%“/ B EIA-637519525 - Binley Cycleway - Clifford Bridge Road
oventry City Counci Section

Title Binley Cycleway - Clifford Bridge Road Section

Author Serina Dhillon (Project Manager )

Head of service John Seddon (Strategic Lead - Policy, Transport and Innovation )

Patricia Hetherton (Highways, Drainage and Lighting Licensing

Cabinet member Policy (Hackney Carriage and Private Hire) Public Realm )

Context and background

EIA carried out on New services

The project comprises the construction of a new segregated
cycleway along Clifford Bridge Road from its junction with Brinklow
Road to its southern junction with Dorchester Way with no change
to the road width. The scheme includes a signalised crossing which

Background will allow pedestrians and cyclists to cross Clifford Bridge Road
safely and easily. Along with reinstalled parking bays and bus stop
relocations. These improvements will encourage walking and
cycling for local journeys, promoting active travel and helping to
address health inequalities.

Page 101




Active Travel England

CCC Comms and Engagement
CCC Public Health

CCC Transport and Planning
CVLife Cycling organisations
Disability Groups

Elected Members

Local Environmental Groups
Local People

Resident Groups

Transport for West Midlands
Warwick University

West Midlands Combined Authority
Clifford Bridge Academy

Stakeholders

Residents and Businesses will be directly impacted by this decision
and can influence the use of active travel. This will impact schools

Responsibility in a good way to encourage cycling and walking and make it safer
for them to use travel around the area. This will also the use of
safer crossings which impact the elderly and disabled.

Consideration of impact

We have completed resident consultations which allows us to
understand and improve the area for health and wellbeing and the
use of active travel. Some people have provided feedback that this
will better the health and wellbeing of children and women using
footways and cycleways. Alongside, create a safer and easier route
to bring people together as spoken about in our One Coventry plan.
These surveys and consultations created a positive feedback
allowing people to use their community freely and develop physical
health going forward. Some of the positive examples we received
were supportive and happy. For example, "I'm very supportive of
them as they're a pragmatic response to the difficulties presented
by the space. | regularly cycle through there so my opinion is based
on cycling rather than walking. It's currently really dangerous cycling
on the road and I've been driven at and sworn at by drivers regularly
S0 a segregated space would be far safer. Local residents who drive
seem to think other road users in Coventry should accommodate
their wishes". Another response confirmed journeys to work would
be safer. "As a local and a cyclist and a driver | think it the proposal
is a very reasonable compromise. My daughter who cycles to work
at the hospital cannot wait for work to start on this section of the
cycleway . It will make her commute to work so much safer."

Page 102

Bicycling in contrast, is a clean air form of transportation. It does not



create air pollution. Every time you cycle just one mile instead of
driving, you save over 300 grams of toxic CO2 greenhouse
emissions. The use of bicycles will be able to improve air quality
and also prevent accidents and traffic build up by giving people the
freedom to cycle to destinations quicker and safer.

Sustrans developed a model with Eunomia which is the first of its
kind to quantify the contribution of walking and cycling to improving
air quality. It found:

Baseline data and Savings to the economy of £5.67 billion over 10 years would be

information realised from improved air quality, by delivering and meeting the

targets to double cycling and increase walking set out in the UK
Government’s Cycling and Walking Investment Strategy in England.
It would also mean more than 8300 premature deaths from air
pollution would be prevented over this time.

Public Health England has also published a report on interventions
to improve outdoor air quality which recommends a targeted
reduction in traffic emissions with investment in, and promotion of
active transport such as walking and cycling. This will allow us to
monitor air quality going forward as part of the citywide air quality
monitoring and improve the amount of people on the road cycling
and walking. This data will show the usage of cyclists and vehicles
on the road and monitor how many people have chose walking and
cycling as part of their daily rountine.

The cycle route between Allard Way and Brandon Road was
constructed in May 2023. The usage data for Binley Road showed
that the daily average number of cyclists using the path and road to
ride along Binley Road before the cycleway construction began was
74 users. This was based on data collected between January to
March 2023.

We then looked at the current levels of cycling post construction. An
85% increase can be seen, with a daily average number of cyclists
of 137 users in 2024. This was based on data collected between
January to March 2024. This can be seen in the table below.

This demonstrates a significant rise in the average number of
cyclists since the construction of the cycleway. Higher number of
cyclists were also observed during the summer however the
following months have been used to ensure consistency.

Further data will be introduced at later date following the extension
of the Cycleway

Protected groups




Age 0-18

Positive impact - Younger people generally feel safer cycling on
traffic-free cycleways than roads. Increased independence for
younger people as there is a safer, more efficient and reliable
transport service that doesn’t rely on the ability to drive.

Age 19-64

Positive impact - People aged 19-64 can be encouraged to cycle or
walk using the segregated cycleway and footpaths which can make
them feel safer and less vulnerable to vehicles. This can also
influence them to be more confident and independent when it
comes to travelling to the nearest supermarket or round the
community alongside commuting as part of their daily routine.

Age 65+

Positive impact - Older people may be more adversely affected than
the general population. Older people may be less mobile or have
hearing or visual impairments and consequently feel more
vulnerable/less safe sharing the footway with cyclists. Providing a
dedicated cycling space reduces conflict between pedestrians and
cyclists and as such is a positive intervention compared to a shared
use facility.

Positive impact - Safe, high-quality cycle and pedestrian routes
could offer increased independence for many people with
disabilities, who may potentially be able to walk or cycle, but might
feel unsafe cycling on or crossing the road. The opportunity for
increased physical activity through active commuting could have

Disability benefits in preventing and mitigating chronic illnesses that can
exacerbate disabilities. Recent changes to government guidance
means that Class 2 and Class 3 mobility carriages are now
permitted to use cycle tracks, reducing conflict with pedestrians or
exposure to risk to road traffic (in the case of Class 3 mobility
scooters which can also use the carriageway).

Gender :
. No impact -
reassignment
Marriage and civil No impact -

partnership

Pregnancy and

maternity

Positive impact - Evidence suggests that air pollution can affect the
growth of the unborn baby and may be linked to premature birth.
Encouraging greater use of sustainable modes will help lower levels
of air pollutants in the local area, benefitting health. Pregnant
women may feel vulnerable on a shared use path, so the
designation of a separate cycle track is a positive intervention
compared to a shared use facility.

Race

No impact -

Reli ionAand belief

Page]
J

No impact -




Positive impact - In a national survey, 69% of women surveyed
stated that it is too dangerous for them to cycle on the road
compared to 53% of men. Improved cycling facilities will reduce this
barrier to cycling for some women.

Sex

Sexual orientation No impact -

Health inequalities (HI)

This propsosal will help reduce inequalities and contributes to the
Marmot Principles below as part of the idea to influence cycling and
walking and creating a safer transport system with environmental
benefits stated below:

How HI will be - Give every child the best start in life
reduced - Enable all children, young people and adults to maximise their
capabilities and have control over their lives
- Ensure a healthy standard of living for all
- Create and develop healthy and sustainable places and
communities
- Strengthen the role and impact of ill health prevention

The information we have to show this proposal will reduce health
inequalities is by using the Coventry City Council Transport Strategy
working to offer a safe, sustainable and resilient transport system
which allows residents and visitors to get round the city easy and
safely. We are improving air quality with more sustainable cars as
well as influencing walking and cycling as a safe option to tackle
local challenges with improving the regional and national
connections. The national government schemes will be expected to
generate up to 16million more walking and cycling trips a year
across the country. The usage data for Binley Road showed that the
daily average number of cyclists using the path and road to ride
along Binley Road before the cycleway construction began was 74
users. This was based on data collected between January to March
2023.

We then looked at the current levels of cycling post construction. An
85% increase can be seen, with a daily average number of cyclists
of 137 users in 2024. This was based on data collected between
January to March 2024. This is demonstrated through a significant
rise in the average number of cyclists since the construction of the
cycleway. Higher number of cyclists were also observed during the
summer however the following months have been used to ensure
consistency.

Evidence showing
how HI will be
reduced

Page 105




The groups of people who will face the biggest health inequalities in
regards to the new cycleway and footway are people with no access
to cars, public transport and cycling can help them get round the
city.

Elderly people can also find it easier and safer to move around the

Groups of people area with cycling and signalised junctions.

who face HI

School children will also be affected as using the footpaths and
cycleway daily can improve anxiety and mental health. A safer form
of transport can boost children to use cyclepaths and footways on
their journey, allowing them to have freedom and improve their
physical health.

Baseline data on this section of Clifford Bridge Road shows that
currently around 40% of cycling takes place on the footway rather
than the road. The segregated cycleway will therefore improve
safety for existing pedestrians and cyclists by providing dedicated
space for each category of road user, thereby reducing conflict
between them. The wider strategy linking into the One Coventry
plan contributes by reducing traffic and allowing a safe and efficient
way to get round the city. This brings people to become more active
and boosts travel options. Air pollution can also be improved which
How to improve HI relates to the One Coventry plans to make a greener environment
for groups and bringing communities together. This overall will improve road
identified safety, congestion and wellbeing in people who will choose active
travel. The usage data from Clifford Bridge Road showed that the
daily average number of cyclists was 77. risk for pedestrians and
increases the chance of collisions between pedestrians and cyclists.
By introducing a cycleway, it will be removing this risk and offering a
safer travel route both. The usage data for Binley reveal that since
the opening of cycleway, there has been an increase in the number
of cyclists from 2023 to 2024.
Overall the delivery of phase 2 of the cycleway to improve overall
safety for both pedestrian and cyclists.

Digital inequalities (DlI)

Impact to DI N/A

Page 106




Other than walking, cycling is perhaps the least technologically
exclusive form of transport available. Increasingly, buses are reliant
on using cashless payment systems and timetable apps, and more

Opportunities to and more cars are being built with touchscreen consoles that can

reduce DI be challenging to people not used to digital user interfaces.

Providing legible, direct cycle routes that follow familiar corridors
can assist people navigating their city without the need to rely on
smartphone apps.

Inequality Action Owner Timescale

Footfall and cycling surveys to monitor changes to pedestrian and
Monitor and cyclist use
evaluation Feedback from local people
Any recorded accident data

Impact on Council staff

Will there be an
impact?

Completion statement

Potential equality Positive impact has been identified for one or more protected
impact groups

Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

Last updated13t" January 2025

SCRUCO Work Programme 2024-25

Please see page 2 onwards for background to items

10t June 2024

LGA Peer Review Findings
Draft Scrutiny Annual Report 2023-24

261" June 2024

Serious Violence Duty
Proposed Consultation for the Community Safety Partnership Plan 2024-2027

21st August 24

City Centre PSPO Monitoring

City-wide PSPO Consultation

Additional Licensing of HMO'’s (Cabinet Report)
Dog Control PSPO (Cabinet Report)

19" September 24

National Planning Policy Framework Consultation

25" September 24 (moved from 18" September)

One Coventry Plan Performance report (Cabinet Report)
City-wide PSPO (Cabinet Report)

315t October 2024 (moved from 23" October)

Climate Change Strategy (Cabinet Report)
Temporary Accommodation (Cabinet Report)

14 November 2024

Coventry City Council Transformation Programme

20" November 2024

Shareholder Committee Reports
Strategic Energy Partnership Performance Update

18t December 2024

Community Safety Plan 2024-27
WMCA Corporate Update and Scrutiny Annual Report
Regulation 19 Local Plan

21st January 2024

Binley Cycleway — Section 7 (Clifford Bridge Road) — Call In

30" January 2025 (moved from 29" January)

Complaints Reports
Coventry Cultural Strategy — progress report including major Cultural Events

6" March 2025 (moved from 5" March)

Artificial Intelligence
Coventry Municipal Holdings Ltd — published accounts
Peer Review Progress Update

10th April 2025 (moved from 9th April)

Health Inequalities and Marmot

HDRC

One Coventry Plan Performance Report (24/25 pt 2)
Regulation 19 Local Plan — consultation results

2024-25

Domestic Abuse
Adaption and Resilience Plan
Cost of Living and Poverty

1
Page 109



SCRUCO Work Programme 2024-25

Planning Performance
Fly-tipping Overview
Communications Strategy
External Partnerships
Offender Management

2025-26

Transformation Programme update (November)
PSPO reviews — 2027-28

Strategic Energy Partnership Projects
Shareholder Reports

2
Page 110




TTT obed

SCRUCO Work Programme 2024-25

Date Title Detail Cabinet
Member/ Lead
Officer
10t June LGA Peer Review Findings Following a visit by a peer review team in January 2024 Vanessa Millar /
2024 Scruco will consider the recommendations and actions Michelle
McGinty
Cllr Duggins
Draft Scrutiny Annual Report 2023-24 | To consider the draft report before it is presented to
Council
26" June Serious Violence Duty At their meeting in November 2023 the Committee Cllr AS Khan
2024 requested a 6-month progress update, including the Allison Duggal
measurables identified by the Police and Crime Board to Caroline Ryder
measure success. Neil Macdonald
Check whether guidance has been sent to schools. WMP
Including the inspection report on tackling the risk of
serious youth violence and criminal exploitation
Proposed Consultation for the To consider the consultation plan for the Community Safety | Joy Adams
Community Safety Partnership Plan Partnership Plan 2024-27 Cllr AS Khan
2024-2027
21t August City Centre PSPO Monitoring As requested, Scruco will consider progress on Liam Nagle
24 implementation of the new PSPO agreed at Cabinet 13 Cllr AS Khan
June 2023
City-wide PSPO Consultation Summary of findings from the Public Consultation and Joy Adams
opportunity for members to be part of the consultation Cllr AS Khan
process which will form part of the final report to Cabinet.
Additional Licensing of HMO’s (Cabinet Adrian Chowns
Report) Clir Welsh
Dog Control PSPO (Cabinet Report) Cllr A Khan
19th National Planning Policy Framework To consider the response from the Council to the Rob Back
September 24 | Consultation governments consultation on the National Planning Policy | Clir N Akhtar

Framework




21T abed

SCRUCO Work Programme 2024-25

Date Title Detail Cabinet
Member/ Lead
Officer
25t One Coventry Plan Performance report Valerie De
September 24 | (Cabinet Report) Souza
(moved from Cllr Duggins
18th
September)
City-wide PSPO (Cabinet Report) Joy Adams
Cllr AS Khan
315t October Climate Change Strategy (Cabinet Rhian Palmer
2024 (moved | Report) Clir O’'Boyle
from 23'd
October)
Temporary Accommodation (Cabinet Referred from SB4 as meeting schedules do not match Jim Crawshaw
Report) with Cabinet. Cllr N Akhtar
14t Coventry City Council Transformation To review the progress and implementation of the CCC Cllr Brown
November Programme Transformation Programme and funding associated with it. | Michelle
2024 McGinty
20t Shareholder Committee Reports A chance for Scruco to consider the reports ahead of the Clir Duggins
November Shareholder Panel. The Board asks that future reports are | Andrew Walster
2024 shared after the audited accounts are published.
Strategic Energy Partnership Shareholder Panel Report Anna Livesey
Performance Update Clir O’'Boyle
18t Community Safety Plan 2024-27 To consider the results of crime survey and to feed into the | Joy Adams
December development of the community safety partnership plan. Cllr AS Khan
2024

WMCA Corporate Update and Scrutiny
Annual Report

James Hughes

Regulation 19 Local Plan

Chris Styles,
Rob Back
Clir N Akhtar




¢TT obed

SCRUCO Work Programme 2024-25

Date

Title

Detail

Cabinet
Member/ Lead
Officer

218t January
2024

Binley Cycleway — Section 7 (Clifford
Bridge Road) — Call In

To consider a call-in on the Binley Cycleway — Section 7

Andrew Walster
Clir Hetherton

30t January

Complaints Reports

To consider the progress on implementing

Adrian LeCras

2025 (moved recommendations and lessons learned identified as a Mandeep
from 29th result of formal complaint investigations to the Chouhan
January) Ombudsman, as well as Adults and Children’s Social Care | Cllr Brown
Coventry Cultural Strategy — progress | Following their meeting on 20" December 2023, the David Nuttall/
report including major Cultural Events | committee requested a further update on progress in Salla Virman
delivering the Cultural Works model, including Cllr N Akhtar
communication with Members.
6t March Artificial Intelligence To consider how Al is prioritised and utilised across the Clirs Brown/
2025 (moved Council, including improving services and reducing budget | Hetherton
from 5th pressures. To invite SB1 Members. To include impact on Paul Ward
March) jobs and skills (referred from SB3)
Coventry Municipal Holdings Ltd — Following their meeting on 20" November, Scruco Andrew Walster
published accounts requested a further item to consider the published
accounts
Peer Review Progress Update 12-month progress review report Cllr Duggins
Michelle
McGinty
10th April Health Inequalities and Marmot To look at what the Council is doing to address health Allison Duggal
2025 (moved inequalities and to monitor progress. Raised at OCP Cllr Caan
from 9th progress item on 25" September
April) OCP Indicators for Male/Female Life expectancy
HDRC An update and progress on the project Sue Frossell
Clir Caan
One Coventry Plan Performance Valerie De
Report (24/25 pt 2) Souza
Cllr Duggins




v TT obed

SCRUCO Work Programme 2024-25

Date Title Detail Cabinet
Member/ Lead
Officer
Regulation 19 Local Plan — As agreed at their meeting on 18" December the Clir N Akhtar
consultation results committee requested the responses to the consultation the | R Back
Local Plan
2024-25 Domestic Abuse A regular update item on the progress of delivery on the Jayne Ross
Domestic Violence and Abuse Strategy Cllr AS Khan
Clir P Akhtar
Adaption and Resilience Plan To consider what the Council is doing to protect the city Clir O’'Boyle
from the impact of climate change, including partners Colin Knight
involved in the delivery and represented on the Climate Rhian Palmer
Change Board Bret Willers
Cost of Living and Poverty To update on support offered to low -income families as Clir Duggins
well as the OCP indicator of % of children living in relatively
low-income families.
Planning Performance Development Management function - overall performance | Clir N Akhtar,
against Government targets. Annual monitoring report Rob Back

(AMR).

Fly-tipping Overview

To review the impact of increased fines on reducing fly-

Clirs AS Khan/

tipping Hetherton
Martin McHugh
Sarah Elliott
Davina
Blackburn
Communications Strategy To consider the refreshed Communications Strategy with
the new Director in post
External Partnerships Cllr G Duggins
Offender Management Following an item on Local Policing Update at their Clir A Khan
meeting 215' February 24 the committee agreed to consider | Davian
a further item on Offender Management Blackburn




GTT obed

SCRUCO Work Programme 2024-25

Date Title Detail Cabinet
Member/ Lead
Officer
2025-26 Transformation Programme update An update on progress following the item in November Clir Brown
(November) 2024 M McGinty
PSPO reviews — 2027-28 To be considered by scrutiny as part of the 3-year review Davina
Blackburn
Strategic Energy Partnership Projects | Further progress reports following update in November Rhian Palmer
2024 Clir O'Boyle
Shareholder Reports To receive reports for the Shareholders Panel — as A Walster
requested at the last meeting, reports should include Cllr Duggins

cashflow details for the businesses




SCRUCO Work Programme 2024-25

Work Programme Decision Flow Chart

|s the proposed item just to provide the
committes with information or update on
previous item?

w\l/
Y]

-
Does the item have a significant impact for
one or more section(s) of the population of
Coventry?
Has the item been raised by communities/
residents partners or stakeholders?

YES ¢
f, y

i

Is the item linked to a priority in the One
Coventry plan?

YES

()

Will the scrutiny activity add value to the
council, and/or its partners’, overall
performance?

A

Is there an item on the forward plan which
covers the issue?

YES
()

Will scrutiny involvement be duplicating
review work within the service?

‘ Is scrutiny involvement timely?

L)

Does the item warrant a single item
agenda?

YES

Could the item%neﬁl from a task and
finish group?

YES ¢

-
Include on the work programme and
scope as a task and finish group

Pagg 116

Leave out of work programme
YES 9 and arrange written
bulletin/training/seminar

(\l_d)l
@I

NO Leave out of work programme
— Low Priority

—

Possibly include in work
programme or monitor

o0 =

Include on the work
programime

=3 Include on the work
NO )' programme and scope as a
single item



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4a Process Note of the Director of Law and Governance on the call-in procedure
	4b Briefing Note of the Director of City Services and Commercial
	4c Binley Cycleway – Section 7 (Clifford Bridge Road)  - Report which was considered by the Cabinet Member for City Services on 9 December, 2024
	4c - Appendix A
	4c - Appendix B
	4c- Appendix C
	4c - Appendix D
	4c - Appendix E
	BCWY-CAB-009-01-DESIGN GA_211124
	BCWY-CAB-009-DESIGN GA_211124

	4c - Appendix F
	Section 7 Alternative Routes
	Binley Feasibility Review

	4c - Appendix G
	Binley Cycleway Clifford Bridge Road - Final Layout - January 2024.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Consultation Plan



	4c - Appendix H
	Flood Map Title Page
	flood-map-planning-2024-11-26T08_53_09.748Z
	25-11-24 Flooding
	Slide 1 
	Slide 2 
	Slide 3 



	4d Binley Cycleway - Clifford Bridge Road - Equality Impact Assessment
	Equality Impact Assessment
	EIA-637519525 - Binley Cycleway - Clifford Bridge Road Section
	Details
	Context and background
	Consideration of impact
	Protected groups
	Health inequalities (HI)
	Digital inequalities (DI)
	Next steps
	Impact on Council staff
	Completion statement



	5 Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee Work Programme and Outstanding Issues 2024/2025



